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Investor Information

Market Capitalization as
of March 31, 2025

% 1,205.91 Crores

CIN L23200MH1992PLC318353
BSE Code 530355

NSE Symbol ASIANENE

Bloomberg Code ASO:IN

Dividend Declared % 1 per Share

AGM Date September 26, 2025

AGM Mode Video Conferencing (VC)/Other

Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)

For more investor-related information, please visit
https://www.asianenergy.com/investor-relations.html#financial

Disclaimer

This document contains statements about expected future
events and financials of Asian Energy Services Limited (‘The
Company’), which are ‘forward-looking. By their nature,
forward-looking statements require the Company to make
assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties.
There is a significant risk that the assumptions, predictions,
and other forward-looking statements may not prove to be
accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on forward-looking statements as several factors could
cause assumptions, actual future results and events to differ
materially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements. Accordingly, this document is subject to the
disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the assumptions,
qualifications and risk factors referred to in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.



BUILDING MOMENTUM
FOR SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

We are stepping into a new
phase of transformation,
marked by a deliberate
focus on scale, resilience,
and long-term value
creation. Over the past
year, we significantly
strengthened our core
businesses, entered high-
potential sectors, and
prepared the foundation
for global expansion. This
momentum was built on
disciplined execution, a
robust order book, and

a deep understanding of
the evolving energy and
infrastructure ecosystem.

Our diverse portfolio gives
us the flexibility to support
India’s rising energy needs
while aligning with global
shifts in sustainability and
resource efficiency. The
acquisition of Kuiper Group

has added new depth to
our capabilities, opening
avenues in the Middle

East and Southeast Asia
through the international
Operations and
Maintenance (O&M) space.

As we scale responsibly,
our approach stays rooted
in what matters: consistent
cash flows, margin-focused
growth, and a performance-
led culture that values
people. In addition, we
continue to invest in
operational excellence

and allocate capital with
discipline.

With strong fundamentals
and clear direction, we

are ready to convert this
momentum into lasting
impact. Our focus remains
on creating sustainable
growth and long-term value
for all stakeholders.
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This is AESL

SHAPING LEGACY FOR A
DIVERSIFIED ENERGY FUTURE

Asian Energy Services Limited (also referred to as ‘Asian Energy, ‘AESL, ‘The Company’
or ‘We’) is a leading integrated energy infrastructure services provider. Formerly known
as Asian Qilfield Services Limited, we have a strong legacy in the oil and gas industry and
afast-growing footprint in mineral and other energy sectors. With a proven track record
of delivering reliable and innovative solutions, we have established ourselves as a trusted
partner in India’s energy value chain. Now, we are expanding globally.

In line with shifting client needs and emerging sectoral

trends, we embarked on a strategic transformation. We Core Values
reduced our reliance on seismic services and diversified
into complementary verticals such as O&M and Mineral Trust

Infrastructure. This shift expanded our service portfolio
and strengthened our ability to deliver sustainable, long-
term value in a dynamic energy environment.

We strive to build close relationships

with our customers, stakeholders, and
employees and we rigorously try to uphold
our commitments.

Quality
o o We implement the latest and best
VISIon industry-wide technology and practices to
ensure the utmost quality of services to our
Asian Energy Services Limited customers.

aims to be recognized and
respected for the quality
of its services, efficacy and Performance
reliability of its operations,
the satisfaction of its
customers, and its resolute
integrity. We have the utmost
respect for our shareholders,
customers, and employees,
and we aim to always conduct
our business, while upholding
our core values.

We guarantee reliability and efficiency in
meeting our customers’ deliverables by
employing a highly experienced team of
industry experts and implementing the
latest technology, systems and processes in
the industry.

Teamwork

We leverage individual strengths to deliver
outstanding performance, while working in
collaboration with customers and service

providers.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Strengths

Financial Resilience Mastery in Challenging Terrains Strong Leadership Team

A robust financial foundation with a Extensive experience navigating Backed by a highly experienced

healthy cash and bank balance difficult terrains and international promoter group and a team of
markets professional management

Innovating with Technology Diversified Solutions Portfolio Global Reach, Trusted

A relentless focus on integrating v Seismic Exploration: Oil and gas Partnerships

advanced technologies to deliver services, including 2D/3D seismic v Operating in various geographies

smarter, faster, and cost-effective data acquisition across markets

solutions v Production Facilities: Expertise in w Established track record of

construction and O&M success with marquee clients

across sectors such as material
handling systems, seismic
solutions, among others

v Energy Infrastructure: Leading
material handling systems and
seismic solutions for mineral and
energy sectors

Proven Excellence

| 31 | 100% stake | 50+

Years of Experience in Energy Acquisition of Kuiper Group, Projects Successfully
Services UAE Completed

350+ % 973 crores High

Employees Order Book Value as of Client Retention Rate
March 31, 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Our Journey

TRACING PROGRESS THROUGH

DECADES OF EVOLUTION

/

2016

v Controlling stake acquired
by Oilmax Energy Private
Limited

v Management shifted to the
Oilmax Group

v First O&M contract
awarded to Asian Energy
for the EBOK field in
Nigeria for 3 years

2017

v Expanded service portfolio

v Secured 5 new 2D seismic
orders totaling 7,500 km for
ONGC and Oil Indiain India

v Signed a seismic contractin
Romania

2018

v Commenced production
facility construction

2020

v Ventured into the coal
sector and rebranded as
Asian Energy Services
Limited

2021

v Forayed into the Energy
Infrastructure segment

2025

v Acquired Kuiper Group
to expand global O&M
footprint

v Surpassed3 973 Croresin
order book

v Continues to strengthen
integrated service offerings
across oil, gas, and mineral
sectors

2024

v Entered oil and gas
production enhancement

v Acquired a stake in Indrora
oilfield, Gujarat, contributing
to increased oil production

2023

v Secured the PY3 O&M
contract

v Received two more CHP
contracts (Singareni and
Hura)

2022

v Secured Suvali O&M and
Gevra CHP contracts

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Corporate Overview

Oilmax Energy is an
integrated oil and gas
company with a balanced
portfolio across exploration,
production, and O&M.

It focuses on acquiring
underutilized energy assets
and unlocking their value
using advanced technologies
and cost-efficient operations.
The Company operates four
oilfields in India, with three
located in Assam and one in
Gujarat. Its disciplined asset
management continues to
drive higher productivity and
long-term returns.
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Our Services

DELIVERING SOLUTIONS FOR
AN EVOLVING ENERGY SECTOR

Our operations revolve around a versatile suite of services built on innovation,
sustainability, and deep industry insight. We draw on modern technologies, proven
expertise, and highly efficient execution frameworks led by seasoned professionals. Our
model is fluid and tech-led, designed to align with client ambitions and pivot as market
needs evolve. This approach ensures tangible results, fosters long-term value, and builds
lasting partnerships across the entire energy value chain.

Seismic Services

With over two decades of experience and a high-performance seismic asset base,
we offer advanced 2D and 3D land seismic services. Our offerings also include:

4

Transition Zone Acquisition

4

On-Site Data Processing

4

Seismic Consulting and Interpretation

Real-Time Wireless Seismic Operations

Operations and
WY EE S

O&M represents the largest share of our
order book, reflecting the trust we have
built across leading oil and gas operators.
We operate and maintain both onshore and
offshore production facilities with a strong
emphasis on safety, cost efficiency, and

uptime. Through our acquisition of Kuiper
Group (UAE), we are also extending our
O&M expertise across the Middle East and
Southeast Asia.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Diverse Order Book (as of 2024-25)

Infrastructure
(CHP and Seismic
Oo&M FMC projects) Services

56% Order Book 36% Order Book 8% Order Book
? 550Crores ? 350Crores ? 74Crores

Order Value Order Value Order Value

Suvali, Gujarat (Vedanta)

Amguri, Assam (Oilmax
Energy)

PY-3, offshore Tamil Nadu
(Hardy Oil/Svetah Energy)

Gevra, Chhattisgarh (HEC)
Hura, Jharkhand (ECL)
Singareni, Telangana (SCCL)
Karo, Jharkhand (CCL)

Gujarat (Sun
Petrochemicals)

Baradih Coal Block
(CMPDI)

Rajasthan Basin (Oil India)

PKOCP, Manuguru (SCCL)
Assam (AGCL)

Rajmahal, Jharkhand (ECL)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Managing Director’s Message

ORCHESTRATING

MOMENTUM WITH

VISIONARY GUIDANCE

Dear Stakeholders,

The past year was a pivotal period
in our growth journey. We made
decisive strides in strengthening
our core businesses and expanding
our strategic footprint globally.
Amid a challenging yet promising
macroeconomic backdrop, we
delivered a strong financial

and operational performance.
Additionally, we deepened client
relationships, diversified our
offerings, and laid the groundwork for
sustainable value creation.

The Macroeconomic Scenario

India’s economy continued to show
strong endurance and dynamism,
posting real GDP growth of 6.5%

in 2024-25. This was fueled by
sustained infrastructure investments
and a strong performance in the
services sector. As the economy scales
up, energy demand continues to rise
in parallel.

On the global front, the oil and

gas industry is entering a renewed
phase of investment and innovation.
Forecasts indicate the sector could
exceed US$ 9.8 Trillion by 2029,
supported by increased exploration
activity, digital transformation,

and the adoption of cleaner energy
technologies.

Domestically, the Government of
India is taking strong measures
to reduce dependence on energy

imports, especially hydrocarbons. This
includes policies such as outsourcing
the operations of existing oilfields,
awarding production enhancement
contracts (PECs), and emphasizing
operational efficiency.

At the same time, coal remains a key
part of India’s energy mix, even as
the country moves forward on its
energy transition agenda. The target
to increase domestic coal production
to 1.5 Billion tons by 2030 signals
amajor push toward self-reliance.
Alongside this, the mandate to
mechanize all high-output mines
creates a long-term opportunity for
infrastructure development in coal
handling and logistics.

These shifts present significant

and lasting prospects for us. With
multi-disciplinary strengths across
operations and maintenance, seismic
data acquisition, and material
handling infrastructure, we are

well positioned to capitalize on this
evolving environment.

Business Performance

Our focus remains on executing
ongoing projects efficiently while
preserving robust operating margins.
To support this, we are investing in
organizational capability and actively
strengthening our management team
to lead with agility and foresight. As
of March 31, 2025, our total order
book stood at approximately ¥ 973
Crores. This provides high revenue

visibility and a solid platform for
continued growth.

Oo&M

This segment continues to be a key
growth driver of our strategy to build
long-term, annuity-based revenue
streams. O&M constituted the largest
share of our total order book at 56%
as of March 31, 2025, with a value

of approximately ¥ 550 Crores. This
figure was preceded by a significant
and consistent rise from 33%

(¥ 333 Crores) in September 2024

to 46% (X 527 Crores) in December
2024.

The steady increase highlights the
growing demand for our integrated
service offerings and strong client
confidence. During the year under
review, we also secured new client
relationships with Invenire Energy
and Sun Petrochemicals, while
continuing to serve trusted partners
like Vedanta (Suvali, Gujarat),
Oilmax Energy (Amguri, Assam),

and Hardy Oil/Svetah Energy (PY-3,
offshore Tamil Nadu). Furthermore,
we emerged as the L1 bidder for a
significant three-year O&M contract
in Northeast India, and await the final
award.

Seismic Services

Due toits cyclicality, seismic services
accounted for 8% of our total order
book, with a value of approximately
% 74 Crores. The business continues

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Corporate Overview

A major strategic highlight of
2024-25 was our announced
acquisition of Kuiper Group,
UAE. It is a profitable
manpower services

provider with revenues

of approximately US$ 68
Million in 2023-24.

to see steady engagement from
longstanding clients such as CMPDI,
ONGC, and Qil India.

A notable challenge emerged in
September 2024 with the holiday
order issued by ONGC. We acted
swiftly and decisively, securing an
interim stay from the Bombay High
Court and engaging in constructive
discussions with the authorities.
These efforts led to a successful
revision of the holiday period from
two years to six months, which
concluded on March 20, 2025.

Additionally, a previously delayed
seismic contract with ONGC resumed
during the latter part of the year and
was reinstated in our order book. As
aresult, ONGC'’s contribution to our
total revenue declined to just 2-2.5%
in 2024-25, down from historical
levels of 12-13%.

Material Handling and CHP Projects

We have expanded into the Material
Handling and Coal Handling Plant
(CHP) segment, positioning it as a
core driver of our diversification
strategy beyond seismic services. As
of March 31, 2025, Infrastructure
and CHP projects made up 36% of
the total order book, amounting to
approximately ¥ 350 Crores. We are
currently executing six major coal
handling projects across key sites in
Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, Telangana,
and Andhra Pradesh.

Our Numbers

We spent the past year focused on
financial consolidation and capital
preparedness. Our EBITDA rose to

% 72.3 Crores, with margins improving

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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to 15.5%, up from 14.2% in the
previous fiscal. This gain was driven
by scale and operational efficiencies.
PAT increased sharply from
¥25.5Croresin 2023-24to%42.2
Crores, reflecting the twin effects

of revenue growth and operating
leverage. To reinforce our capital
base, we raised ¥ 157 Crores through
preferential warrants, enhancing our
capacity to fund strategic growth.
We closed the year with a net cash
balance of ¥ 79 Crores and expanded
our net worth to ¥ 399 Crores. This
financial strength positions us to
pursue both organic and inorganic
growth while staying prudent in our
capital allocation.

Acquisition of Kuiper Group

A major strategic highlight of
2024-25 was our announced
acquisition of Kuiper Group,

UAE. It is a profitable manpower
services provider with revenues of
approximately US$ 68 Million in
2023-24.

This acquisition marks a significant
step forward in our evolution and
represents our entry into global
O&M markets, particularly across
the Middle East and Southeast

Asia. Kuiper Group brings a strong
presence in energy-rich regions such
as Saudi Arabia, the UAE, and Qatar.
It also offers a seasoned management
team and an established client base.
This acquisition will allow us to:

v Expand our service offerings to
international markets

v Access a significantly broader
addressable market

v Enhance operating synergies
across energy-dense geographies

w Establish a globally scalable
platform for sustainable, long-
term growth

As we integrate Kuiper into our
business, we are confident that

this will strengthen our position as
adiversified, future-ready energy
services company with both domestic
depth and international reach.

o (e
Financial Statements

Looking Ahead

As we enter 2025-26, our priority is
to maintain momentum while scaling
with discipline and responsibility.

Our strategic focus will remain on
expanding our long-duration O&M
portfolio, which offers recurring cash
flows and stable operating margins.
Besides this, we plan to deepen

our presence in material handling
infrastructure, driven by continued
investments in mineral evacuation
systems and first mile connectivity
initiatives across the country. Seismic
services will continue, but with
selectivity. We will participate only in
tenders that align with our execution
strengths and meet our margin
thresholds.

We also recognize the importance

of human capital in driving future
growth. To attract, retain, and
motivate high-impact talent, we

are establishing an ESOP pool
equivalent to 2% of our equity capital.
This is aimed at building a strong
performance-driven and ownership-
oriented culture.

All our growth initiatives will

be underpinned by a disciplined
approach to capital allocation and

a continued focus on operational
excellence. With a strong order
pipeline, international expansion
underway, and clear strategic
priorities, we remain confident in our
ability to deliver sustained long-term
value for all stakeholders.

In Closing

| extend my sincere gratitude to our
employees, clients, shareholders,

and partners who have stood by

us during this exciting phase of
transformation. The opportunities
before us are substantial. With a clear
strategy, strong leadership, and deep
capabilities, we are well-positioned to
grow with agility, scale with purpose,
and deliver with precision.

Warm Regards,
Dr. Kapil Garg
Managing Director
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Acquisition of Kuiper Group

ADVANCING GROWTH THROUGH

A LANDMARK STRATEGIC DEAL

We entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% equity stake in Kuiper Group, UAE,
from Gulf Capital, a marquee private equity investor. The deal was closed at a total cash
consideration of US$ 9.25 Million.

Kuiper Group is an internationally
recognized provider of integrated
manpower and operations solutions,
catering specifically to the energy
sector across the Middle East and
Southeast Asia. Its operations are
anchored by long-term master
service agreements and client
contracts ranging from 2 to 5 years.

These agreements ensure stable and
predictable revenue over the next 2
to 3 years, based on current financials.
In 2024, Kuiper Group reported
revenues of approximately US$ 68
Million, underlining the strength and
scalability of its operations.

This acquisition marked a defining
step in our evolution into a global

Strategic Synergies and Value Creation

Market Access and
Geographic Expansion

This acquisition allows us
to enter energy-intensive
markets across the Middle
East and Southeast Asia by
building on Kuiper’s strong
regional presence.

Strengthened Service
Integration

By integrating Kuiper’s
capabilities, we strengthen our
ability to deliver end-to-end
operations and maintenance
solutions globally. This is
backed by Kuiper’s skilled
workforce and proven
leadership.

energy solutions provider. We are
tapping into Kuiper’s experienced
management team, strong operational
infrastructure, and long-standing
client relationships. With this
foundation, we aim to accelerate

the growth of our integrated O&M
services, diversify revenue streams,

and deepen market penetration.

Scalable Revenue
Growth

The deal is expected to
contribute an incremental

revenue stream of
approximately US$ 70 Million,
accelerating our growth and
improving shareholder value.

'y

g

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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SUSTAINING PROGRESS THROUGH PRUDENT
VALUE CREATION

We continued to build on our growth momentum through 2024-25, delivering strong
and broad-based financial performance. Our focused execution, balanced business mix,
and operational discipline enabled us to deliver meaningful progress across key financial
indicators. As we continue to diversify and scale, our performance reflects the strength
of our model and our preparedness to unlock the next phase of growth.

Consolidated Financial Performance
(Zin Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from Operations | EBITDA* EBITDAMargin (%) | Net Profit (PAT) PAT Margin (%)
305.1 465.0 43.4 72.3 14.2 15.5 25.5 42.2 8.2 9.1
N N\ N\ N\ N\
2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25
*EBITDA includes share in profit/loss from joint ventures and associates
Segmental Performance
(ZinCrores)
Oil and Gas Mineral and Other Energy Services
Revenue EBITDA Revenue EBITDA
191.9 192.4 41.0 33.1 113.2 272.6 18.6 58.9
[ [ [ [
2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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ESG

EMBEDDING RESPONSIBILITY IN
EVERY LAYER OF OPERATIONS

We view leadership in the energy sector as a responsibility that extends well beyond
operational efficiency. It calls for a firm commitment to Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) principles. These values are embedded in every aspect of our business,
from strategy development to daily operations. Our focus lies in meeting the regulatory
requirements, while also setting new standards of excellence, accountability, and
responsibility across the industry.

Electrification of
Operations

Deployment of
electric vehicles at
project sites to reduce
emissions and promote

clean energy use Green Drives

Celebration of World

Environment Day through
extensive plantation initiative
to enhance local biodiversity

Environmental and Safety

Stewa rdship Health and Safety

: . Campaigns
We operate with a strong commitment to
environmental protection and workplace safety. Organization of free medical
Our efforts aim to reduce our environmental camps and collaboration
footprint and protect the well-being of our with local NGOs to promote
workforce and local communities. Throughout health awareness and
2024-25, we undertook several high-impact access to basic healthcare

initiatives that reflect this commitment.

National Safety Week
Participation

Active participation in the
50t edition of National Safety
Week, reaffirming our culture
of safety and continuous
improvement

Community
Engagement

Strengthening of ties
with project-adjacent
communities through
regular engagement and
safety education initiatives

[ 12 | ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Creating Lasting Impact in
Communities

Our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programs are
designed to uplift underserved communities and improve
quality of life through targeted, long-term interventions.
In 2024-25, our efforts emphasized improving access to
essential services and educational support.

We remain committed to expanding our ESG footprint and
aligning with national development goals. These efforts
ensure that our growth contributes meaningfully to the
social and environmental well-being of the regions where
we operate.
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ENSURING VIGILANT OVERSIGHT THROUGH
EXPERIENCE-LED PERSPECTIVES

Mr. N. M. Borah
Chairman, Non-executive
Independent Director

Mrs. Anusha Mehta
Non-Executive
Independent Director

Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal
Non-Executive
Independent Director

Mr. Anil Kumar Jha
Non-Executive
Independent Director

Mr. Borah brings extensive experience to the Board, having
formerly chaired Oil India Limited (OIL) as Chairman and
Managing Director (CMD). He also served as the Technical
Member (Petroleum and Natural Gas) at the Appellate Tribunal
for Electricity (APTEL).

His leadership and contributions have earned him significant
recognition. Notably, he received the prestigious ‘SCOPE’ award
for Excellence and Outstanding Contribution in Public Sector
Management in 2009-10, presented by the Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India. In addition, he received the Business Leadership
Award (2010-11) from NDTV.

With over a decade of experience in the financial sector, Mrs.
Mehta has worked with prominent institutions such as HDFC
Bank and Barclays Finance. Her expertise lies in crafting
strategies that drive sustained growth, profitability, and
enhanced performance. Currently, she is focused on empowering
entrepreneurs to harness businesses to build a value-driven and
sustainable world.

Mr. Bansal has over 46 years of experience in the oil and gas
sector. His areas of specialization include business development,
research and development, refining, and technical services.

He began his career at Indian Oil Corporation Limited in 1974
and rose to the position of Chairman through his dedication

and expertise. In addition to his leadership role at Indian Qil,

Mr. Bansal holds several positions on the boards of various
organizations. These comprise Lubrizol India, Engineers India,
CPCL, IOTL, PLL, GPPL, and JBF Industries.

Mr. Jha holds a B.Tech. in Mining from IIT (ISM), Dhanbad, and an
M.Tech. in Mine Planning and Design. He has over three decades
of experience in mine planning, production, and management

of both underground and opencast coal mines. He began his
career in 1983 at Central Coalfields Limited and later became the
General Manager, Chairman and Managing Director of Coal India
Limited (CIL). Mr. Jha has also held leadership roles at Mahanadi
Coalfields Limited (MCL) and MOIL Limited, before becoming
Chairman of Jindal Power Limited.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Dr. Kapil Garg
Managing Director

Mr. Rabi Narayan Bastia
Non-Executive
Professional Director

Mr. Aman Garg
Non-Executive Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Dr. Kapil Garg holds both a Bachelor’s and Master’s degree from
IIT Roorkee, offering a strong academic foundation to his role.
His prior experience includes positions as Production Manager

at ONGC, Enron, and GAIL (India) Limited, as well as Managing
Director at BG Group. With extensive accomplishments in
corporate governance, growth strategies, multinational business
development, and organizational development, Mr. Garg is known
for his innovative approaches to business delivery.

With over 30 years of experience, Mr. Bastia led the Exploration
Group at Reliance for more than 16 years. He received the Padma
Shri Award for his pivotal role in the largest gas discovery in the
KG Basin in 2002. Recognized for his work in petroleum research,
he earned a D.Sc. from ISMU, Dhanbad. It was the first such
degree awarded in India and received wide acclaim from Alberta
University, Canada, and Oklahoma University, US.

A seasoned professional, Mr. Aman Garg has expertise in
commercial and technical roles, having worked at Oilmax Energy
Private Limited, specializing in project analysis, geology, and CSR
management. In 2019, he revamped marketing strategies during
an internship at Asian Energy. Mr. Garg holds a B.S. in Mechanical
Engineering from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, US (2021), and
contributes a fresh perspective to strategic business areas.
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Overview

The global economy in 2025
continued its steady, albeit uneven,
growth trajectory, maintaining an
estimated rate of 2.8%, as projected
by the IMF and other international
financial institutions. The stabilization
of energy prices, building upon the
previous year's cooling, remained

a supportive factor. Supply

chain adjustments to the altered
geopolitical landscape, particularly
in the energy sector, continued to
contribute to this relative stability.
However, the global environment
remained fraught with uncertainties,
much of which was driven by political
changes that occurred worldwide,
including in the US.

The financial year 2024-25 was a
pivotal period when the world found
itself at a crossroads. The world

had moved past the COVID-19
pandemic, and on top of global
tensions ranging from the conflicts
in Ukraine and Gaza, election-driven
political realignments were underway
worldwide. Amidst these political
tensions, there was economic relief,
with cooling energy prices reducing
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inflation worldwide and monetary
easing throughout many economies.
The US economy showed resilience,
even in the face of political change
and trade tensions. The Chinese
economy continued to show signs of
slowdown and industrial overcapacity,
albeit while pushing the frontiers

of renewable energy technology,
especially in electric vehicles. Europe
initially showed signs of low growth
but has since recovered, while

the emerging economies across

the Asia-Pacific region (excluding
China) have sustained strong
growth. Most economies worldwide
experienced arise in trade concerns
due to reciprocal tariffs, which were
subsequently suspended for 90 days,
along with exemptions being carved
out.

India maintained its status as the
world’s fastest-growing major
economy amid a year that saw
general elections, in which Prime
Minister Narendra Modi returned to
power for the third time, albeitin a
coalition government. The economy
is projected to have grown at 6.5%
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in 2024-25, according to estimates

by the RBI and various international
bodies. This performance was
sustained by the country’s rapidly
growing services industries, alongside
growing momentum in areas like
‘China Plus One’, which has boosted
the country’s manufacturing industry.
The year also saw healthy monsoons,
which boosted agricultural output
and rural consumption, while driving
inflation low, which also allowed the
RBI to start easing monetary policy
near the end of 2024-25. While the
economy has experienced rapid
infrastructure growth during the
post-pandemic period, 2024-25
encountered a speed bump due to
general elections, and the onus for
continued capital expenditure growth
in the medium term will lie with private
investors and state governments. The
economy is also well positioned to
handle trade tensions, having signed
a historic free trade agreement with
the UK shortly after the end of the
2024-25 fiscal year, and continued
discussions for a trade deal with both
the US and the European Union.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Industry Overview
The Global Scenario

The global hydrocarbon industry
navigated a complex landscape in
2024-25. Following the volatility

of previous years, the market
experienced a period of relative
stability in benchmark prices.
Benchmark crude and natural gas
prices remained within a moderate
range, reflecting a balance between
supply and demand factors. Rising
production output from the US, under
the policies of former President Joe
Biden, contributed to easing global
prices and inflation.

The return of Donald Trump as the
US president brought a boost to

the hydrocarbon industry, as he has
favoured policies to maximise the
production and export of oil and gas
in the US economy. Trump’s policies,
such as tariffs, have also had bearish
impacts on the global economy, which
is expected to slow down because of
trade tensions. This has contributed
to a bearish outlook toward the
hydrocarbon industry, with crude
benchmark prices falling below US$
60 after the end of the financial

year and projected to remain in this
range for the foreseeable future.
Other factors contributing to this
bearish outlook include the growing
adoption of renewable technologies,
particularly new energy vehicles in
China, which suppresses demand for
transport fuel. Additionally, OPEC, led
by Saudi Arabia, has chosen to expand
its oil supply for the foreseeable
future.
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The National Scenario

India's burgeoning economy, now the
world's most populous nation and
maintaining its status as the fastest-
growing major economy, continued
to witness growth in hydrocarbon
consumption in 2024-25. As the
world's third-largest oil consumer
and the second-largest coal producer
and consumer, the country's energy
demands are intrinsically linked

to its rapid industrialization and
urbanization. Government data
indicated a further rise in crude oil
consumption, although domestic
production efforts, including
enhanced exploration and the
coming online of new fields, aimed

to moderate the increase in import
dependency. Natural gas consumption
also continued its upward trend,
supported by expanding industrial use
and city gas distribution networks,
with both domestic production and
LNG imports playing crucial roles in
meeting this demand. The economy is
projected to hit another record in the
coming financial year.
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The coal sector in India maintained its
robust growth trajectory, driven by
the power sector's continued reliance
on thermal power and the expansion
of energy-intensive industries, such
as steel. Domestic coal production
continued to increase, driven by
ongoing reforms that facilitated
private sector participation and
enhanced logistical infrastructure for
evacuation. While imports remained
a part of the supply mix, the emphasis
on boosting indigenous production to
enhance energy saw major successes,
especially with coal imports beginning
toregister adownward trend by
2025. Policy initiatives focused

on streamlining land acquisition,
environmental clearances, and
railway connectivity for coal mines
contributed to this growth. The long-
term outlook for India's hydrocarbon
industry remains positive, aligned
with the nation's ambitious economic
growth targets and the ongoing
investments in infrastructure

and manufacturing. The focus on
enhancing domestic production
across the energy spectrum is a key
priority for ensuring energy security

’;and reducing reliance on imports.




Despite the global trade tensions,
the forecast for the Indian economy
in 2025-26 remains optimistic, with
most domestic and international
agencies projecting another year

of strong growth exceeding 6%.

This sustained momentum will

be driven by structural reforms,
growing industrialization and
favorable geopolitical alignments. The
government's policy directionin its
second year will be closely watched,
with expectations of continued
emphasis on deregulation, growth

in the manufacturing sector, and
further improvements in the ease of
doing business. The energy sector is
poised for continued growth, driven
by rising demand for oil and gas to
fuel economic activity. Domestic
hydrocarbon production is expected
to increase, supported by enhanced
output from new fields, improved
connectivity in the Northeast, and the
progressive exploration of previously
untapped offshore regions. While
India's renewable energy sector
continues to experience impressive
growth, contributing significantly

to the energy mix, coal is expected

to remain a critical component

of the nation's energy security in

the medium term, particularly in
meeting base-load power demand.
The focus on phasing down coal
imports and enhancing domestic
production will likely persist.
Similarly, the oil and gas sectors

will prioritize boosting domestic
output to cater to rising demand and
reduce import dependence, with
significant investments anticipated in
exploration and production activities.

Business Overview

Asian Energy Services Limited (also
referred to as ‘Asian Energy, ‘AESL
‘The Company’) has a well-established
legacy in seismic data acquisition. In
2024-25, the Company sustained
strong performance as it continued
to expand its footprint in design,
build, operations, and maintenance
(O&M) services across the energy
and mineral sectors. The Company's
diverse service portfolio caters to
both public sector giants, such as
ONGC, Oil India, CMPDIL, and Coal
India, as well as prominent private
players, including Vedanta Resources
and Oilmax Energy.

Building upon the successful
expansion of the Company in

several new sectors, such as mineral
infrastructure and O&M services,
the Company has made multiple
breakthroughs in the latter area. The
biggest is the acquisition of Kuiper
Group, an offshore drilling services
company based out of Dubai that
operates in a dozen countries across
the Middle East, North Africa and
Southeast Asia. A mix of debt and
equity funded the acquisition of the
Company and, as per norms and
regulations in the Middle East, came
with considerable working capital

to fund the company’s operations
and future expansion. The strategic
acquisition of Kuiper enables Asian
Energy not only to nearly double

its size but also gives the Company

a significant foothold to expand
O&M services across international
markets. The Company also made a
breakthrough in the O&M vertical
by winning a project to build and
operate a gas compressor for Assam
Gas Company Limited, a public sector
unit company under the Government

of Assam. This project expands Asian
Energy’s offerings to oil and gas
infrastructure projects. It would have
the benefit of eventually (upon the
completion of pipeline connectivity)
facilitating the sale of natural gas
produced across Upper Assam and
Arunachal Pradesh toward gas
consumption centres in the rest of
India.

The Company maintained robust
revenue and profitability throughout
the financial year, demonstrating
resilience in an equities market
battered by falling valuations.
Alongside the growth in the O&M
vertical, the Company made robust
progress across its core verticals as
well. It supplemented earlier projects
in Jharkhand and Telangana with
new projects in Karo and PKOCP

in both states, respectively, while
also continuing to make progress on
projects in Chhattisgarh. The O&M
vertical saw continued progress

in the fields of Oilmax Energy and
Vedanta, being operated by the
Company. Asian Energy also made
remarkable progress in the field of
seismic exploration by successfully
doing a survey project for Sun Petro
in Gujarat’s Khambhat, where the
Company successfully executed the
project in a tidal transition zone in
swampy coastal topography. Asian
Energy made substantial progress in
the PY-3 project, spearheaded by the
consortium led by Hardy Oil and Gas,
inthe Cauvery Basin. It is expected to
become fully operational in 2025-26.

Looking ahead, the key focus areas
for AESL will be to consolidate and
execute the large work orders and
projects the Company is currently
engaged in, while acquiring new
opportunities to maintain growth
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and expansion for the future. The
integration of the Company with
newly acquired Kuiper and the
execution of projects in the CHP
vertical will remain key focus areas
in 2025-26. AESL, alongside its
parent company, Oilmax Energy,
remains confident of major
opportunities on the horizon in
India’s upstream sector and looks
forward to expanding its activities
there as well. To conclude, the

past year has been one in which
the Company has lived up to its
vision of being a knowledge-driven
Organization pushing the frontiers
of the energy sector, not only

at home in India but also across
continents. It remains the best
partner and service provider for all
clients and partners anywhere, and
everywhere.

Statutory Reports

jp— (e
Financial Statements

Financial Overview (Consolidated)

Revenue from
Operations

AESLs revenue from
operations grew by
52% year-on-year,
reaching
% 46,503.81 Lakhs
in 2024-25, up from
% 30,506.48 Lakhs
in 2023-24.

Profit After Tax
(PAT)

The Company posted
a profit of
%4,216.36 Lakhs in
2024-25, marking a
65% increase over
% 2,554.75 Lakhs

reported in 2023-24.

Earnings per Share
(EPS)

The EPS improved to
%9.79in 2024-25,in
line with the Compa-
ny’s improved prof-
itability and stable
capital structure.

Key Ratios

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Debtors’ Turnover Ratio 2.07 1.93
Current Ratio 2.51 2.19
Operating Profit Margin 15.5% 14.0%
Net Profit Margin 9.1% 8.0%
Return on Net Worth 10.6% 9.0%
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Principal Risks and Mitigation Measures

Risk Category Risk Description

Non-compliance with environmental standards
could damage the Company’s reputation and
reduce long-term demand for coal, potentially
leading to lower coal prices.

Environmental

Competitive The growing number of seismic service provid-
ers may affect the Company’s ability to secure

new contracts.

Regulatory and Legal Operating across multiple jurisdictions exposes

? requirements.

g. the Company to varying legal and regulatory

Geopolitical factors, weather-related disrup-
tions, and the global shift toward renewable
energy sources pose operational and business
continuity risks.

Operational

Financial Exposure to debt, overhead costs, profitability
= ratios, and foreign exchange fluctuations, espe-

K cially those related to the Indian Rupee, could
impact the Company’s financial health.

Disruptions in procurement and logistics can
lead to raw material shortages, which in turn
impact project timelines and customer commit-
ments.

Supply Chain

&

Human Resources

Mitigation Strategy

The Company has implemented a comprehen-
sive Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE) poli-
cy, integrating strong environmental safeguards
across its coal operations.

The Company maintains a competitive edge
through strategic pricing, long-term client
relationships, and a proven record of successful
project delivery.

The Company’s legal team actively monitors reg-
ulatory changes and ensures strict compliance
with applicable laws and contractual obligations.

The Company has diversified into oil and gas,
coal, and O&M segments to mitigate concentra-
tion risks and capitalize on sustained demand
across sectors.

The Company continues to reduce debt, build
reserves, and improve operating efficiency, re-
sulting in a stronger balance sheet and enhanced
financial ratios.

The Company is actively strengthening its
supply chain to enhance agility, ensure material
availability, and support the timely execution of
contracts.

People continue to be the cornerstone
of operations, driving growth,
innovation, and execution excellence.
The organization remains focused

on building an enabling environment
that nurtures both personal and
professional development. Cross-
functional collaboration is actively
encouraged across levels to enhance
productivity and accelerate problem-
solving.

As of March 31, 2025, the total
employee strength stood at 375,
reflecting the organization’s
expanding scale and operational
footprint.

Diversity and inclusion are embedded
as core principles, with structured
efforts to promote gender balance
and equal opportunity. Policies are
routinely reviewed to eliminate
bias and foster a fair, respectful,

and growth-oriented workplace.

The human resource framework
emphasizes continuous improvement,
accountability, and leadership
development aligned with long-term
organizational objectives.

A culture of recognition and
motivation is fostered through
targeted engagement initiatives and
acknowledgment of individual and
team achievements. HR continues to
play a strategic role by aligning talent
capabilities with evolving business
priorities.

~ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Environment, Health
and Safety (EHS)

The Company is committed to the
highest standards of environment,
health, and safety. EHS considerations
are deeply embedded in its
operational framework, with strict
adherence to applicable regulations
and best practices. A strong

focus on preventive safety has

been maintained through routine
inspections, timely maintenance, and
rigorous implementation of Standard
Operating Procedures (SOPs) across
operational sites.

Internal Control
Systems

A comprehensive internal control
framework is in place to maintain
operational discipline, ensure
regulatory compliance, and promote
financial integrity throughout

the organization. These controls

are designed to provide effective
governance, safeguard assets, and
support the reliability of financial
reporting.

Oversight is provided by the Audit
Committee of the Board, which

Cautionary Statement

This Management Discussion

and Analysis contains ‘forward-
looking statements’ that reflect the
Company'’s current expectations,
objectives, projections, and
estimates, which may be subject

to the provisions of applicable
securities laws and regulations. These
statements are based on certain
assumptions and anticipated future
developments.
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Training programs were conducted
throughout the year to equip
employees with the knowledge and
awareness required to uphold safety;,
environmental, and quality standards.
The Company’s EHS systems are
geared not just toward compliance
but toward building a proactive safety
culture that protects people, assets,
and the environment. This approach
supports operational continuity and
reinforces stakeholder confidence.

conducts regular reviews to assess
the robustness and sustainability of
the internal control environment.
Recommendations for enhancement,
where needed, are promptly
addressed to align with evolving
business dynamics.

Internal financial controls related to
financial reporting were rigorously
evaluated throughout the year.

The review process reaffirmed
their adequacy and operational

However, actual outcomes may differ
materially from those expressed or
implied, owing to a variety of external
factors. These include, but are not
limited to, weather conditions, global
and domestic market dynamics,
fluctuations in raw material
availability and pricing, movements in
currency exchange rates, changes in
regulatory frameworks, tax policies,

s 0
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effectiveness, with no reportable
material weaknesses identified in
design or execution. The control
environment continues to evolve
proactively, supporting informed
decision-making and reinforcing
stakeholder confidence in the
governance structure.

political and economic conditions in
India and other markets where the
Company operates, as well as legal
proceedings and industrial relations.

The Company does not undertake
any obligation to update or revise
‘forward-looking statements’
contained herein, which may

be impacted by future events,
developments, or emerging
information.
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BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 32" annual report of Asian Energy Services Limited ('AESL' or ‘the Company')
along with its audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The consolidated performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries has been referred to wherever required.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized below:

( in lakhs)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from operations 46,503.81 30,506.48 46,408.24 30,506.40
Other Income 541.44 622.00 541.99 455.94
Total Revenue 47,045.25 31,128.48 46,950.23 30,962.34
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 5617.69 3,052.82 5,602.59 3,180.04
Exceptional items - (185.10) - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 5617.69 2,867.72 5,602.59 3,180.04
Tax expenses 1,401.33 312.97 1,398.65 309.74
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 4,216.36 2,554.75 4,103.94 2,870.30

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors are pleased to recommend dividend
@ 10% of the Face Value i.e, T 1/- per equity share (face
value of  10/- each) for the year under review subject to the
approval of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to
reserves out of the profits earned during the financial year
2024-25.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS / STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE
COMPANY:

There has been no change in the nature of business of your
Company during the Financial Year 2024-25. Our Company
is engaged as a service provider to the energy and mineral
sectors, offering end-to-end services which extends across
the value chain, including geophysical data acquisition,
material handling, coal handling, operation and maintenance
('0&M").

We are one amongst the few companies in India providing
end-to-end services in the upstream oil segment, across
the value chain. The Company specializes in servicing the
value chain entirely, right from seismic data acquisition, data
analysis, building oil & gas facility to undertaking the O&M of
production facilities.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Pursuanttothe provisions of section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘'the Act') read with the rules framed thereunder,
a Statement containing the salient features of the financial
Statements of your Company's subsidiaries and associates
in form AOC-1 is annexed as Annexure A and forms a part
of the financial statement. The statement provides the
details of performance and financial position of each of the
subsidiaries and associates. In accordance with section 136
of the Act, the Audited financial statements, including the
consolidated financial statement, audited accounts of all the
subsidiaries and other documents attached thereto.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has 5 (Five) subsidiaries, 1 (one) step down
subsidiary and 4 (four) joint ventures as on March 31, 2025.

There has been no material change in the nature of business
of the subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the operations
of all the subsidiaries (including one step down subsidiary)
viz. Asian Qilfield & Energy Services DMCC, AOSL Petroleum
Pte. Ltd., AOSL Energy Services Limited, Optimum Oil & Gas
Private Limited, Cure Multitrade Private Limited and Ivorene
Oil Services Nigeria Ltd (step down subsidiary) and four joint
ventures viz. Zuberi Asian Joint Venture, AESL FFIL Joint
Venture, Asian Indwell Joint Venture and Asian Oilmax Joint
Venture.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED




Corporate Overview

BOARD'S REPORT (Contd.)

In terms of section 136 of the Act, the financial statements
of the Company, consolidated financial statements along
with relevant documents and separate audited accounts in
respect of subsidiaries, are also kept at the registered office
of the Company and are available on the website of the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES GIVEN,
SECURITIES PROVIDED, AND INVESTMENTS MADE:

Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments
made during the year, as required under section 186 of the
Act and schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI LODR' or 'Listing Regulations'),
are provided in the notes 7 to 9 of the standalone financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Your Company has historically adopted the practice of
undertaking related party transactions only in the ordinary
and normal course of business and at arm's length as part
of its philosophy of adhering to highest ethical standards,
transparency, and accountability. In line with the provisions
of the Act and SEBI LODR, the Company has a policy for
related party transactions which is also available on the
website of the Company (www.asianenergy.com).

All the related party transactions are placed for prior
approval of the audit committee as well as the shareholders
for transactions which are material in nature.

All related party transactions that were entered into during
the financial year were on arm'’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of Company's business. Disclosure of
Related Party Transactions, which are material in nature, as
required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in form AOC-2
enclosed to this report as Annexure B.

Related party transactions under Accounting Standard —
AS-18 are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of their knowledge and information and based
on the information and explanations provided to them by the
Company, your Directors make the following statement in
terms of section 134(5) of the Act:

a. that in preparation of the annual accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material
departures from the same;

b. that the Directors have selected such accounting

policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
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prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for
that period;

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d. that the directors have prepared the annual accounts
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 on a going
concern basis.

e. They have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

f.  They have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Mr. Aman Garg retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Aman Garg (DIN: 10415263) was appointed as Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. May 03, 2024
and Mr. Anil Kumar Jha (DIN: 06645361) was appointed as
Independent Director w.e.f. May 14, 2024.

There has been no other change in the directors and key
managerial personnel during the year under review since the
last report. Detailed information on the directors is provided
in the Corporate Governance Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received necessary declaration from all
Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they
meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6)
of the Act as well as under regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR.
There has been no change in the circumstances, which may
affect their status as independent director during the year.

BOARD EVALUATION:

The Board of directors have carried out an annual evaluation
of its own performance, Board committees, and individual
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the
corporate governance requirements as prescribed by the
SEBI LODR.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board,
after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis
of criteria such as the board composition and structure,
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effectiveness of Board processes, information and
functioning, etc. as provided by the guidance note on Board
evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ('SEBI') on January 05, 2017.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the
Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on
the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

The Board and the nomination and remuneration committee
reviewed the performance of individual directors on the basis
of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director
to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on
the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance
of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole
and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into
account the views of executive directors and non-executive
directors. The same was discussed in the Board meeting
that followed the meeting of the independent directors,
at which the performance of the Board, its committees,
and individual directors was also discussed. Performance
evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire
Board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS:

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI LODR, the
Company has put in place a familiarization program for
the independent directors to familiarize them with their
role, rights and responsibilities as directors, the working
of the Company, nature of the industry in which the
Company operates, business model, etc. The details of
the familiarization program are explained in corporate
governance report.

The familiarization program for the independent directors is
placed on the website of the Company at www.asianenergy.
com.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive,
non-executive and independent directors to maintain the
independence of the Board and separate its functions
of governance and management. The details of Board
and committee composition, tenure of directors, areas of
expertise and other details are available in the corporate
governance report that forms part of this Annual Report.

The policy of the Company on directors' appointment
and remuneration, including the criteria for determining

qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director
and other matters, as required under sub-section (3) of
Section 178 of the Act, is available on our website at www.
asianenergy.com.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS
COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Company met 5 (five) times
during the year on May 05, 2024, August 12, 2024, August
27, 2024, November 12, 2024, and February 12, 2025 to
deliberate on various matters. The details of the meetings
of the Board and its committees held during the year are
stated in the corporate governance report forming part of
this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY,
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

There have been no material changes and commitments
which affect the financial position of the Company that have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which the
financial statements relate and the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI LODR,
the management Discussion and analysis has been given
separately and forms part of this report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY:

The Company's Internal Financial Controls (IFC') is
commensurate with the size and operations of the business
andisin line with the requirements of the Act. This framework
includes well-documented policies, procedures and
Standard Operating Procedures (‘'SOP"), specific to respective
processes. Regular management review processes evaluate
various policies for the dynamic and evolving business
environment. Furthermore, our internal auditors undertake
rigorous testing of the control environment of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (‘CSR’):

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, (‘'CSR Rules') the Board of Directors of your
Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
committee chaired by Mr. Nayan Mani Borah, Independent
Director. Other Members of the Committee are Mr. Mukesh
Jain, Non-executive Director and Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia,
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Non-Executive Director. Your Company also has in place a
CSR Policy which is available at www.asianenergy.com.

Your Company's CSR activities include promoting education,
healthcare, eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition,
empowering women and rural development projects. The
Annual Report on CSR activities and expenditure, as required
under sections 134 and 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is provided as Annexure C.

SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTH:

The Company's commitment to excellence in health and
safety is embedded in the Company's core values. The
Company has a stringent policy of 'safety for all’, which
drives all employees to continuously break new ground
in safety management for the benefit of people, property,
environment and the communities where we operate on
sites.

The Company respects human rights, values its employees
and the communities that it interfaces with. The Company
is aware of the environmental impact of its operations, and
it continually strives to reduce such impact by investing in
technologies and solutions for economic growth.

The Company considers safety, environment and health as
the management responsibility. Regular employee training
programs are in place throughout the Company on safety,
environment and health and has well identified and widely
covered safety management system in place for ensuring,
not only the safety of employees but surrounding population
of the project sites as well.

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL
OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment
at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the
workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
The policy aims to provide protection to employees at the
workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual
harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto,
with the objective of providing a safe working environment,
where employees feel secure.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual
harassment during the financial year 2024-25.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

We have embodied the mechanism in the code of conduct
of the Company for employees to report concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of our code of conduct. This mechanism also provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct
access to the chairman of the audit committee in exceptional
cases and no personnel have been denied access to the audit
committee. The Board and audit committee are informed
periodically on the cases reported, if any, and the status of
resolution of such cases.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant and material orders which have
been passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and
its future operations.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:

As per SEBI LODR, corporate governance report with a
certificate from Practicing Company Secretary (‘PCS’)
thereon and management discussion and analysis are
attached, which form part of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

The human resource plays a vital role in the growth and
success of an organization. The Company has maintained
cordial and harmonious relations with employees across
various locations.

The Company continuously invest in attraction, retention
and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number of
programs that provide focused people attention are currently
underway. Your Company's thrust is on the promotion of
talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest
on deposits from public, was outstanding or unpaid as on
the date of the balance sheet.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under section 134(3)(m) of the
Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, are:
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Conservation of Energy NIL
b.  Technology Absorption NIL
c. Foreign exchange earning & outgo
(% in Lakhs)
Sr. | Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
No.
a. |Foreign Exchange
earnings
Consultancy Services -- --
Dividend -- -
Interest on loan to -- --
Subsidiary
b. |Foreign Exchange outgo
towards
Repairs and Maintenance 118.01 133.94
Rent 14.13 --
Machinery Hire Charges 637.06 --
Equipment Purchased 839.53 -
Consumable Items 114.39 604.73
License Expenses 3.78 5.05
Membership and 2.90 272
subscription charges
Consultancy 136.27 32.05
Custom Clearance charges 8.86 7.29

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION:

The i
read

nformation required under section 197(12) of the Act
with Rule 5 (2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is

provi

ded in the Annexure D forming part of the Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

M

Statutory Auditors:

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co., Chartered Accountants
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company held in the year 2020 for second term for a
period of 5 years till the conclusion of the ensuing AGM
to be held in year 2025.

Further, as per the provisions of section 139(2), a listed
company shall not appoint or re-appoint an audit firm
as auditor for more than two terms of five consecutive
years. Accordingly, the tenure of M/s. Walker Chandiok
& Co. will come to an end in the ensuing AGM of the
Company.

Now, it is proposed to appoint M/s. SGCO & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a term of five consecutive years from
conclusion of ensuing 32nd Annual General Meeting till

@)

the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting to
be held in the year 2030. The appointment is subject
to the approval of members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

Pursuant to section 141 of the Act, the statutory
auditors have represented that they are not disqualified
and continue to be eligible to act as the auditor of the
Company.

Statutory Auditor's Report

The Statutory Auditors have issued an Audit Report with
unmodified opinion on Standalone and Consolidated
Results for the period ended March 31, 2025.

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Act
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of
directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Hemanshu
Kapadia of Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries to undertake the secretarial audit
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025. The
secretarial audit Report is annexed as Annexure E.

The following observations were noted by the
Secretarial Auditors:

i.  Intimation of Declaration of unmodified opinion
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 was
filed with delay.

i.  XBRL intimation for appointment of Mr. Aman
Garg as Non-executive, non- independent Director
was filed with delay. However, intimation in PDF
mode was filed in due time.

Management's Response:

The Company regrets the inadvertent delay in filing of
the above-mentioned submissions. Going forward, the
Company will ensure that the documents are submitted
within the prescribed timelines.

Cost records and cost audit:

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost
audit as prescribed under the provisions of section 148
of the Act are not applicable for the business activities
carried out by the Company.

Reporting of frauds by auditors:

During the year under review, neither the statutory
auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the
audit committee, under Section 143(12) of the Act, any
instances of fraud committed against the Company by
its officers or employees, the details of which would
need to be mentioned in the Board's report.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Share Capital:

The paid-up equity share capital as on March 31, 2025
was ¥ 44.77 Crores. During the year under review,
38,50,000 convertible warrants were converted into
equity shares. Accordingly, the paid-up equity share
capital increased from ¥ 40.92 Crores to % 44.77 Crores.
The Company has not issued shares with differential
voting rights.

Employees’ Stock Option Plan:

Your Company has instituted various employees' stock
options plans from time to time to motivate and reward
employees. The ESOP compensation committee
administers these plans. The stock option plans are
in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended from time to
time. ('Employee Benefits Regulations').

The members at their meeting held on September 27,
2021 and through Postal Ballot passed on March 16,
2024 had approved the Asian Energy Services Limited
- Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021 (“AESL ESOP
2021") & Asian Energy Services Limited - Employee
Stock Option Plan — 2024 ("AESL ESOP 2024")
respectively (“together referred to as “ESOP Plans")
authorizing grant of not exceeding 3,80,744 (Three Lakh
Eighty Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-four) options to
the eligible employees under each plan.

Details of AESL ESOP 2021 are as follows:

Options granted during FY 2022-23 3,380,000
Un-granted Options as on March 31, 744
2023

Total 380,744
Options exercised during FY 2023-24 1,09,183
Options exercised during FY 2024-25 2,00,643
Total Options lapsed during FY 2024- 70174
25

Options re-granted during FY 2024-25 70,231
Un-granted Options as on March 31, 687
2025

Options outstanding as on March 31, 70,231
2025

Under AESL ESOP 2024, 3,80,744 stock options were
granted to the employees on January 25, 2025. Since,
the options have not yet been vested, no options were
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exercised under AESL ESOP 2024 as on March 3T,
2025.

Appropriate disclosure prescribed under the said
Regulations with regard to the ESOP Plans is available
on the Company's website at www.asianenergy.com.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with all the applicable
provisions of secretarial standards — 1 and secretarial
standards — 2 relating to 'Meetings of the Board of
Directors' and 'General Meetings', respectively issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. ('ICSI')

Annual Return:

Pursuant to section 92(3) and section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, the Company has placed a copy of the annual
return as at March 31, 2025 on its website at www.
asianenergy.com.

Other Disclosures:

Your directors state that disclosure or reporting is not
required in respect of the following items as there were
no transactions relating to these items during the year
under review:

a) issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

b) details relating to deposits covered under chapter
V of the Act.

c) voting rights which are not directly exercised
by the employees in respect of shares for the
subscription / purchase of which loan was given
by the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant
to which such persons can beneficially hold
shares as envisaged under section 67(3)(c) of the
Act).

d) the details of application made or any proceeding
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with
their status as at the end of the financial year.

e) the details of difference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of one-time settlement
and the valuation done while taking loan from
the banks or financial institutions along with the
reasons thereof.
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Acknowledgement:

The Board places on record its deep appreciation for the continued support received from various clients, vendors,
suppliers and technical partners, bankers, government authorities, employees at all levels and stakeholders, in furthering
the interest of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Asian Energy Services Limited

Nayan Mani Borah

Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: August 12, 2025 DIN: 00489006
| 28 | ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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FORM AOC-1

o (e
Financial Statements

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures.

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Act read with Rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Part “A": Subsidiaries

(Amount in %)

SI. | Particulars Name of the Subsidiary
No. Asian Oilfield & AOSL AOSL Energy | Optimum Oil Cure Ivorene Oil
Energy Services Petroleum Services & Gas Private Multitrade Services
DMCC Pte. Ltd. Limited Limited Private Nigeria
Limited Limited
1. Kind of Subsidiary Wholly Owned | Wholly Owned Wholly Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary's
Subsidiary Subsidiary Owned Subsidiary
Subsidiary
2. The date since when July 30,2012 July 23,2008 September | November 30, October 03, October 03,
subsidiary was acquired 29,2018 2019 2022 2022
3. Reporting period for the NA NA NA NA NA NA
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding
company's reporting period
4. Reporting currency and Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting
Exchange rate as on the last Currency USS | Currency USS | Currency INR | Currency INR | Currency INR Currency
date of the relevant Financial | Exchange rates | Exchange rate® Nigerian Naira
year in the case of foreign Exchange
subsidiaries. rate’
5. Share capital 8,54,20,000 62,784 1,00,000 1,00,000 40,00,000 5,60,000
6. Reserves & surplus (9,21,37,600) (22,03,08,003) (8,75,450) 42,02,670 21,34,703 2,47,481
7. Total assets 11,0497,176 6,31,254 97,750 311,428 65,38,348 97,694,042
8. Total liabilities 11,88,90,802 2,20,876,473 8,73,200 44,13,756 4,03,636 9,68,86,561
9. Investments NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
10. | Turnover NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
11. | Profit/ (Loss) before taxation | (5,07,61,860) (13,320,395) (91,873) (57,354) 9,51,055 1,44,055
12. | Provision for taxation NIL NIL NIL NIL (2,64,096) (4,329)
13. | Profit/ (Loss) after taxation (5,07,61,860) (13,320,395) (91,873) (57,354) 6,86,959 1,39,726
14. | Proposed Dividend NA NA NA NA NA NA
15. | % of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 4% 51% 51%
Notes:
1.  Reporting period and reporting currency of the above subsidiaries is the same as that of the Company.
2. Investments exclude investments in subsidiaries.
3. Exchange rate for Balance Sheet and profit & Loss Account items is USD =¥ 85.42
4. Exchange rate for Naira= % 0.056

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Act related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures:

Sl. | Particulars Name of Joint Ventures/Associates
No. Zuberi Asian Joint AESL FFIL Joint | Asian Indwell Joint | Asian Oilmax Joint
Venture Venture Venture Venture

1. Description of how there is Joint Venture Joint Venture Joint Venture Joint Venture
influence

2. Date on which the Associate or May 04, 2022 October 20, 2022 March 13, 2024 January 22, 2024
Joint Venture was associated
or acquired

3. Extent of Holding % 49% 49% 80% 70%

4 Latest Audited Balance sheet March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
date

5 Revenue ¥29,01,84,000 % 44,08,79,000 %1,19,67,13,000 ¥ 1,84,05,000

6. Profit/(Loss) for the year ¥ 1,39,02,000 % 1,85,87,000 ¥6,73,81,000 ¥11,53,000

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — N.A.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. — N.A.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of

Asian Energy Services Limited

Nayan Mani Borah Kapil Garg Nirav Talati Shweta Jain

Chairman Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN: 00489006 DIN: 01360843 ACS - 23368

Place: Mumbai

Date:

August 12,2025

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

The Company has not entered into any arrangement or transaction which is not at the arm's length basis. Thus, this

disclosure is NOT APPLICABLE.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Sr. | Name(s) of the Nature of contracts/
No. |related party and arrangements/
nature of relationship | transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including
the value, if any

Date(s) of approval,
if any

1. | Zuberi-Asian Joint Sub-contract of work
Venture for Hura Project.

Sub-contract of work
for RG OC Project.

2. AESL FFIL Joint
Venture

Sub-contract of work
for Karo Project,
Rajmahal Project and
PK OC Project.

3. Asian Indwell Joint
Venture

The transaction pertains to the contract
awarded by Eastern Coalfields Limited
("ECL") to JV and JV has sub-contracted
certain work to the Company. The
Estimated value of the transaction of the
sub-contract project is ¥ 116 Crores.

The transaction pertains to the contract
awarded by The Singareni Collieries
Company Limited (“SCCL") to JV and JV
has sub-contracted certain work to the
Company. The Estimated value of the
transaction of the sub-contract project is
T 172 Crores.

The transaction pertains to the following
contracts awarded to JV by:

1. "CCL"-Karo Project having estimated
value of ¥ 225.09 Crores.

2. "ECL"- Rajmahal Project having
estimated value of ¥ 19.80 Crores.

3. "SCCL"- PK OC Project having
estimated value of ¥ 157.71 Crores.

The JV has sub-contracted certain work
of Projects 1,2 & 3 to the Company.

January 04, 2025

January 04, 2025

January 04, 2025

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Asian Energy Services Limited

Kapil Garg
Managing Director
DIN: 01360843

Nayan Mani Borah
Chairman
DIN: 00489006

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Nirav Talati
Chief Financial Officer
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities of Asian Energy Services Limited.

[Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY-

Asian Energy Services Limited ("AESL") has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance
with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
and the amendments thereto. Pursuant to provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has also
formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which is available on the website of the Company at www.asianenergy.
com.

CSRis essentially a way of conducting business responsibly and AESL shall endeavour to conduct its business operations
and activities in a socially responsible and sustainable manner at all times. As per broad objectives of the Policy, CSR
activities are being implemented in project/ program mode, in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act.

COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

AESL has constituted a CSR Committee of the Board in compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereafter
referred to as Section 135). The members constituting the Committee as on March 31, 2025 have been listed below:

Sr. | Name of Director Designation | Number of Meetings of CSR Number of Meetings of CSR

No. Committee held during the year Committee attended during the year
1. | Mr. Nayan Mani Borah Chairman 1 1

2. | Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia Member 1 1

3. Mr. Mukesh Jain Member 1 1

During the financial year under review, the CSR Committee meeting held on August 12, 2024, which was attended by all the
committee members. In addition to the meeting, two circular resolutions were passed during the year to address matters
requiring approval.

PROVIDE THE WEBLINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY
THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY:

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the same is placed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same is www.asianenergy.com.

PROVIDE THE DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE
(3) OF RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY), RULES 2014, IF APPLICABLE
(ATTACH THE REPORT):

Not applicable for the financial year 2024-25.

DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET OFF FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY:

Sr. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be set off for
No. preceding financial year (in %) financial year, if any (in 3)
1 2024-25 NIL NIL

Total NIL NIL

PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE:
a) AVERAGE NET PROFIT FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS:

The average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years calculated in terms of section 198 as provided
in Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 was % 2,211.15 Lakhs.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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b) PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE:
In terms of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the recommended CSR expenditure during the financial year 2024-
25 of AESL was % 46.22 Lakhs.

c) AMOUNT SPENT:
During the financial year 2024-25, AESL has spent entire aforesaid budget amounting to ¥ 46.22 Lakhs on various

social development activities, thereby fulfilling its commitment of spending 2% on CSR activities.

d) AMOUNT UNSPENT: Nil

Sr. | Particulars Amount (in Lakhs)

No.

a. | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 46.22

b. | Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or Programs or Activities of the previous NIL
financial years

c. | Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any NIL

d. | Total CSR Obligation for the Financial Year 2024-25 46.22

7. (A) CSR AMOUNT SPENT OR UNSPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in )

spent_for the  Total amount transferred to unspent | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
financial year | CSR Account as per section 135(6) | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5)

(in3) Amount Date of Transfer | Name of fund Amount Date of Transfer
% 46.22 Lakhs| Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

(B) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST ON-GOING PROJECTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

Q)] 2 3 4 (5 (6) ™ (8 9 (10) aamn
SR Name | Item from | Local Location of the | Project | Amount | Amount | Amount Mode of Mode of
No. of the | thelistof | Area project Duration| allocated | spent | transferred | Implementation - implementation —
Project | activities | (Yes/No) for the inthe | tounspent Direct Through implementing
in pr_oject current CSR (Yes/No) agency.
schedule State | District (in%) | financial| Account Name CSR
VIl to the year for the Registration
Act project as Number
per section
135(6)
(in3)
1. Not Applicable
(C) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST OTHER THAN ONGOING PROJECTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR:
(1) (2 (3 4) (5 (6) 0] (8)
SR |Name of the Items from the | Local, Location of Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No. | project list of activities| area project spent for the implementation| through implementation
in schedule VIl | Y/N project -Direct agency
to the act. State | District | (% In Lakhs) (Yes/No) Name CSR
Registration
Number
1 Development Promoting -- -- -- 25 No 24-7 ASK | CSR00042991.
of women & Education & Foundation
children in Health care
the fields of
Education,
Health & Sports,
Infrastructure
(rural &urban)
and more
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M (2 3) 4) (5 (6) ™ (8
SR | Name of the Items from the | Local| Location of Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No. | project list of activities| area project spent for the implementation| through implementation
in schedule VIl | Y/N project -Direct agency
to the act. State | District | (% In Lakhs) (Yes/No) Name CSR
Registration
Number
2 Development Promoting -- - -- 20 No Sangini | CSR00056513.
of women & Education & Saheli by PB
children in Health care
the fields of
Education and
Health
TOTAL 45

(D) AMOUNT SPENT IN ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD: 1.26 Lakhs
(E) AMOUNT SPENT ON IMPACT ASSESSMENT, IF APPLICABLE: NIL
(F) TOTAL AMOUNT SPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR: % 46.26 Lakhs
(G) EXCESS AMOUNT FOR SET OFF, IF ANY: NIL
8. (A) DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL YEARS:

There are no unspent CSR amount from the preceding three financial years

SR | Preceding |/Amount transferred | Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund Amount remaining

No. |Financial [to Unspent CSR in the reporting | specified under Schedule Vil as to be spent in
Year Account under Financial year per section 135(6), if any succeeding Financial
Section 135 (6) (in %) | (X In Lakhs) Name of | Amount @ Date of year (in %)
the Fund (in%) transfer
1 2023-24
2 2022-23 Not Applicable
3 2021-22

(B) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR FOR ONGOING PROJECTS OF THE PRECEDING
FINANCIAL YEARS(S): Not Applicable.

SR | Project ID |Name of Project Total amount Amount spent | Cumulative |Status of the project-
No. The project | Duration | allocated for the | on the project amount Completed/Ongoing
project (in %) in the reporting | spent at the
financial year end of the

(in%) reporting
Financial
Year (in %)
1 Not Applicable

9. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Through this report, AESL seeks to communicate its commitment towards CSR to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The
Implementation and Monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policies as laid down in this report.
The Board and the CSR Committee is responsible for the integrity and the objectivity of all the information provided in the
disclosure above. All projects reported have been selected based on careful evaluation of the extent to which they create
sustainable positive outcomes for the marginalized segment in the society. The Company has adopted measures to
ensure that these projects are implemented in an effective and efficient manner so that they are able to deliver maximum
potential impact.

The CSR Committee and the Board ensures that the funds disbursed have been utilized for the purposes and in the
manner as approved by it and same is certified by the Chief Financial Officer.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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10. IN CASE OF CREATION OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSETS, FURNISH THE DETAILS RELATING TO THE ASSETS SO
CREATED OR ACQUIRED THROUGH CSR SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR (ASSET-WISE DETAILS): NOT APPLICABLE

(a) Date of acquisition of the capital asset(s): Nil

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital assets: Nil

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital assets is registered, their
address etc.: Nil

(d) Provide details of the capital assets(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital
assets): Nil

11. SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PERCENT OF THE NET PROFIT AS PER
SECTION 135(5): There is no unspent amount during the financial year 2024-25.

Dr. Kapil Garg Mr. Nayan Mani Borah
Managing Director Chairman, CSR Committee

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2025
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Disclosures required with respect to section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year:

Name of the Directors Ratio to median
Remuneration

Non-executive Directors* :

Mr. Nayan Mani Borah --
Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia --
Ms. Anusha Mehta -
Mr. Mukesh Jain -
Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal --
Mr. Anil Kumar Jha --
Mr. Aman Garg -
Executive Directors:

Dr. Kapil Garg 31.4:1

*Only sitting fees is paid to Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors, hence no ratio is worked out.

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary in the financial year:

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary % Increase in remuneration
in the financial year

Mr. Nayan Mani Borah= -

Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia* -

Ms. Anusha Mehta* --

Dr. Kapil Garg# --

Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal* -

Mr. Mukesh Jain* --

Mr. Anil Kumar Jhax* --

Mr. Aman Garg# -~

Mr. Nirav Talati, Chief Financial Officer 21.57%

Ms. Shweta Jain, Company Secretary 20.12%

*The disclosures with respect to increase in salary and median are not given as there is no increase in the sitting fees for
the meetings attended by the Directors.

#The detail has not been provided as no remuneration was paid to Dr. Kapil Garg in the previous financial year.
c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year. 14.31%

d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 375

e. Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: There were no
such employees who are not Directors but received remuneration in excess of highest paid Director during FY 2024-25.

f.  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The Company affirms remuneration
is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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ANNEXURE E TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial year ended March 31, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members

Asian Energy Services Limited

CIN L23200MH1992PLC318353

3B, 3rd Floor, Omkar Esquare,

Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern Express Highway,
Sion (East), Mumbai 400 022

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Asian Energy Services Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company"). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March
31, 2025 (“the Audit Period") complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance - mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025,
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the rules
made thereunder,;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

("SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
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(vi)

and External Commercial Borrowings (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (“SEBI Act"): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2017;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021(Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing
with the client (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period).

And the following industry specific laws as informed by

the Management of the Company:

a. Oil Industry Safety Directorate (OISD) guidelines;

b. Directorate General of Mines Safety (DGMS)
— Standards and Circulars, including the Mines
Act, 1952; Mines Rules, 1955; Mines Vocational
Training Rules, 1966; Central Electricity Authority
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Rules, 2023; Qil Mines Regulations (OMR), 2017,
and DGMS Circulars.

c. Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change (MOEF&CC) and State Pollution
Control Board — Guidelines and Standards
for Environmental Clearance (EC), Consent to
Establish (CTE), and Consent to Operate (CTO).

d. Petroleum and Explosives Safety Organization
(PESO) - Acts, Standards, Regulations, and
Guidelines, including PESO Rules, 2002; PESO Act,
1934; Explosives Act, 1884; and Explosives Rules,
2008.

e. Inter-state migrant workmen (Regulation of
Employment & Condition of Service) Act 1979
and central rules framed thereof .

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India;

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above except the following
observations in relation to disclosure under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015:

ii.  Intimation of Declaration of unmodified opinion for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 was filed with
delay.

iv. ~ XBRL intimation for appointment of Mr. Aman Garg as
Non-executive, non- independent Director was filed
with delay. However, intimation in PDF mode was filed
in due time.

During the period under review, the Company has complied

with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company
is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate noticeis given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed
by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were carried
through with requisite majority and no dissenting views have
been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, there were no

instances of:

(i) Public/Rights issue of shares / debentures/sweat
equity;

(i) Redemption / buy-back of securities;

(i) Merger /amalgamation /reconstruction, etc.;

(iv) Foreign technical collaborations.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Hemanshu Kapadia
Proprietor

C.P. No.: 2285, Mem No.:
F3477

UDIN: FO03477G001019162
P/R no: 1620/2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2025

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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ANNEXURE A

To,
The Members,

Asian Energy Services Limited

CIN L23200MH1992PLC318353

3B, 3rd Floor, Omkar Esquare,

Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern Express Highway,
Sion (East), Mumbai 400022

Our report of even date is to be read along with the letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Hemanshu Kapadia

Proprietor

C.P.No.: 2285; Mem No.: F3477

Place: Mumbai UDIN: FO03477G001019162
Date: August 12, 2025 P/R no: 1620/2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[As per Regulation 34(3) read along with Schedule V(C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations")]

1.

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance
envisages working towards high level of transparency,
accountability, consistent value systems, delegation,
across all facets of its operations leading to sharply
focused and operationally efficient growth.

The Company emphasizes the need for highest level of
transparency and accountability in all its transactions in
order to protect the interests of all its stakeholders. The
Board considers itself as a trustee of its shareholders
and acknowledges its responsibilities towards them for
creation and safeguarding their wealth on sustainable
basis.

The Management promotes honest and ethical conduct
of the business along with complying with applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Management's commitment to these principles
is reinforced through the adherence of all Corporate
Governance practices which forms part of the
Regulation Nos. 17 to 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended from time to time [‘Listing Regulations’].

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

i.  TheBoard of Directors have ultimate responsibility
for the management, general affairs, direction,
performance and long-term success of business
as a whole.

i. The Board of your Company has a good and
diverse mix of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors including Independent Directors and
the same is also in line with the applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations'). The
profile of the Directors can be accessed on our
website at www.asianenergy.com .

iii. The Board as part of its succession planning
exercise, periodically reviews its composition to
ensure that the same is closely aligned with the
strategy and long-term needs of the Company.

V.

Vi.

Vii.

As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised of
8 (Eight) Directors consisting of a non-executive
independent chairperson, one Managing Director,
three non-executive non-independent directors
and three independent directors including one-
woman director. The composition of the Board
is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act").

Independent Directors are non-executive directors
as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149(6)
of the Act. The maximum tenure of independent
directors is in compliance with the Act. All the
Independent Directors have confirmed that they
meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
read with Section 149(6) of the Act. None of the
Independent Directors have any other material
pecuniary relationship or transaction with the
Company, its Promoters, or Directors, or Senior
Management which, in their judgment, would
affect their independence.

Disclosure of relationships between directors
inter-se.

Dr. Kapil Garg, Managing Director of the Company
is Father of Mr. Aman Garg, Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

The names and categories of the Directors on the
Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held
duringtheyearandthenumberof Directorshipsand
Committee Chairmanships/Memberships held by
them in other public companies as on March 31,
2025 are given herein below. Other directorships
do not include directorships of private limited
companies, foreign companies and companies
under Section 8 of the Act. Chairmanships/
Memberships of Board Committees only include
Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Name of Director|Category of Attendance | Attendanceat| No. of Directorship in No. of Committee Directorship in other
Director at Board the last AGM | other public companies | positions held in other listed entities
Meeting (September public companies
25, 2024) - - -
Chairperson | Director | Chairperson | Member
Nayan Mani Independent 5/5 Yes --- --- --- --- ---
Borah, Chairman |Non-Executive
DIN: 00489006
Rabi Narayan Non-Executive 5/5 Yes - 3 1 2 1. MAN Industries
Bastia Professional (India) Ltd —
DIN: 05233577 Independent
Director.
2. Akanksha
Power And
Infrastructure
Limited -
Independent
Director
Anusha Mehta  |Non-Executive 4/5 Yes -—- -—- -—- -—- -—-
DIN: 07648883 |Independent
Mukesh Jain Non-Executive 5/5 Yes - 5 1 6 1. Sunteck Realty
DIN: 01316027 |Professional Limited —
Independent
Director
Kapil Garg Managing 5/5 Yes - - —- -
DIN: 01360843 |Director
Brij Mohan Non-Executive 5/5 Yes --- 3 - 5 1. Kothari
Bansal Independent Petrochemicals
DIN: 00261063 Limited —
Independent
Director.
2. Inox Green
Energy Services
Limited -
Independent
Director.
3. Inox Wind
Limited -
Independent
Director.
Aman Gargx Non-Executive 4/5 Yes - -—- --- - -—=
DIN: 10415263  |Professional
Anil Kumar Jha** Non-Executive 3/6 Yes 5 1 2 1. India Power
DIN: 06645361  |Independent Corporation
Limited —
Independent
Director

viii. The Company annually obtains from each Director, details of the Board and Board Committee positions he/ she occupies
in other Companies, and changes if any regarding their Directorships.

ix.  Five (5) Board meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty
days. The dates on which the said meetings were held:

May 03, 2024; August 12, 2024, August 27, 2024; November 12, 2024 and February 12, 2025.
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

*Appointed as a Director w.e.f. May 14, 2024.

*+*Appointed as a Director w.e.f. May 03, 2024.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Xi.

Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

Skills/ expertise/ competencies of the Board:

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the
Company which are currently available with the Board and the details of Directors who have such skills/expertise/

competency are as under:

Sr. | Skills/expertise/competencies required in context of the

Directors possessing such skill/
expertise/competencies

No. | Company's business

i, Knowledge on Company's businesses, policies and culture major | Mr. Nayan Mani Borah
risks/threats and potential opportunities and knowledge of the | Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia

industry in which the Company operates.

Dr. Kapil Garg

Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal
Mr. Anil Kumar Jha
Mr. Aman Garg

ii. Behavioural skills - attributes and competencies to use their| Mr. Nayan Mani Borah
knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the growth of the | Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia

Company.

Mrs. Anusha Mehta

ii. | Business Strategy, Corporate Governance, Administration, Decision | Mr- Mukesh Jain

Making.

Dr. Kapil Garg

Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal
Mr. Anil Kumar Jha
Mr. Aman Garg

iv. | Financial and Management skills, knowledge of law, Insurance, | Mr. Nayan Mani Borah

Project management, human resource management, CSR etc.

Mrs. Anusha Mehta
Mr. Mukesh Jain
Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal

v. | Technical/Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation | Mr. Nayan Mani Borah

to Company's business

Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia
Dr. Kapil Garg

Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal
Mr. Anil Kumar Jha

Confirmation regarding Independent Directors:

Based on the annual declaration of independence
received from the Independent Directors, all
the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions
specified in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and are independent of the management of the
Company.

During the year, Mr. Aman Garg (Non- Executive
Director) and Mr. Anil Kumar Jha (Independent
Director) were appointed w.e.f. May 03, 2024 and
May 14, 2024 respectively.

During the year 2024-25, information as
mentioned in Schedule Il Part A of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 to the extent it is applicable and
relevant, has been placed before the Board for its
consideration.

The terms and conditions of appointment of
the independent directors are disclosed on the
website of the Company at www.asianenergy.
com.

During the year, one meeting of the Independent
Directors was held on February 12, 2025. The
Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the

XV.

XVi.

performance of non-independent directors,
Chairman of the Company and the Board as a
whole and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information to the Board for
its effective performance of duties.

The Board periodically reviews Compliance
Reports in respect of various laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

The Company has conducted familiarisation
programmes for the Independent Directors
regarding their roles, rights and responsibilities as
Independent Directors and updated from time to
time. The Independent Directors are also regularly
briefed about the energy and mineral sectors and
Oilfield industry as a whole, nature and scope of the
activities of the Company, competition prevailing
therein and the Company's future forward
looking plans with briefing on future prospect of
the Company. The details of the familiarisation
programs held during the year under review have
been uploaded in the Corporate Governance
section on the website of the Company at www.
asianenergy.com.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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xvii. As on March 31,2025, Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal holds
7,000 (0.015%) equity shares of the Company. No
other Director holds any shares in the Company.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

A. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company is
constituted in line with the provisions of
Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, read with Section 177 of the Act.

The terms of

reference of the Audit

Committee are broadly as under:

Oversight of the Company's financial
reporting process and the disclosure
of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

Recommend to the Board, the
appointment, remuneration and terms
of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

Approval of payment to statutory
auditors for any other services rendered
by them;

Reviewing with the management,
the annual financial  statements
and auditors' report thereon before
submission to the board for approval
with particular reference to:

a) matters required to be included
in the director's responsibility
statement to be included in the
board's report in terms of clause
(c) of sub-section (3) of Section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) changes, if any, in accounting
policies and practices and reasons
for the same;

c) major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

d) significant adjustments made in
the financial statements arising
out of audit findings;

e) compliance with listing and other
legal requirements relating to
financial statements;

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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f)  disclosure of any related party
transactions;

g) modified opinion(s) in the draft
audit report;

Review the management discussion
and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations, statement of
significant related party transactions,
internal control weakness as reported
by statutory auditors, internal audit
reports, appointment, removal and
terms of remuneration of internal
auditor, statement of deviations.

Reviewing with the Management, the
quarterly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

Reviewing with the Management, the
statement of uses/application of funds
raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the
statement of funds utilised for purposes
other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and
making appropriate recommendations
to the board to take up steps in this
matter;

Review and monitor the auditors'
independence and performance, nature
and scope of audit and post-audit
discussion on any areas of concern and
effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any  subsequent
modification of transactions of the
Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of
the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls
and risk management systems;

Review with the Management the
performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of internal control
systems;
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Establish a vigil mechanism for
directors and employees to report
genuine concerns in such manner as
may be prescribed;

The Audit Committee may call for
the comments of the auditors about
internal control systems, the scope
of audit, including the observations
of the auditors and review of financial
statement before their submission to
the Board and may also discuss any
related issues with the internal and
statutory auditors and the Management
of the Company;

Reviewing the utilization of loans/
advances from or investment by the
holding company in the subsidiaries;

To review the adequacy of internal audit
function, if any, including the structure
of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading
the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal
audit;

To discuss with internal auditors of
any significant findings and follow up
thereon;

reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors
into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irreqgularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the
board;

To discuss with statutory auditors
before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern;

To look into the reasons for
substantial defaults in the payment
to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the whistle
blower mechanism:;

To approve appointment of chief
financial  officer after assessing

the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

«  To Carry out any other function as is
mentioned in the terms of reference of
the audit committee.

. To review the utilization of loans and/

or advances from/investment by the
holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10%
of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing
loans / advances / investments existing
as on the date of coming into force of
this provision;
To consider and comment on
rationale, cost-benefits and impact of
schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity
and its shareholders.

«  The Audit Committee shall review the
information required as per SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

. Carrying out any other function as is
mentioned in the terms of reference of
the audit committee.

Audit Committee Meetings are also attended
by the senior management personnel of
the Company wherever required along with
the Chief Financial Officer, as invitees. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of
the Audit Committee.

In terms of the Insider Trading Code adopted
by the Company, the Committee considers
the following matters:

To approve policies in relation to the
implementation of the Insider Trading
Code and to supervise implementation
of the Insider Trading Code.

. To provide directions on any penal
action to be initiated, in case of any
violation of the Regulations by any
person.

«  The previous Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company was held on
September 25, 2024 and was attended
by Mr. Nayan Mani Borah, Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Sr. |Name Category of Director Number of meetings during

No. the year 2024-25
Held Attended

1 Mr. Nayan Mani Borah Chairman, Independent Director 4 4

2 Mrs. Anusha Mehta Independent Director 4 4

3 Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal Independent Director 4 4

Four Audit Committee meetings were held
during the year and the gap between two
meetings did not exceed 120 days. The dates
on which the said meetings were held are as
follows:

May 03, 2024; August 12, 2024; November
12,2024, and February 12, 2025.

The necessary quorum was present for all
the meetings.

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The  Nomination and  Remuneration
Committee ("NR  Committee”) of the
Company is constituted in line with the
provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, read with Section 178 of
the Act.

The broad terms of reference of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are as under:

. Recommend to the Board the set up
and composition of the Board and its
Committees including the “formulation
of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director”. The
Committee will consider periodically
reviewing the composition of the
Board with the objective of achieving
an optimum balance of size, skills,
independence, knowledge, age, gender
and experience.

. Recommend to the Board the
appointment or reappointment of
directors.

. Devise a policy on Board diversity.

. Identifying persons who are qualified
to become directors and who may
be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid
down and recommend to the board
of directors their appointment and
removal.
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Carry out evaluation of every director's
performance and support the board
and independent directors in evaluation
of the performance of the board, its
committees and individual directors.
This shall include “formulation of
criteria for evaluation of independent
directors and the board".

Whether to extend or continue the term
of appointment of the independent
director, based on the report of
performance evaluation of independent
directors.

Recommend to the Board the
remuneration policy for directors,
executive team or key managerial
personnel as well as the rest of the
employees.

Oversee familiarization programs for
directors.

On an annual basis, recommend to the
Board all remuneration, in whatever
form, payable to the directors and
senior management and oversee the
remuneration to executive team or key
managerial personnel of the Company.

Oversee  the human resource
philosophy, human resource and
people strategy and human resource
practices including those for leadership
development, rewards and recognition,
talent management and succession
planning (specifically for the board, key
managerial personnel and executive
team).

Provide guidelines for remuneration of
directors on material subsidiaries.

Recommend to the Board on
voting pattern for appointment and
remuneration of directors on the boards
of its material subsidiary companies.

Performing such other duties and
responsibilities as may be consistent
with the provisions of the Committee
charter.
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The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by its

members are given below:

Sr. |Name Category Number of Meetings during

No. the year 2024-25
Held Attended

1. | Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal Chairman, Independent Director 2 2

2. | Mr. Nayan Mani Borah Independent Director 2 2

3. | Ms. Anusha Mehta Independent Director 2 2

4. | Mr. Mukesh Jain Non-executive Non-independent 2 2

Director

During the year, two meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were held on May 03, 2024 and August 12,
2024.

The Members at their meeting held on
September 27, 2021 and through Postal
Ballot passed on March 16, 2024 had
approved the Asian Energy Services Limited
- Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021 (“AESL
ESOP 2021") & Asian Energy Services
Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan — 2024
(“"AESL ESOP 2024"), respectively (“together
referred to as “ESOP Plans") authorising
grant of stock options not exceeding 3,80,744
(Three Lakh Eighty Thousand Seven Hundred
Forty-four) to the eligible employees under
each scheme.

Details of AESL ESOP 2021 are as follows:

Options granted during 3,80,000
2022-23

Un-granted Options as on 744
March 31, 2023

Total 3,80,744
Options exercised during 1,09,183
2023-24

Options exercised during 2,00,643
2024-25

Total Options lapsed during 70174
2024-25

Options re-granted during 70,231
2024-25

Un-granted Options as on 687
March 31, 2025

Options outstanding as on 70,231

March 31, 2025

Under AESL ESOP 2024, 3,80,744 stock
options were granted the employees on
January 25, 2025. Since, the options have not
yet been vested, no options were exercised

Vi.

under AESL ESOP 2024 as on March 31,
2025.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for

Independent Directors:

The performance evaluation criteria for
Independent  Directors is  determined
by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. An indicative list of factors that
may be evaluated include participation and
contribution by a director, commitment,
effective deployment of knowledge and
expertise,  effective  management  of
relationship  with  stakeholders, integrity
and maintenance of confidentiality and
independence of behaviour and judgement.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

Nomination and Remuneration Policy
in the Company is designed to create a
high-performance culture. It enables the
Company to attract, retain and motivate
employees to achieve results. Our business
model promotes customer focus and
requires employee mobility to address
project’'s requirement. The Nomination and
Remuneration Policy supports such mobility
through pay models that are compliant to
local regulations. In each country where
the Company operates, the remuneration
structure is tailored to the regulations,
practices and benchmarks prevalent in the
industry. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy is placed on the Company's website at
www.asianenergy.com.

Annual increments are decided by the Board
on the basis of the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) within the salary scale approved by the
members of the Company.

During the year 2024-25, the Company
paid sitting fees of ¥ 20,000/- per meeting
to its non-executive directors for attending
meetings of the Board and Audit Committee;

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Vii.

% 10,000 per meeting for Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee; and ¥ 5,000/- for

the Borrowing Committee. The Company
also reimburses the out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the directors for attending the

all other Committees of the Board except meetings.

Details of sitting fees for the year ended March 31, 2025:

a.

Non-Executive Directors:

Name of the Directors Sitting Fees for the Stock Options No. of Shares
year 2024-25 (%) held as on
March 31, 2025

Mr. Nayan Mani Borah 2,25,000/- - Nil

Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia 1,25,000/- - Nil

Mrs. Anusha Mehta 1,95,000/- - Nil

Mr. Mukesh Jain 1,565,000/~ - Nil

Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal 2,05,000/- - 7,000

Mr. Anil Kumar Jha 65,000/~ - Nil
TOTAL 9,70,000/- 7,000

During the financial year under report, the Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company except Mr. Mukesh Jain.

% 72,00,000/- (excluding GST) was paid to Mr. Mukesh Jain (Non-Executive Director) as compensation for
rendering professional services during the reporting period.

Managing Director:

(% in Lakhs)
Name of director and period of appointment Salary, Allowances / Perquisites,
Performance Bonus
Dr. Kapil Garg 277

Managing Director
Financial year 2024-25

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with section 178 of the Act.

The broad terms of reference of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee are as under:

Resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company including complaints such as transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of notice/annual reports etc. and all other shareholder related matters.
Consider and approve issue of share certificates (including issue of renewed or duplicate share certificates),
transfer and transmission of securities, etc.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the services standards adopted in respect of various services rendered by the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and ensure setting of proper controls and oversee performance of the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of
services to the investors.

Review of the measures and initiatives taken by the Company to ensure timely receipt of annual reports,
statutory notices, dividend warrants by the shareholders.

One meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was held during the year on February 12, 2025.
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iv. ~ The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and the details of meetings attended by its
members are given below:

Name Category Number of Meetings during
the year 2024-25
Held Attended
Mr. Nayan Mani Borah Chairman, Independent Director 1 1
Mr. Mukesh Jain Non-Executive Non-Independent 1 1
Director
Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia Non-Executive Non-Independent 1 1
Director

v.  Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer:
Ms. Shweta Jain
Company Secretary
3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare, Chunabhatti Signal,
Eastern Express Highway, Sion (East),
Mumbai — 400022 Maharashtra, India
Tel. No.: +91-22-42441100
Email: secretarial@asianenergy.com

vi.  Details of investor complaints received and redressed during the year 2024-25 are as follows:

Opening balance Received during the | Resolved during the | number of complaints not | Closing balance
year year solved to the satisfaction of
shareholders
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
D. Other Committees The CSR policy of the Company is placed

on the website of the Company at www.

i. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) asianenergy.com

Committee

CSR Committee of the Company is ii.  Allotment Committee:

constituted in line with the provisions of The Board has delegated powers to allot
Section 135 of the Act. As on March 31, 2025, the shares of the Company to the Allotment

the CSR Committee comprised of Mr. N. M. gggmtlﬁ[eeAﬁft:}'riit%rsr'nfitton Mz;r]ck;i 31d'
Borah as Chairperson; and Dr. Rabi Bastia , the Allotme © ee comprise

of Dr. Kapil Garg, Dr. Rabi Bastia and Mr.
and Mr. Mukesh Jain as members. P g

Mukesh Jain.
The proad terms of reference of CSR During the year, three (3) meetings of the
committee are as follows: Allotment Committee were held on August
Formulate and recommend to the 27,2024, September 04, 2024 and November
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility 05, 2024.
(CSR) policy; ili. Borrowing Committee:
Recommend the amount of e>l<plefnditure The Board has delegated the power to borrow
to be incurred on the CSR activities; funds /avail various facilities from banks,
Monitor the CSR policy of the Company financial institutions and other persons, firms,
from time to time: bodies corporate, to open bank account and

change operations/ internetbanking facilities,
to create/ modify mortgage/ pledge/
hypothecation/ security on the present and
future moveable, immovable properties,

One meeting of the CSR Committee was held
during the financial year 2024-25 on August
12,2024,
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tangible, intangible assets, or the whole of
the undertakings of the Company to secure
the borrowings to be availed by the Company
from banks/ financial institutions and/or any
other lender(s), agent(s) or trustee(s) to the
Borrowing Committee.

As on March 31, 2025 the Borrowing
Committee comprised of Dr. Kapil Garg, Dr.
RabiBastia and Mr. Mukesh Jain as members.

Four (4) meetings of the Borrowing
Committee were held during the financial
year on April 17, 2024; July 26, 2024;
September 23, 2024 and January 18, 2025.

Statutory Reports

ESOP Compensation Committee:

The Board has constituted an ESOP
Compensation Committee for granting
employees stock options to reward and
enable the employees to participate in the
future growth of the Company. The ESOP
Compensation Committee comprises of Mrs.
Anusha Mehta (Chairperson), Mukesh Jain
and Mr. Nayan Mani Borah as members.

Two meetings of the ESOP Compensation
Committee were held during the financial
year 2024-25 on May 03, 2024 and November
12,2024.

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Particulars of AGM / EGM for the last three years:
The details of the last three Annual General Meetings/ Extra Ordinary General Meetings are as follows:

AGM for the financial

year ended

Day, Date & Time
of AGM

Place of AGM

Special Resolutions passed

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Wednesday,
September 25,
2024 at 11:00 a.m.

Thursday,
September 28,
2023 at 11.00 a.m.

Tuesday,
September 27,
2022 at 11.00 a.m.

Through Video Conferencing
("VC")/Other Audio-Visual
Mode (“0AVM").

3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,
Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern
Express Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai-400022
Through Video Conferencing
("VC")/Other Audio-Visual
Mode ("0AVM").

3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,
Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern
Express Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai-400022
Through Video Conferencing
("VC")/Other Audio-Visual
Mode ("OAVM").

3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,
Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern
Express Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai-400022

None

1)  Amendment in Asian Energy
Services Limited — Employee
Stock Option Plan (*AESL ESOP
2021).

1) To approve revision in
remuneration structure of Mr.
Ashutosh Kumar (DIN: 06918508),
Whole Time Director & CEO of the
Company.

EGM Day, Date & Time | Place of EGM Special Resolutions passed
of EGM
May 31, 2024 Thursday, Through Video Conferencing | 1) Issue of  convertible equity

September 19,
2024 at 11:00 a.m

("VC")/Other Audio-Visual
Mode ("OAVM").

3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,
Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern
Express Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai-400022

warrants, convertible into equity
shares on preferential basis to
certain identiflied non-promoter
persons/entities.

All the resolutions including special resolutions set out in the respective notices calling the AGM / EGM were passed
by the shareholders with requisite majority.
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b) Postal Ballot:

During the financial year, the following resolutions were passed by the shareholders by the requisite majority by way

of postal ballot through e-voting:

Date of postal | Resolution(s) passed Approval Scrutinizer Link for postal ballot
ballot notice Date notice and results
May 14,2024 | Reappointment of Mr. June 14, Mr. Dipesh U. Gosar, https://www.
Nayan Mani Borah 2024 proprietor, Dipesh Gosar asianenergy.com/
(DIN: 00489006) as an & Company, Practicing investor-relations.
Independent Director of the Company Secretary html#company-
Company. announcements
May 14,2024 | Appointment of Mr. Aman June 14, Mr. Dipesh U. Gosar, https://www.
Garg (DIN: 10415263) asa | 2024 proprietor, Dipesh Gosar asianenergy.com/
Non-Executive Director of & Company, Practicing investor-relations.
the Company. Company Secretary html#company-
announcements
May 14,2024 | Appointment of Mr. Anil June 14, Mr. Dipesh U. Gosar, https://www.
Kumar Jha (DIN: 06645361) | 2024 proprietor, Dipesh Gosar asianenergy.com/
as an Independent Director & Company, Practicing investor-relations.
of the Company. Company Secretary html#company-
announcements
December 05, | To approve and ratify January 05, | Mr. Hemanshu Kapadia, https://www.
2024 Material Related Party 2025 proprietor, Hemanshu asianenergy.com/
Transaction of the Kapadia & Associates, investor-relations.
Company with Zuberi — Practicing Company html#company-
Asian Joint Venture Secretary or failing him Mrs. | announcements
Pooja Jain, Partner, VPP
& Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary
December 05, | To approve and ratify January 05, | Mr. Hemanshu Kapadia, https://www.
2024 Material Related Party 2025 proprietor, Hemanshu asianenergy.com/
Transaction of the Kapadia & Associates, investor-relations.
Company with AESL FFIL Practicing Company html#company-
Joint Venture Secretary or failing him Mrs. | announcements
Pooja Jain, Partner, VPP
& Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary
December 05, | To approve Material Related | January 05, | Mr. Hemanshu Kapadia, https://www.
2024 Party Transactions of the 2025 proprietor, Hemanshu asianenergy.com/
Company with Asian Indwell Kapadia & Associates, investor-relations.
Joint Venture Practicing Company html#company-
Secretary or failing him Mrs. | announcements
Pooja Jain, Partner, VPP
& Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary
Procedure for postal ballot: 5. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

The postal ballot was carried out as per the
provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the Rules framed thereunder
and applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs from time to time.

Details of special resolution proposed to be
transacted through postal ballot:

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted
at the ensuing AGM requires passing of a special
resolution through postal ballot.

Disclosure on materially significant related party
transactions having potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large:

The Company has not entered into any materially
significant transaction with related parties having
potential conflict with its interest at large during
the financial year 2024-25 or which was not in
the normal course of business or not on an arm'’s
length basis. The statements containing the
transactions entered by the Company with related
parties are reviewed by the Audit Committee on
quarterly basis.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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The Company has formulated a Related
Party Transactions Policy and the same is
displayed on the Company's website at https://
www.asianenergy.com/investor-relations.
html#corporate-governance.

Transactions with the related parties are disclosed
in the notes to the accounts forming part of this
Annual Report.

Details of non-compliance by the Company,
penalties, strictures imposed on the Company
by the Stock Exchange or the Securities and
Exchange Board of India or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to -capital
markets, during the last three years 2024-25,
2023-24 and 2022-23 respectively:

During the financial years 2024-25, 2023-24
and 2022-23, there were no instances of non-
compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on
the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or
any statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has adopted a whistle blower
policy and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism for employees and directors to
report concerns about unethical behaviour. No
person has been denied access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. The said policy has been
also put up on the website of the Company at
https://www.asianenergy.com/investor-relations.
html#corporate-governance .

Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory
requirements:

The Company is in compliance with all the
mandatory requirements stipulated under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.

Material Subsidiaries:

The Company has also adopted Policy for
determining 'material’ subsidiaries for Disclosures
(Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries) and
Policy for Preservation of Documents (Policy for
preservation of documents).
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Vi.

vii.

viii.

Risk Management:

The Company has adequate risk assessment and
minimization system in place. The Company does
not have material exposure of any commodity and
accordingly, no hedging activities for the same are
carried out.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary
carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit as mandated by SEBI and reports on the
reconciliation of total issued and listed Capital
with that of total share capital admitted / held in
dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL and
those held in physical form. This audit is carried
out on quarterly basis and the report thereof is
submitted to the Stock Exchanges, where the
Company's shares are listed.

Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A)
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015:

During the year 2024-25, the Company raised
a total sum of ¥ 1,57,4500,000 (Rupees One
Hundred and Fifty-Seven Crores and Forty-Five
Lakhs Only) by allotment of 47,00,000 Convertible
Equity Warrants on preferential basis to non-
promoter investors at an issue price of ¥ 335/-.

Out of the above, the Company has received
¥ 39,36,25,000 (Rupees Thirty-Nine Crores Thirty-
six Lakhs Twenty-Five Thousand Only), being 25%
towards application money pursuant to allotment
of the convertible equity warrants.

Further, under AESL Preferential Issue of 2023,
pursuant to receipt of the remaining 75% of the
issue price, 38,50,000 equity shares were allotted
upon conversion of equal number of convertible
equity warrants.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the use/ application of proceeds/
funds raised from the preferential issue are
reviewed by the Audit Committee as part of
quarterly review of financial results and along with
the report of the Monitoring Agency, the details are
filed with the Stock Exchanges.
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Xi.

Xii.

The funds raised under AESL Preferential Issue of 2023 were fully utilized in accordance with objects of the issue.
Further, the details of utilization of funds raised under AESL Preferential Issue 2024 is as under:

(Amount in ¥ (Crores)

Sr. | Objects of the Issue Original Modified Amount raised = Funds utilized

No. allocation allocation, if till March 31, till March 31,
any* 2025 2025

1 To fund capital expenditure for 48.24 47.08 39.36 3.26

purchase of equipment and capacity
expansion at oilfield.

2 To meet long-term/short-term 56.28 54.93 3.02
working Capital requirement of the
business of the Company.

3 To expand Company's business 16.08 16.08 -
by making strategic investment by
inorganic growth.

4 General Corporate Purpose. 40.20 39.36 -
Total 160.80 157.45 39.36 6.28

* On account of lower subscription of the issue, the company has reduced the allocation of funds from the above
objects.

A certificate from a company secretary in practice and internal controls to the Board in terms of
that none of the directors on the board of the Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, copy
company have been debarred or disqualified of which is attached to this Report. The MD
from being appointed or continuing as directors and the CFO also give quarterly certification on

of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate

. . financial results while placing the financial results
Affairs or any such statutory authority:

before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of
A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice the Listing Regulations.

that none of the directors on the board of the
company have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as directors of

companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate xiii. Details of Sexual Harassment complaints
Affairs or any such statutory authority.

The Certificate is annexed herewith as a part of
the report.

received and redressed:
The Certificate of Company Secretary in Practice
is annexed herewith as a part of the report.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
Where the board had not accepted any and Redressal) Act, 2013.

recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant

The disclosures for the 2024-25 are as under: -

financial year. - Not Applicable Number of complaints filed during Nil
the FY

Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditors

of the Company: Number of complaints disposed Nil

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity of during the FY

and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, Number of complaints pending as Nil

to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in the on the end of the FY

network firm/network entity of which the Statutory

Auditors is a part. xiv. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory of Loans and advances in the nature of loans
Auditors are given in Note 36 to the Standalone to firms / companies in which directors are
Financial Statements. interested by name and amount:

MD and CFO Certification: The Company has not given any loans and
The Managing Director (“MD") and the Chief advances in the nature of loans to firms /
Financial Officer ("CFQO") of the Company give companies in which directors are interested.

annual certification on financial reporting

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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xv. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity

including the date and place of incorporation
and the name and date of appointment of the
statutory auditors of such subsidiaries:

The Company did not have any material subsidiary

during the reporting period.

xvi. Non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate
Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Para C to Schedule V of the Listing Regulations:

The Company has complied with all the
requirements in this regard, to the extent

applicable.

Statutory Reports

xvii. Details of adoption

of non-mandatory

(discretionary) requirements:

The status of compliance with the non-mandatory
requirements of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,

2015 is provided below:

a. Reporting of Internal Auditor - In accordance
with the provisions of Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to
the Audit Committee. Quarterly internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee
which reviews the audit reports and suggests

necessary action.

b.  The Company is in the regime of unmodified
opinions on financial statements.

xviii. The disclosure of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and
Regulation 46(2) of Listing Regulations, 2015

Sr. | Particulars Regulations | Brief Descriptions of the Regulations | Compliance Status
No. (Yes/No/N.A.)
1 Board of Directors 17(1) Board composition Yes
17(2) Meeting of Board of directors Yes
17(3) Review of Compliance Reports Yes
17(4) Plans for orderly succession for Yes
appointments
17(5) Code of Conduct for the Board Yes
members and senior management
17(6) Fees/compensation to non-executive Yes
directors
17(7) Minimum Information to be placed Yes
before the Board
17(8) Compliance Certificate by the CEO Yes
& CFO
17(9) Risk assessment and minimization Yes
procedures
17(10) Performance Evaluation of Yes
Independent Directors
17(17) Recommendation of the Board to Yes
the shareholders for each Special
Business at General Meeting
17A Maximum number of Directorships Yes
2 | Audit Committee 18(1) Composition of Audit Committee Yes
18(2) Meeting of Audit Committee Yes
18(3) Role of the Committee and Review of Yes
information by the Committee
3 Nomination and 19(1) & (2) Composition of Nomination and Yes
Remuneration Committee Remuneration Committee
19(3) Presence of the Chairman of the Yes
Committee at the Annual General
Meeting
19(3A) Meeting of the Committee Yes
19(4) Role of the Committee Yes
4 | Stakeholders Relationship | 20(1), (2) & (3) | Composition of Stakeholder Yes
Committee Relationship Committee
20(3A) Meeting of the Committee Yes
20(4) Role of the Committee Yes
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Sr. | Particulars Regulations | Brief Descriptions of the Regulations | Compliance Status
No. (Yes/No/N.A.)
5 Risk Management 21(1), (2) &(3) | Composition of Risk Management N.A.
Committee Committee
21(4) Role of the Committee N.A.
6 | Vigil Mechanism 22(1) & (2) Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Yes
Directors and Employee
7 Related Party Transaction 23(1), (5), (6) & | Policy and compliances for Related Yes
(8) Party Transaction
23(2) & (3) Prior approval including omnibus Yes
approval of Audit Committee for
all Related Party Transactions
and review of transaction by the
Committee
23(4) Prior approval for Material Related Yes
Party Transactions and subsequent
Material Modifications thereof.
23(5) Non-applicability of Regulations Yes
23(2),(3) & (4)
23(9) Disclosures of related party Yes
transactions to the stock exchanges.
8 Secretarial Audit and 24A Submission of Secretarial Yes
Secretarial Compliance Compliance Report and Secretarial
Report Audit Report.
8 Subsidiaries of the 24(1) Composition of Board of Directors of Yes
Company Unlisted Material Subsidiary
24(2),(3),(4),(5) | Other Corporate Governance Yes
& (6) requirements with respect to
Subsidiary including Material
Subsidiary of listed entity
9 Obligations with respect to 25(1)&(2) Maximum Directorship & Tenure Yes
Independent Directors 25(3) Meeting of Independent Directors Yes
25(4) Review of Performance by the Yes
Independent Directors
25(7) Familiarization of Independent Yes
Directors
25(8) Declaration by Independent Director Yes
10 |Obligations with respect 26(1)&(2) Memberships & Chairmanship in Yes
to Directors and Senior Committees
Management 26(3) Affirmation with compliance to Yes
code of conduct from members of
the Board and Senior Management
Personnel
26(5) Disclosures by Senior Management Yes
about potential conflicts of Interest
11 | Other Corporate 27(1) Compliance of Discretionary Yes
Governance Requirements Requirements
27(2) Filing of Quarterly Compliance Report Yes
on Corporate Governance
12 | Disclosures on Website of 46(2)(b) Terms and conditions of Yes
the Company appointment of Independent
Directors
46(2)(c) Composition of various committees Yes
of Board of Directors
46(2)(d) Code of Conduct of Board of Yes
Directors and Senior Management
Personnel
46(2)(e) Details of establishment of Vigil Yes

Mechanism / Whistle Blower policy
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Sr. | Particulars Regulations | Brief Descriptions of the Regulations | Compliance Status
No. (Yes/No/N.A.)
46(2)(f) Criteria of making payments to Non- N.A.
Executive Directors
46(2)(9) Policy on dealing with Related Party Yes
Transactions
46(2)(h) Policy for determining Material Yes
Subsidiaries
46(2)(i) Details of familiarization Yes

programmes imparted to
Independent Directors

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the investments made by its
unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the board meetings along with a report on significant developments of the
unlisted subsidiary companies are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company does not have any material subsidiary for the reporting period.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company are normally published in Business Standard, national daily
newspaper in English and Pratahkal, regional daily newspaper in Marathi. The financial results are also displayed on the
Company's website viz. www.asianenergy.com and posted on the BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the Listing
Centre) & National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Listing Department). Official news releases and presentations made
to Institutional Investors and Analysts are posted on the Company's website.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i.  Annual General Meeting:
Date and Time . Friday, September 26, 2025 at 11.00 a.m.
Venue : Meeting is being conducted through VC/OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circular No.
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No.02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, No.
10/2022 dated December, 28, 2022, No. 09-2023 dated September 25, 2023 and
No. 09-2024 dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars").
ii. Financial Calendar . April to March
iii. Dividend payment date : October 25, 2025
iv. Listing on Stock Exchange : BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai
400 051
v. Stock Code on BSE Ltd. : 530355
vi. Trading Symbol on NSE - ASIANENE
Annual listing fees for the financial year 2025-26 has been paid to both the stock exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE.
vii. ISIN Code in NSDL and : INE276G01015
CDSL for Equity Shares
viii. Corporate Identity Number : [ 23200MH1992PLC318353
(CIN) of the Company
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10.

11.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:
MUFG Intime India Private Limited
(Formerly Link Intime India Pvt Ltd.)

C 1071, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083,

Maharashtra, India
Phone No. 022 - 4918 6000
Fax No.: 022 - 4918 6060

E-mail: mumbai@in.mpms.mufg.com / rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

As on March 31, 2025, 98.70% of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic form. Transfers of these shares are
done through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. The shares of the Company can be held in physical
form however as per SEBI Notification dated June 08, 2018, with effect from April 01, 2019 the shares can be transferred

in demat form only.

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

Details of the Equity shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account as on March 31, 2025, are as

follow:

aggregate number of
shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the

number of shareholders who
approached listed entity
for transfer of shares from

number of shareholders to
whom shares were transferred
from suspense account during

aggregate number of
shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the

suspense account lying at the | suspense account during the the year suspense account lying at the
beginning of the year year end of the year
0 1 1 1 Shareholder — 800 shares

The voting rights on the shares in the Demat/unclaimed Suspense Account as on March 31, 2025 shall remain frozen till
the rightful owner claims the shares.

12. SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2025:

a. Distribution of equity shareholding as on March 31, 2025:

No. of Shares No. of Share holders Percentage to Total No. Percentage to
shareholders of Shares Capital
Up to — 500 18,242 87.4453 20,32,875 4.5403
501 - 1,000 1,210 5.6896 9,67,284 2.1603
1,001 - 2,000 616 2.8965 9,33,166 2.0841
2,001 - 3,000 229 1.0768 586,997 1.3110
3,001 — 4,000 119 0.5596 4,33,036 0.9671
4,001 - 5,000 108 0.5078 512,302 1.1442
5,001 - 10,000 199 0.5078 14,86,950 3.3210
10,001 and above 189 0.8887 3,78,21,834 84.4719
Total 21,267 100.0000 4,47,74,444 100.0000

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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b. Categories of equity shareholders as on March 31, 2025:

Category No. of Shares % of Total Capital

A. Promoters Holding

i.  Indian Promoters (PAC) 2,72,99,861 60.97

ii. Foreign Promoter -- --

B. Non Promoters Holding

i Mutual Funds — _

ii.  Foreign Portfolio Investors 10,55,457 2.36
ii. Bodies Corporate (including LLPs) 41,112,604 9.18
iv.  Indian Public 1,09,66,117 24.49
v.  Non Residents Indians 3,86,236 0.86
vi.  Director or Director's Relative 7,000 0.02
vii. Key Managerial Personnel 23,114 0.05
viii. Any other 8,563,237 1.91

C. Non-Promoter Non-Public Holding

i.  Employee Benefit Trust 70,918 0.16

Total 4,47,74,444 100.00

c. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the
depositories, viz. National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

Percentage of shares held in physical and dematerialized form as on March 31, 2025:

Sr. Electronic / Physical Mode of Holding %
No.

1. NSDL 15.32

2. CDSL 83.38

3. Physical 1.30

Total 100.00

d. The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs or any convertible instrument.
e. Plant locations: The Company has no plant.

f.  Address for Correspondence:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited Secretarial Department

(Formerly Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) Asian Energy Services Limited

Unit: Asian Energy Services Limited 3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,

C 107, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern Express Highway, Sion
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083 (East), Mumbai — 400022

Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India

Phone No. 022 - 4918 6000 Phone No. +91-22-4244-1100
E-mail:mumbai@in.mpms.mufg.com/rnt. Email: secretarial@asianenergy.com
helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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g. During the year under review, India Ratings & Research (‘Ind-Ra') affirmed the rating of 'IND BBB' for Asian Energy
Services Limited's (‘the Company') Bank Facilities and revised the Outlook from stable to ‘Positive’.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Asian Energy Services Limited

Nayan Mani Borah
Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: August 12,2025 DIN: 00489006

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director. In
addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes
are available on the Company's website.

| confirm that the Company has in respect of the year ended March 31, 2025, received from the Senior Management team of the
Company and the Members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

Kapil Garg
Place: Mumbai Managing Director
Date: August 12,2025 DIN: 01360843

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Para C, Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED

3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,

Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern Express Highway,
Sion (East), Mumbai 400022.

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of ASIAN ENERGY
SERVICES LIMITED having CIN L23200MH1992PLC318353 and having registered office at 3B, 3 Floor, Omkar Esquare,
Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern Express Highway, Sion (East), Mumbai 400022 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company'), produced
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V,
Para-C, Clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications(including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its
officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on March 31, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
No.

1 Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal 00261063 February 12, 2021

2 Dr. Rabi Narayan Bastia 05233577 March 04, 2013

3 Ms. Anusha Mehta 07648883 November 03, 2016

4 Mr. Nayan Mani Borah 00489006 March 19, 2019

5 Mr. Mukesh Jain 01316027 May 29, 2019

6 Dr. Kapil Garg 01360843 Juy 07, 2020

7. Mr. Aman Garg 10415263 May 03, 2024

8. | Mr. Anil Kumar Jha 06645361 May 14, 2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Hemanshu Kapadia

Proprietor

C.P.No.: 2285; Mem. No.: F3477

Place: Mumbai UDIN: FO03477G000356159
Date: May 16, 2025 PR no. 1620/2021
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MD & CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors of
Asian Energy Services Limited

(CIN: L23200MH1992PLC318353)
We hereby certify that:

A.

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief;

1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

No transaction is entered into by the company during the year which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's
code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
1)  significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year,;

2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management
or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

For Asian Energy Services Limited

Kapil Garg Nirav Talati

Place: Mumbai Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Date:

May 16, 2025 (DIN: 01360843)

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE
OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ['Listing Regulations'] by
ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company"”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the above mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable. It is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations made
by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated under the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Hemanshu Kapadia

Proprietor

C.P. N0.:2285; Mem. No.: F3477

Place: Mumbai UDIN: FO03477G000356170
Date: May 16, 2025 P/R no:1620/2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Asian Energy Services Limited BASIS FOR OPINION

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 3.

OPINION

1. Wehaveauditedtheaccompanying standalone financial
statements of Asian Energy Services Limited (‘the
Company'), which comprise the Standalone Balance
Sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and
the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in KEY AUDIT MATTER

the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2025, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition Our audit procedures around revenue recognition included,

Revenue for the Company consists primarily of oilfield and
related services provided in the energy sector and sale of a)
crude ail.

Refer Note 29 and Note 50 to the accompanying standalone
financial statements for details of revenue recorded during
the current year and Note 1(b) for the related accounting | b)
policies.

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
('Ind AS 115') requires management to make certain key
judgments relating to identifying contracts with customers,
performance obligations involved in contracts and revisions Q)
thereto, determining transaction price which involves
variable consideration elements including estimation of
levy of liquidated damages or penalty or warranty claims
by its customers, allocation of the transaction price to such
performance obligations and satisfaction of performance
obligations.

We have identified recognition of revenue as key audit
matter for the current year audit considering:

but were not restricted to, the following:

Obtained the understanding of the revenue and
receivable business process and assessed the
appropriateness of the accounting policy adopted by
the Company for revenue recognition in accordance
with Ind AS 115;

Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key internal financial controls
around revenue recognition including controls around
contract approvals, invoice approval, determining
the amount of variable consideration, estimation of
budgeted contract costs and recording of receipt;

Performed substantive testing by selecting a
sample of continuing and new contracts entered
with customers during the year and performed the
following procedures:

i.  Analyzed the contracts and identified distinct
performance obligations in such contracts.

ii. Compared these performance obligations with
those identified and recorded by the Company.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Significance of management judgement and estimate
involved as mentioned above, and the materiality of
amounts involved; and

Significant auditor attention required to audit revenue
recognised during the year which has been identified as
a significant risk as per the requirements of Standards

on Auditing.

ii. Considered the terms of the contracts to
determine the transaction price and any
variable consideration elements including levy
of liquidated damages, penalty and warranty
claims;

Reviewed the allowance/ provision for expected
liquidated damages, penalty and warranty obligation
created by the management on the invoicing done
for the various projects from time-to-time, where
contract milestones were not met;

Performed test of details on a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the vyear, including
specific periods before and after the year-end. For the
samples selected, inspected supporting documents,
including contracts and related amendments
for revisions to performance obligations or price
terms, daily progress reports, invoices and delivery
documents to ensure that the correct amount of
revenue is recorded in the correct period; and

Evaluated the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made in the financial statements for
revenue recognized during the year in accordance
with applicable accounting standards.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

6.

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises
theinformationincluded inthe Management Discussion
and Analysis Report and Director's Report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Management Discussion
and Analysis Report and Director's Report are expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7.

The accompanying standalone financial statements
have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safequarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
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the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the
Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing
the Company's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance

11.

about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

. Obtainanunderstandingofinternal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial

12.

13.

14.

controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of
Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern; and

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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REPORT ON OTHER

because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

LEGAL AND REGULATORY

REQUIREMENTS

15.

16.

17.

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based
on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by
section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the accompanying
standalone financial statements;

b)  Except for the matter described in paragraph 17(h)
(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act;

f)  The qualification relating to maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith
is as stated in paragraph 17(b) above on reporting
under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
17(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
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the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2025
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure B, wherein
we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The Company, as detailed in Note 38 to
the accompanying standalone financial
statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as
at 31st March, 2025.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses as at 31st March, 2025;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during
the year ended 31st March, 2025;

iv. ~a. The management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note 53(v) to the
accompanying standalone financial
statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in
any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries'),
with  the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries')
or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
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belief, as disclosed in Note 53(vi) to the
accompanying standalone financial
statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures
performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the
management representations under
sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain
any material misstatement.

As stated in Note 49 to the accompanying
standalone financial statements, the Board
of Directors of the Company have proposed
final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2025 which is subject to the approval
of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the
extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

Vi

As stated in Note 57 to the accompanying
standalone financial statements and based
on our examination which included test
checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 01 April 2024, has used
an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Furthermore, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention
from the date the audit trail was enabled for
the accounting software.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Bharat Shetty

Partner

Membership No.: 106815
UDIN: 25106815BMJIGA7538

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May, 2025
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Asian Energy
Services Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us
and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to
the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

() (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property,
plant and equipment, capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant
details of right-of-use assets under which
the assets are physically verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right-of-use assets
were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(if)

()

(@)

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held
by the Company (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in Note 3(ii) to the accompanying standalone
financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has adopted cost model for its
property, plant and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate were noticed as compared
to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 21(b)(iv) to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of INR 500.00 lakhs by banks based on the security of current assets.
The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such
banks and such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective
periods, which were not subject to audit/review, except for the following:

(Amounts in INR lakhs)

Name of the Working | Nature of current Quarter ended Particulars Information | Information as | Difference
Bank capital limit | assets offered as of securities | disclosed as per per books of
sanctioned | security provided return account

Union Bank 13,500 | Lien on fixed June 2024 | Trade receivables 7,849.96 8,119.13| (269.17)
of India and deposits and
Bank of counter indemnity, September 2024 | Trade receivables 10,384.05 10,089.05 295.00
Maharashtra hypothecation of

stock, book debts and | December 2024 | Trade receivables 15,671.48 15,866.33| (194.85)

all the current assets

of the Company March 2025 | Trade receivables 21,253.27 22,418.68 | (1,165.41)

(i) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or
any other parties during the year. Further, the Company has made investments in and granted loan during the year, in

respect of which:
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The Company has provided loans to one (1) subsidiary company and one (1) other party during the year, as per the
details given below:

Particulars Loans (INR in lakhs)
Aggregate amount provided during the year:

- Subsidiary 2.02
- Others 65.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases:

- Subsidiary 8.47
- Others Nil

(b) Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The
Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security during the year.

(c) Inrespectofloans granted by the Company to one (1) subsidiary, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated wherein the principal and interest amounts are repayable/payable on demand and
since the repayment of such amounts has not been demanded, in our opinion, the repayment of principal and
payment of interest are regular.

Inrespect of loans granted by the Company to one (1) other party, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment

of interest has been stipulated and the receipt of principal and interest are regular.

In respect of loans granted by the Company to one (1) subsidiary, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment

of interest has been stipulated wherein the principal is repayable on demand and since the repayment of principal

amount has not been demanded, in our opinion, the repayment of principal is regular, however the receipts of interest

is not regular for the following instances:

Name of the entity Amount due (INR in lakhs) | Due date Extent of delay

AQSL Petroleum Pte Limited 88.80 | Within 7 days from the end | No payment received by the
of each quarter Company during the year.

(d) The total amount which is overdue for more than 90 days as at 31st March, 2025 in respect of loans granted to one
(1) subsidiary is as follows:

Particulars Amount due (Gross) No. of cases
(INR in lakhs)

Principal Nil Nil

Interest 84.41 21

Total 84.41 21

Reasonable steps have not been taken by the Company for recovery of such principal amounts and interest.

(e) The Company had granted loans which had fallen due during the year and were repaid on or before the due date.
Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans.

(f)  The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details below:

Particulars Subsidiary
(INR in lakhs)

Outstanding loans (net of allowance): 8.47

- Repayable on demand

Percentage of loans to the total loans (net of allowance) 100%

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted and investments made, as applicable. Further, the Company
has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of guarantees and
provision of security.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in
respect of the Company's business activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) (a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the
Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute

except for the following:

Name of the statute Nature of Gross Amount| Amount paid Period to Forum where dispute
dues (INRin lakhs) | under Protest, whichthe |is pending
(INR in lakhs) | amount relates
The Central Goods and Goods and 150.34 Nil| FY 2018-19 | Assistant
Services Tax Act, 2017 Services Commissioner of
Tax State Tax, Guwahati
The Central Goods and|Goods and 80.39 8.04| FY2018-19 |Joint/ Additional
Services Tax Act, 2017 Services Commissioner
Tax (Appeals), CGST,
Gurugram
The Central Goods and|Goods and 36.83 Nil| FY 2019-20 | Central Goods
Services Tax Act, 2017 Services and Services Tax
Tax Commissionerate,

Ghaziabad

(viii) According to the information and explanations given
to us, we report that no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the
books of account.

(ix)

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations
given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the
basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes
for which these were obtained.
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In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the standalone financial
statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have, prima facie,
not been utilised for long term purposes.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries and joint
ventures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(b) As disclosed in Note 20(h) to the accompanying
standalone financial statements, during the year,
the Company has made preferential allotment on
a private placement basis of equity shares upon
conversion of share warrants. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has complied with the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the
Act and the rules framed thereunder with respect
to the same. Further, the amounts so raised have
been utilised by the Company for the purposes for
which these funds were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, no
report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of
the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations
given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, there
are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi

Rules, 2014 arenotapplicabletoit. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable.
Further, the details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business as required
under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(xvi) (a)

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the
internal auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance
with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses
3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given
to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the

current financial year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors

during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to

us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
plans of the Board of Directors and management and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As disclosed in Note 46 to the accompanying
standalone financial statements and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company
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does not have any unspent amounts towards Corporate
Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other
than ongoing project as at the end of the financial year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment
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has been included in respect of the said clause under

this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Bharat Shetty

Partner

Membership No.: 106815
UDIN: 25106815BMJIGA7538

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May, 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. Inconjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of Asian Energy Services Limited (‘the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31st March,
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements of
the Company as at that date.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company's business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAl prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding of such internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial
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statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such
controls were operating effectively as at 31st March,
2025, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established
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by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Bharat Shetty

Partner

Membership No.: 106815
UDIN: 25106815BMJIGA7538

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May, 2025
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

as at March 31, 2025

(Allamounts in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 11,438.83 10,715.52
Capital work in progress 4 262.68 115.72
Intangible assets 5A - 0.06
Intangible assets under development 5B 23.75 23.75
Right of use assets 6 43.52 161.17
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiaries 7 674.56 673.95
Investment in joint ventures 7 - -
Investment other than above 8 623.42 623.42
Loans 9 8.47 6.45
Other financial assets 10 623.88 3,197.78
Income tax assets (net) 11 74.20 443.34
Other non-current assets 12 316.22 392.63
Total non-current assets 14,089.53 16,353.79
Current assets
Inventories 13 17.78 29.01
Financial assets
Current investments 14 1,837.92 340.93
Trade receivables 15 22,060.46 12,869.21
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,693.09 757.98
Bank balances other than above 17 5,7176.55 3,059.72
Other financial assets 10 76317 490.94
Contract assets (unbilled work in progress) 18 8,599.93 2,575.02
Other current assets 19 3,197.15 1,221.44
Total current assets 43,946.05 21,344.25
Total assets 58,035.58 37,698.04
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 20 4470.35 4,065.29
Other equity 35,197.97 23,584.91
Total equity 39,668.32 27,650.20
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 633.60 94.19
Lease liabilities 22 - 32.50
Provisions 25 571.03 99.56
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 264.27 241.50
Total non-current liabilities 1,468.90 467.75
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 1,737.01 2,030.17
Lease liabilities 22 51.26 345.15
Trade payables 27
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 717.96 375.54
- total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro 12,614.32 6,074.40
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 23 229.39 149.53
Provisions 25 1.71 1.21
Current tax liabilities (net) 28 138.89 -
Other current liabilities 24 1,407.82 604.09
Total current liabilities 16,898.36 9,580.09
Total equity and liabilities 58,035.58 37,698.04

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Bharat Shetty Kapil Garg Nayan Mani Borah

Partner Managing Director Chairman

Membership No.: 106815 (DIN-01360843) (DIN-00489006)
Shweta Jain Nirav Talati
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
(ACS-23368)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2025 Date: May 16, 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes | For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

INCOME :
Revenue from operations 29 46,408.24 30,506.40
Other income 30 541.99 45594
Total income 46,950.23 30,962.34
EXPENSES :
Project related expense 31 34,492.82 22,091.59
Changes in inventories of finished goods 32 11.23 (29.01)
Employee benefits expense 33 3,421.83 2,623.23
Finance costs 34 315.95 178.39
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense 35 1,5616.95 1,443.49
Other expenses 36 1,688.86 1,474.61
Total expenses 41,447.64 27,782.30
Profit before tax 5,502.59 3,180.04
Tax expense/(credit)
(a) Currenttax:

- Current year 11.2 1,280.36 68.24

- Earlier year 11.2 89.68 -
(b) Deferred tax charge/(credit) 26 28.61 241.50
Total tax expense/ (credit) (a+b) 1,398.65 309.74
Net profit for the year (A) 4,103.94 2,870.30
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) :
Items not to be re-classified subsequently to profit & loss (net of tax)
- Remeasurement gain/ (loss) of defined benefit liability (17.37) 13.10
- Changesin fair value of investments through other comprehensive

income - -
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (B) (17.37) 13.10
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 4,086.57 2,883.40
Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 10 each 37
Basic (in %) 9.54 7.48
Diluted (in %) 9.52 7.30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Bharat Shetty Kapil Garg

Partner Managing Director

Membership No.: 106815 (DIN-01360843)
Shweta Jain
Company Secretary
(ACS-23368)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2025 Date: May 16, 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nayan Mani Borah
Chairman
(DIN-00483006)

Nirav Talati
Chief Financial Officer
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for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 5,5602.59 3,180.04
Adjustments for non cash items and items
considered separately :
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense 35 1,5616.95 1,443.49
Interest expense 34 310.27 176.98
Interest income 30 (397.54) (222.79)
Interest on income tax refund 30 (17.98) -
Liabilities/ provision written back 30 - (4.81)
Provision towards doubtful trade receivables and
other assets 36 55.61 48.98
Unrealized (gain)/ loss on foreign currency
transactions 30& 36 0.43 (183.21)
Gain on mutual fund investments (net) 30 (126.48) (49.95)
Sundry balances written off 36 90.63 6.03
Employee stock option expense 33 85.01 1,516.90 13.85 1,228.57
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,019.49 4,408.61
Adjustments for changes in working capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 15 (9,220.86) (6,359.53)
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 13 11.23 (29.01)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets 12&19 (1,967.69) 166.37
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets 10 2,328.55 (2,240.38)
(Increase)/ Decrease in contract assets 18 (6,033.52) (2,5675.02)
(Investment in)/ redemption of fixed deposits not 17 (2,298.56) (1,566.93)
considered as cash and cash equivalents
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables 27 6,864.73 5,016.00
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 25 43.25 76.08
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities 23824 813.20 (1,064.62)
(9,459.67) (8,577.04)
Cash used in operating activities (2,440.18) (4,168.43)
Refund / (payment) of direct taxes (net) 11.1 (861.73) (222.08)
Net cash used in operating activities (3,301.91) (4,390.51)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and
capital work in progress (including oil asset, capital
creditors and capital advances) 3&4 (1,901.52) (2,832.97)
Purchase of intangible assets (including intangible
assets under development) 5A & 5B - (23.75)
Inter-corporate deposits given 9 (65.00) -
Inter-corporate deposits repayment received 9 65.00 949.26
Investment in fixed deposits not considered as
cash and cash equivalents 17 (250.00) (500.00)
Investment in mutual funds 14 (10,000.00) (4,700.53)
Proceeds from redemption of mutual funds 14 8,629.68 5,675.47
Loan to a subsidiary 9 (2.02) (1.79)
Interest income received 30 196.52 155.76
Net cash used in investing activities (3,327.34) (1,278.55)
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term borrowings 21 (150.82) (69.08)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 21 684.06 37.00
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) short-term
borrowings (net) 21 (220.97) 242.86
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including
securities premium) 20 3,910.30 3,758.22
Proceeds from issue of convertible share warrants 20 3,936.25 1,227.19
Payment of lease liabilities 39 (331.93) (261.14)
Interest paid on borrowings 21 (255.23) (157.49)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 39 (7.30) (14.34)
Net cash generated from financing activities 7,564.36 4,763.22
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 935.11 (905.84)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year 16 757.98 1,663.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,693.09 757.98

Note:

(i)  The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind

AS 7) "Statement of Cash Flows".

(i) There are no restricted balances in cash and cash equivalents.

(i) Figures in bracket represents outflow of cash and cash equivalents.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Bharat Shetty Kapil Garg

Partner Managing Director

Membership No.: 106815 (DIN-01360843)
Shweta Jain
Company Secretary

(ACS-23368)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nayan Mani Borah
Chairman
(DIN-00483006)

Nirav Talati
Chief Financial Officer
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity share capital

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Number of shares Amount
Equity shares (face value of ¥ 10 each) as at March 31, 2023 3,76,93,700 3,769.37
Increase/ (decrease) during the year (net) 29,59,183 295.92
Equity shares (face value of 10 each) as at March 31, 2024 4,06,52,883 4,065.29
Increase/ (decrease) during the year (net) 40,50,643 405.06
Equity shares (face value of ¥ 10 each) as at March 31, 2025 4,47,03,526 4,470.35

B. Other equity

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Money Equity Total
Securities Outstanding recei_ved instruments
Capital “ . employee Retained against through other
reserve preserve stock| earnings share comprehensive
options warrants income
As at March 31, 2023 44578| 18,407.00 6.61 (3,295.63) - 23.42| 1558717
Profit for the year - - -/ 2,870.30 - -l 2,870.30
Securities premium on shares issued . 113.55 . . . ) 11355
upon exercise of stock options
Securities premium on shares issued - 334875 ) . ) | 334875
upon conversion of share warrants
Money _ received on allotment of . . ) | 122719 122719
convertible share warrants
Other comprehensive income for the . . . 13.10 . . 1310
year
Recognition of share based payment } . 13.85 . ) ) 13.85
expenses for the year
Share based payments to employees . . 2008 (24.08) ) . )
of Parent Company
Transfer of employees to Parent
Company to whom stock options were - - (5.47) 5.41 - - -
granted
Transfer to securities premium on
exercise of stock options during the - 13.60 (13.60) - - - -
year
Capital reserve arising on business B B B B B
combination (Refer note 55) 411.00 411.00
As at March 31, 2024 856.78 21,882.90 25.53 (430.91) 1,227.19 23.42, 23,584.91
Profit for the year - - - 410394 - - 410394
Securities premium on shares issued ) 208.67 ) ) ) ) 208.67
upon exercise of stock options
Securities premium on shares issued upon | 452375 B | (1130.94) B 3392.81
conversion of share warrants
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (17.37) - - (17.37)
Recognition of share based payment . B 8501 B B B 8501
expenses for the year
Share based payments to employees of ) B 7490 (74.90) B B B
Parent Company ' '
Transfer due to lapse of employee stock ) ) (0.09) 0.09 ) ) )

options

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Money Equity Total
. Outstanding received  instruments
Capital sefeur:it:jer: employee Retained ~ against through other
reserve, P stock| earnings share comprehensive
reserve options warrants income
Transfer to equity share capital on exercise ) B B B B
of convertible warrants (96.25) (96.25)
Money rgcelved on allotment of convertible . . ) ) 3.936.25 ) 3936.25
preferential warrants
Transfer to securities premium on exercise . B B B B
of stock options during the year 25.00 (25.00)
As at March 31, 2025 856.78| 26,640.32 160.35| 3,580.85 3,936.25 23.42| 35,197.97

Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Capital reserve

The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase or cancellation (including forfeiture) of its own equity instruments to
capital reserve. It also includes gain arising from business combination transactions.

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. These reserves are utilized in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In line with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, the shares of
the Company held by Asian Qilfield Services Limited Employees Welfare Trust (ESOP Trust), are deducted from the equity
component.

Outstanding employee stock options

The Company has stock option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Company's shares have been granted
to certain employees including key management personnel. This reserve is used to recognize the value of equity-settled
share-based payments provided to employees, as part of their remuneration. The unutilized balance at the end of exercise
period, is transferred to retained earnings.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the accumulated profits / losses earned/ incurred by the Company over the years as reduced
by dividends or other distributions to the shareholders and remeasurement gains/ loss on defined benefit plan.

Money received against share warrants

Represents money received on allotment of convertible share warrants against which equity shares are yet to be allotted
by the Company.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

Represents changes in the fair value of certain investments measured through other comprehensive income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Bharat Shetty Kapil Garg Nayan Mani Borah

Partner Managing Director Chairman

Membership No.: 106815 (DIN-01360843) (DIN-00489006)
Shweta Jain Nirav Talati
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
(ACS-23368)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2025 Date: May 16, 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Asian Energy Services Limited (the "Company" or "AESL") is
a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. The Company
having CIN L23200MH1992PLC318353, is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and its
equity shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited. The Company provides services
in the energy sector such as seismic data acquisition,
data analysis, reservoir imaging, project handling, etc.
The Company is also engaged in the sale of crude oil.
The registered office of the Company is located at 3B, 3rd
floor, Omkar Esquare, Chunabhatti Signal, Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai — 400 022.

The standalone financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2025, were approved by the Board of Directors on
May 16, 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The standalone financial statements have been prepared to
comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013 ('the Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, other relevant provisions of the Act,
the presentation and disclosure requirement of Division Il of
Schedule IIl to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule Il1), and
the guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India, as applicable. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the standalone financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous year.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities, defined benefit obligations and employee share-
based payments, which are measured at fair value.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupee, which is also the Company's functional currency.

Allthe assets and liabilities have been classified as current or
non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle
of the Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule IlI
to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the
Company coversthe duration of the project/ contract/ service
including the defect liability/ warranty period and extends up
to the realization of receivables (including retention monies)
within the credit period normally applicable to the respective
project/ contract/ service. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are classified as non-current only.

[EMl MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

a)

b)

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount, the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the
Company uses a monthly average rate if the average
rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transactions.

Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are reported using the closing rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried
in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

Treatment of exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on settlement/
restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities of the Company are generally recognized as
income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Exchange differences are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price,
which is the consideration, adjusted for variable
considerations, if any, as specified in the contracts
with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected
from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals
for variable considerations are estimated based on
accumulated experience and underlying agreements
with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period
given to customers, there is no financing component in
the contract.

Contracts where the performance obligations are
satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as
to measurement or collectability of consideration, are
recognized as per the input method or output method,
based on the nature of obligations to be performed. The

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED




NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

Company recognizes revenue using the output method
on the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods/services transferred to the customer till
date relative to the value of remaining goods/services
promised under the contract. The Company recognizes
revenue using the input method on the basis of ratio
of costs incurred to date to the total estimated costs
at completion of performance obligation. Revenue is
recognized when the Company satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised services or
goods to its customers. When there is uncertainty
as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue
recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.

Revenues in excess of invoicing and conditioned
on something other than the passage of time are
classified as contract assets (unbilled work in progress)
while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities.

Revenue from 2D/ 3D seismic survey (including data
capturing and installing vibrator points), operations &
maintenance service on onshore/ offshore platform
and procurement services is measured based on
milestones reached, units delivered, efforts expended,
number of shot points/kilometers covered, etc. as per
the terms of contract.

Revenue from engineering and construction services
is recognized over time based on input method where
the extent of progress towards completion is measured
based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the
total estimated costs at completion of performance
obligation. The total costs of contracts are estimated
based on technical and other estimates.

Revenue from sale of crude oil is recognized at the point
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer and is measured net of government's share
of revenue. The control of the goods is transferred upon
delivery to the customers either at the site location of
the Company or specific location of the customer or
when the goods are handed over to the freight carrier,
as the case may be. As per the Revenue Sharing
Contract with the Government, a part of revenue is paid
to the Government. It is presented as a reduction from
the revenue from sale of crude oil as "Government's
share in revenue from sale of crude oil".

Revenue from consultancy service is based on
agreements/ arrangements with the customers and is
recognized as and when the service is performed.

Export benefits consist of scrips issued to the
Company under the relevant government schemes and
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are accounted on accrual basis when the conditions
precedent are met and thereis no significant uncertainty
about the collectability.

Costs to obtain a contract which are incurred regardless
of whether the contract was obtained are charged-off
in statement of profit and loss immediately in the period
in which such costs are incurred.

Other operational revenue represents income earned
from the activities incidental to the business and
is recognized when the performance obligation is
satisfied and right to receive the income is established
as per the terms of the contract.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when
the right to receive payment has been established,
provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably.

Other non-operating income is recognized as and when
due or received, whichever is earlier.

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in equity of subsidiaries and joint ventures
are accounted at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27
"Separate Financial Statements”. The Company reviews
the carrying value of investments carried at cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is recorded in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest in joint arrangements

As per Ind AS 111 “Joint Arrangements”, investment in
joint arrangement is classified as either Joint Operation
or Joint Venture. The classification depends on the
rights and obligations of each investor rather than
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Company
classifies its joint arrangements as Joint Ventures.
When the Company has joint control with other parties
of the arrangement and rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement, it recognizes its interest as joint
venture.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have the joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities relating to the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

The Company has entered into arrangement with
another entity and executed Revenue Sharing Contracts
("RSC") with the Government. This arrangement is in the
form of joint arrangements wherein the participating
entity's assets and liabilities are proportionate to it's
participating interest. In accounting for these joint
operations, the Company recognizes its assets and
liabilities in proportion to its participating interest.
Likewise, revenue and expenses are recognized for it's
participating interest only. The Company accounts for
the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
its interest in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.

The standalone financial statements of the Company
reflect its share of assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure of the arrangement which are accounted,
on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the
Company's accounts to the extent of the participating
interest of the Company as per the RSC.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense
and deferred tax expenses. Current tax and deferred tax
are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax:

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the
taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Act of the respective jurisdiction. The current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the Balance
Sheet approach on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets

f)

are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized, except when the deferred
tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using substantively enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which
the temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

The Company recognizes deferred tax liability for
all taxable temporary differences, except to the
extent that both of the following conditions are
satisfied:

+  When the Company can control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference; and

It is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Property, Plant and Equipment (other than oil assets)

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost. Cost of property, plant and equipment
comprises purchase price, non-refundable taxes,
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment
and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
property, plant and equipment.

ltems such as spare parts, stand-by equipment
and servicing equipment that meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost
and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature
of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.
The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included
in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision is met.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) comprises cost of
property, plant and equipment and directly related
expenses, net of accumulated impairment losses, if
any, that are not yet ready for their intended use at the
reporting date.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is provided based on useful life of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 as
per straight line method except for certain categories
of assets in respect of which life has been assessed
internally by management, taking into account the
nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset,
the operating conditions of the asset, past history
of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support,
etc. The summary of such assets is presented below:

Useful life
10to 15 years

Asset

Survey & Communication
equipment which includes Radios,
GPS, Wireless, WRU'S, Garmin
Ground Electronics including
Geophones, Recording Channels
and other related equipment
Portable Drilling Rigs used for shot-
hole drilling under seismic data
acquisition

10to 15 years

5to 15 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to
continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognized as at April 01, 2016,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant
and equipment.

Oil Assets

Oil assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depletion and impairment and are presented as
property, plant and equipment. These are accounted
in respect of an area / field having proved oil and gas
reserves, when the wells in the area / field are ready to
commence commercial production.

Oil assets acquired in a business combination are
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.

For oil assets, a "successful efforts” based accounting
policy is followed. Costs incurred prior to obtaining
the legal rights to explore an area are expensed
immediately to the statement of profit and loss.
All costs incurred after the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of producing oil/gas/hydrocarbons
has been demonstrated, are capitalized. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only where it either enhances
the economic benefits of the development/producing
asset or replaces part of the existing development/
producing asset.

All costs relating to development wells are initially
capitalized as 'Wells in Progress’ under CWIP and
transferred to oil assets on completion.

Depletion is charged on a unit of production method
reflecting the pattern of consumption. Depletable
reserves are proved reserves for acquisition costs
and proved and developed reserves for successful
exploratory wells, development wells, processing
facilities, distribution assets, estimated future
abandonment cost and all other related costs. Reserves
are considered on working interest basis which are
assessed periodically. Impact of changes to reserves,
if any are accounted prospectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets such as computer software acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Intangible assets arising on acquisition of business
are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated j)  Inventories
useful life of & years on straight line method and is Inventories of finished goods of crude oil is valued
recognized in the statement of profit and loss under at lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost is
the head "Depreciation and Amortization expense”. The determined on absorption costing method basis which
estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the include direct cost and directly attributable service
amortization period are reviewed at the end of each cost including depreciation and depletion but excludes
financial year and the amortization period is revised to recoverable taxes.
reflect the changed pattern, if any.
] ) k) Cash and cash equivalents

Intangible under development (IUD) comprises of ) . .
direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable Cash and cash qulvalgnts comprises cash in hand
borrowing cost, if any, on intangible assets which anq deman‘dldeposr{s W|th banks, short-term balances
are not ready for their intended use. Expenditure on (with an original Im'altunty Qf thrge mopths or less from
research activities is recognized in statement of profit the datel of aCQUISlI’[IOﬂ.), highly liquid investments that
and loss as incurred. are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

i) Decommissioning costs value.
Provision for decommissioning costs is recognized | .
} )  Borrowing costs
when the Company has a legal or constructive . . ) )
obligation to plug and abandon a well, dismantle and Borrowing costs lcon3|sts qf |nt§rest, ancillary lcosts
remove plant and equipment to restore the site on and other costs in connection with the borrowing of
which it is located. The estimated liability towards funds.
the costs re|a’[ing to dismant“ng’ abandoning and Borrovving costs attributable to acquisition and/
restoring well sites and allied facilities are recognized in or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized
respective assets when the well is completed, and the as a part of the cost of such assets, up to the date
plant and equipment are installed. such assets are ready for their intended use. All other
The amount recognized is the present value of the borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit
estimated future expenditure determined using and Loss.
existing technology at current prices and escalated m) Impairment of non-financial assets
using appropriate inflation rate till the expected date of The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether
decommissioning and discounted up to the reporting there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
date using the appropriate risk-free interest rate. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
The corresponding amount is also capitalized to the testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
cost of the producing property and is depleted on unit the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
of production method. Any change in the estimated amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
liability is dealt with prospectively and is also adjusted unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
to the carrying value of the producing property. value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
Any change in the present value of the estimated individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
decommissioning  expenditure  other than the cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
periodic unwinding of discount is adjusted to the other assets or Groups of assets.
decommissioning provision and the carrying value of When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
the asset. In case reversal of provision exceeds the its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
carryingamount of the related asset, the excess amount impaired and is written down to its recoverable
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amount. Impairment losses of continuing operations
unwinding of discount on provision is charged in the are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. .
n) Employee stock option scheme

Provision for decommissioning cost in respect of
assets under joint operations is considered as per the
participating interest of the Company in the oilfield.

The Company operates equity-settled share-based
remuneration plans for its employees.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based payment are measured at their fair values
on the grant date and is recognized as an employee
expense, in the profit or loss with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the options. The
increase in equity recognized in connection with share-
based payment transaction is presented as a separate
component in equity. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
stock options that vest. Grant date is the date when the
Company and employees have shared an understanding
of terms and conditions on the arrangement.

All share-based transactions are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss except when
share based transactions are done with the employees
of group companies wherein the Company does not
receive services. The amount attributable to such
transactions are recognized directly within equity. If
vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the
expenseisallocatedoverthevesting period,based onthe
best available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is any indication that the
number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. Any adjustment to cumulative
share-based compensation resulting from a revision is
recognized in the current period. The number of vested
options ultimately exercised by holder does not impact
the expense recorded in any period. Market conditions
are considered when estimating the fair value of the
equity instruments granted.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received,
net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are
allocated to share capital up to the nominal (or par)
value of the shares issued with any excess being
recorded as securities premium.

The Company has implemented its stock option
plan through creation of an Employee Benefit Trust
(ESOP Trust). The Company treats ESOP Trust as its
extension. The Company has advanced an interest free
loan to ESOP Trust which in turn purchases shares of
the Company from open market, for giving shares to
employees. The balance equity shares not exercised
and held by the ESOP Trust are disclosed as a reduction
from the share capital and securities premium account
with an equivalent adjustment to the subscription loan
advanced to the ESOP Trust.
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Leases

Company as a lessee

At the commencement date of a lease, the Company
recognizes a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognized and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of
the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

The Company recognizes lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification or a change in the lease
term. The Company separately recognizes the interest
expense on the lease liability as finance cost and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease when both of the following conditions
are met:

+  The modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets.

. The consideration for the lease increases
commensurate with the standalone price for the
increase in scope and any adjustments to that
stand-alone price reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that fully or partially decreases
the scope of the lease the Company decreases the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
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p)

partial or full termination of the lease. Any difference
between those adjustments is recognized in profit or
loss at the effective date of the modification.

The Company has elected to use the exemptions
under the standard on lease contracts for which
the lease terms end within 12 months as of the date
of initial application, and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The Company
recognizes the lease payments associated with such
leases as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss.

Company as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases where the
Company is a lessor is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary
cost increases.

Business combinations

The Company accounts for its business combination
under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition
related costs are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

Identifiableassetsacquiredandliabilitiesand contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

The excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over
the aggregate consideration transferred is recognized
as capital reserve.

The Company determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets include an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the business combination occurs, the Company
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement
period, the Company retrospectively adjusts the
provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
and, if known, would have affected the measurement of
the amounts recognized as of that date.

q)

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments (assets and liabilities) are
recognized when the Company becomes a party to a
contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, other
than those designated as fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in statement of profit and loss. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price. The amount
of retention money held by the customers is disclosed
as part of trade receivables.

i.  Financial assets

All regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchase or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

All recognized financial assets are subsequently

measured in their entirety at either amortised cost

or fair value, depending on the classification of the

financial assets:

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both
the following conditions are met:
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. The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

+  Contractual terms of the instruments give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The EIR amortization is included in other income in the
statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables, loans, etc.

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets. Financial
instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in
the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, dividend income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Debt instrument

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any
debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified at FVTPL. Financial assets included within
the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company decides to classify
the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company
makes such election on an instrument-by instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition
and is irrevocable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

- AL
Financial Statements

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument
as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in
the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

+  The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass through' arrangement; and either

- the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

. Debt instruments measured at amortized cost
e.g., loans and bank deposits

. Trade receivables
. Other financial assets not designated as FVTPL

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance
based on 12-month ECL.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses
resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables  (including lease receivables). The
application of simplified approach does not require
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii. Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are held for trading or are designated
as FVTPL on initial recognition. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in
the profit or loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
iii  Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an
amount of consideration under the contract with

s)

a customer that is unconditional and realizable
on the due date (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration
is due). Trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

iv. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed
terms. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognized initially at their transaction price and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

v. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.

Contingencies

Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
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but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is

made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the standalone
financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continuously and if it is virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assets and
the related income are recognized in the period in which
the change occurs. Contingent assets are recognized

where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

t) Employee Benefits

Liability on account of short-term employee benefits
is recognized on an undiscounted and accrual basis
during the period when the employee renders service/

vesting period of the benefit.

Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company pays contribution to the provident fund
and employee state insurance corporation which is
administered by respective Government authorities.
The Company has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The Contributions
are recognized as employee benefit expense in the

statement of profit and loss to the year it pertains.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity: The Company's liability towards gratuity is
determined using the projected unit credit method
which considers each period of service as giving rise
to additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures
each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
The cost for past services is recognized on a straight
line basis over the average period until the amended

benefits become vested.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the statement of

changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Obligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows using a discount rate
that is determined by reference to market yields at
the Balance Sheet date on Government bonds where
the currency and the terms of Government bonds are
consistent with the currency and estimated term of

defined benefit obligation.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
andtheweighted average number of shares outstanding
are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity
shares from the exercise of options on unissued share
capital. The number of equity shares is the aggregate of
the weighted average number of equity shares and the
weighted average number of equity shares which are
to be issued in the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.

Segment reporting

Segments are identified based on the manner in which
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) decides
about resource allocation and reviews performance of
the Company. The Managing Director of the Company
is identified as CODM, who assesses the financial
performance and position of the Company and makes
strategic decisions.

The CODM reviews revenue and gross profit as the
performance indicators and does not review the total
assets and liabilities for each reportable segment.
The measurement of each segment's revenues and
expenses is consistent with the accounting policies that
are used in preparation of the Company's standalone
financial statements.

Unforeseeable losses

The Company has a process whereby periodically all
long-term contracts (including derivative contracts)
are assessed for material foreseeable losses. As at
the year end, the Company did not have any long-term
contracts (including derivative contracts) for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

Key accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial
statements requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities reflected



< Asian

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Energy Services

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

in future periods. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed by management
at each reporting date. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Any revision of these estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future
periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation and
assumptions/ uncertainty and judgements in applying
accounting policies are as follows:

0]

(i)

Deferred income taxes

The assessment of the probability of future
taxable profit in which deferred tax assets can
be utilized is based on the Company's latest
forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-
taxable profit and expenses and specific limits
to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. The
tax rules in the different jurisdictions in which the
Company operates are also carefully taken into
consideration. If a positive forecast of taxable
profit indicates the probable use of a deferred tax
asset, especially when it can be utilized without
a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually
recognized in full.

Revenue recognition

Contracts with customers often include promises
to transfer multiple services to a customer.
Determining whether services are considered
distinct performance obligations that should be
accounted for separately or together requires
significant judgment based on nature of the
contract, ability of the service to benefit the
customer on its own or together with other
readily available resources and the ability of the
service to be separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract. Estimation relating to
warranty obligation in the projects undertaken
by the Company are determined based on the
nature of the contract and future costs to fulfill the
obligation under the warranty period.

In contracts, where percentage of completion
method is followed for revenue recognition,
estimation of total budgeted cost of completion
is required to be made. The Company reviews
forecasts of total budgeted costs in the scope
of work and other payments to the extent that
they are probable, and they are capable of being
measured at the end of each reporting period.

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

Useful lives of various assets

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation or
depletion is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset's expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. The useful
lives and residual values of assets are determined
by the management at the time of acquisition
of asset and reviewed periodically, including
at each financial year. The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well
as anticipation of future events, which may impact
their life, such as changes in technology.

Current income taxes

The tax jurisdiction for the Company is India.
Significant judgments are involved in determining
the provision for income taxes including judgment
on whether tax positions are probable of being
sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment
can involve complex issues, which can only
be resolved over extended time periods. The
recognition of taxes that are subject to certain
legal or economic limits or uncertainties is
assessed individually by management based on
the specific facts and circumstances.

Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several
statistical and other factors that attempt to
anticipate future events are used to calculate plan
expenses and liabilities. These factors include
expected discount rate assumptions and rate of
future compensation increases. To estimate these
factors, actuarial consultants also use estimates
such as withdrawal, turnover, and mortality rates
which require significant judgment. The actuarial
assumptions used by the Company may differ
materially from actual results in future periods
due to changing market and economic conditions,
regulatory events, judicial rulings, higher or lower
withdrawal rates, or longer or shorter participant
life spans.

Impairment

An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which an asset's or cash-generating
unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount to determine the recoverable amount,
management estimates expected future cash
flows from each asset or cash generating unit
and determines a suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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(vii)

In the process of measuring expected future cash
flows, management makes assumptions about
future operating results. These assumptions
relate to future events and circumstances. The
actual results may vary, and may cause significant
adjustments to the Company's assets.

In most cases, determining the applicable
discount rate involves estimating the appropriate
adjustment to market risk and the appropriate
adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

Expected credit loss

Refer note for Impairment of financial assets
mentioned in accounting policy on financial
instruments above.

(viii) Share based payments

(ix)

x)

Estimating fair value for share-based payment
requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model. The estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to
the valuation model including the expected life of
the option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them.

Fair value of financial instruments

Management uses valuation techniques in
measuring the fair value of financial instruments
where active market quotes are not available. In
applying the valuation technigues, management
makes maximum use of market inputs and
uses estimates and assumptions that are, as
far as possible, consistent with observable data
that market participants would use in pricing
the instrument. Where applicable data is not
observable, management uses its best estimate
about the assumptions that market participants
would make. These estimates may vary from the
actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's
length transaction at the reporting date.

Estimation of provision for decommissioning
costs

The Company along with the lead operator of
the oilfield operations, estimates provision for
decommissioning for the future decommissioning
of oil assets at the end of their economic lives.
The decommissioning activities would be in the
future, the exact requirements that may have
to be met during the occurrence of removal
events are uncertain. Technologies and costs
for decommissioning are varying constantly.
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The timing and amounts of future cash flows
are subject to uncertainty. The timing and the
future expenditures are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period. The economic life of the
oil assets is estimated based on the economic
production profile of the relevant oil asset.

Estimation of reserves

Management estimates production  profile
(proved and developed reserves) in relation to
all the oil and gas assets determined as per the
industry practice. The estimates so determined
are used for the computation of depletion and
loss on impairment, if any. The Company uses the
services of third-party agencies for estimation of
reserves of its assets who adopt latest industry
practices for their evaluation.

Business combination

Management applies judgement in determining
whether an acquisition constitute a business
or not. In applying judgement, the Company
determines whether the acquisition constitute
inputs and when processes are applied to those
inputs, it should have the ability to contribute to
the creation of outputs. Further, determination
of fair values of assets and liabilities acquired in
a business combination involves estimation of
future cash flows and operating results which
relate to future events and circumstances, which
might vary.

B3 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Standards notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies
new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As
on the date of release of these standalone financial
statements, MCA has notiflied an amendment
to Ind AS 21 regarding lack of exchangeability
between currencies, which is applicable for
reporting period beginning on or after April 01,
2025. Such amendment to existing standard has
not been adopted early by the Company.

New and amended standards notified by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA')

Amendments to Ind AS 116 - The amendment
to Ind AS 116 addresses the measurement of
lease liabilities in sale and leaseback transactions,
ensuring that seller-lessees do not recognize any
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gain or loss related to the retained right-of-use
asset.

Ind AS 117 - Ind AS 117 shall be applicable to
entities having (a) insurance contracts, including
reinsurance contracts, it issues; (b) reinsurance
contracts it holds; and (c) investment contracts
with  discretionary participation features it
issues, provided the entity also issues insurance
contracts.

MCA has also notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules,
2024, to provide relief to the insurers or insurance
companies. Additionally, Ind AS 104 has been
reissued for use by the insurers or insurance
companies.

The above new and amended standards had no impact
on the Company's standalone financial statements.
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IEMl PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Financial Stat

R
ements

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Freehold| Building Oilfield| Furniture Office| Computer| Vehicles| Vessels| Oil assets Total

land equipment and | equipment| equipment

fixtures

Gross carrying value
(at deemed cost)
As at March 31, 2023 7.95 167.32| 16,400.92 22.12 38.93 2,551.26 664.12 3.27 -1 19,855.89
Acquisition through
business combination - - - - - 2,181.00, 2,181.00
(Refer note 55)
Additions (Refer note - 2653 53954 053  67.52 929  97.99 - 37485 111625
(iii) below)
Disposals - - - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 7.95 193.85| 16,940.46 22.65 106.45| 2,560.55 762.11 3.27| 2,555.85| 23,153.14
Additions (Refer note | 2550 157343 6079 2721 2421 8996 | 39935 220045
(iii) below)
Disposals - - - - - - (153.53) - -l (153.53)
As at March 31, 2025 7.95 219.35| 18,513.89 83.44 133.66] 2,584.76 698.54 3.27| 2,955.20| 25,200.06
Accumulated
depreciation/
depletion
As at March 31, 2023 - 150.63| 8,229.17 19.77 36.94 2,517.57 178.01 2.90 -1 11,134.99
Additions - 10.39] 1,148.24 0.44 5.42 28.40 86.07 0.26 23.41 1,302.63
Deductions - - - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 - 161.02| 9,377.41 20.21 42.36 2,545.97 264.08 3.16 23.41| 12,437.62
Additions - 3.97| 1,231.50 1.04 17.00 13.12 100.06 0.11 3245/ 1,399.25
Deductions - - - - - - (75.64) - - (75.64)
As at March 31, 2025 - 164.99| 10,608.91 21.25 59.36| 2,559.09 288.50 3.27 55.86| 13,761.23
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 7.95 32.83| 7,563.05 2.44 64.09 14.58 498.03 0.11| 253244 10,715.52
As at March 31, 2025 7.95 54.36/ 7,904.98 62.19 74.30 25.67 410.04 -/ 2,899.34| 11,438.83

Notes:
(i)
(i)

Company as at the balance sheet date.

(i)

to ¥ 375.48 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: % 55.94 Lakhs).
IEM) CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CWIP)

The vehicles purchased through borrowing arrangement are hypothecated towards such borrowings.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment, are held in the name of the

Addition to oil asset for the year ended March 31, 2025 includes provision made for decommissioning liabilities amounting

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at | Additions during| Capitalizations As at
March 31, 2024 the year during the year| March 31, 2025

Oil wells in progress 115.72 146.96 - 262.68
Total 115.72 146.96 - 262.68
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at | Additions during| Capitalizations As at
March 31, 2023 theyear during the year, March 31, 2024

Oil wells in progress - 115.72 - 115.72
Total - 115.72 - 115.72
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CWIP ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2025

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 146.96 115.72 - - 262.68
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

As on March 31, 2024

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 115.72 - - - 115.72
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Note: There were no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

5A. Intangible Assets

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)

As at March 31, 2023 160.94 160.94
Additions - -
As at March 31, 2024 160.94 160.94
Additions - -
As at March 31, 2025 160.94 160.94
Accumulated amortization:

As at March 31, 2023 157.65 157.65
Amortization 2.90 2.90
Other adjustments 0.33 0.33
As at March 31, 2024 160.88 160.88
Amortization 0.06 0.06
Other adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2025 160.94 160.94
Net carrying value:

As at March 31, 2024 0.06 0.06
As at March 31, 2025 - -

5B. Intangible assets under development

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at | Additions during| Capitalizations As at
March 31, 2024 theyear| during the year| March 31, 2025

Computer software 23.75 - - 23.75
Total 23.75 - - 23.75
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at | Additions during| Capitalizations As at
March 31, 2023 theyear| during the year| March 31, 2024

Computer software - 23.75 - 23.75
Total - 23.75 - 23.75
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Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

As on March 31, 2025

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress - 23.75 - - 23.75
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

As on March 31, 2024

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 23.75 - - - 23.75
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Note: There were no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
B RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Office premise Total
Gross carrying value:

As at March 31, 2023 800.80 800.80
Additions - -
Disposals/ adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2024 800.80 800.80
Additions - -
Disposals/ adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2025 800.80 800.80
Accumulated depreciation:

As at March 31, 2023 501.67 501.67
Additions 137.96 137.96
Deductions/ adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2024 639.63 639.63
Additions 117.64 117.64
Deductions/ adjustments 0.01 0.01
As at March 31, 2025 757.28 757.28
Net carrying value:

As at March 31, 2024 161.17 161.17
As at March 31, 2025 43.52 43.52

Also refer note 39 for additional details in relation to right of use assets.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current
Investments in unquoted equity shares, fully paid up (carried at deemed cost)
(trade)
i)  In subsidiary companies outside India
1,000 (March 31, 2024: 1,000) : Equity shares of AOSL Petroleum Pte 0.31 0.31
Limited of USD 0.735 each
3,675 (March 31, 2024: 3,675) : Equity shares of Asian Qilfield & Energy 620.23 620.23
Services DMCC of AED 1,000 each
ii) In subsidiary companies in India
10,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,000) : Equity shares of AOSL Energy Services 1.00 1.00
Limited of ¥ 10 each
7,400 (March 31, 2024: 7,400) : Equity shares of Optimum Oil & Gas Private 0.74 0.74
Limited of ¥ 10 each
204,000 (March 31, 2024: 204,000) : Equity shares of Cure Multitrade 20.40 20.40
Private Limited of ¥ 10 each
ili) In joint ventures in India *
Share in profit/(loss) in Zuberi Asian Joint Venture - -
Share in profit/(loss) in AESL FFIL Joint Venture - -
Share in profit/(loss) in Asian Indwell Joint Venture - -
Share in profit/(loss) in Asian Oilmax Joint Venture - -
642.68 642.68
Investment in subsidiaries, other than in shares
g(ﬁ/jg%rate guarantee given in favour of Asian Qilfield & Energy Services 31 97 31 97
Value of stock options to the employees of subsidiary - Asian Oilfield & 061 .
Energy Services DMCC '
31.88 31.27
674.56 673.95
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 674.56 673.95
Aggregate amount of impairment allowance in the value of investments - -
Investments carried at cost 674.56 673.95

Investments carried at amortized cost

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss

*The Company is not required to have any investment in these entities as per the respective joint venture agreements.

IEM INVESTMENTS - OTHERS

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current
Investments in unquoted instruments (carried at FVTOCI):
Investments in convertible notes of Vaan Electric Moto Private Limited** 22.50 22.50
22.50 22.50
Investments in unquoted equity shares, fully paid up:
In private companies in India
21,500 (March 31, 2024: 21,500) equity shares of Vaan Electric Moto Private
Limited (of % 10 each ) eauity 60092 60092
600.92 600.92
623.42 623.42

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED




O=

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

- AL
Financial Statements

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 623.42 623.42
Aggregate amount of impairment allowance in the value of investments - -
Investments carried at amortized cost - -
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 623.42 623.42
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) - -

"These notes are convertible into fixed number of equity shares as specified in the terms of agreement.

*These are designated as FVTOCI as they are not held for trading purpose and are not in similar line of business as the Company,
thus disclosing their fair value change in profit and loss will not reflect the purpose of holding.

IEN Loans

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good:
Loans to a related party (Refer note 44) 8.47 6.45
Unsecured, credit impaired:
Loans to a related party (Refer note 44) 208.50 208.50
Less : Loss allowance (208.50) (208.50)
8.47 6.45
Sub-classification of loans (current and non current) :
Loans considered good - Secured . -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 8.47 6.45
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loans - credit impaired 208.50 208.50
Less: Loss allowance (208.50) (208.50)
Total 8.47 6.45

Notes:

1 Disclosure pursuant to the Regulation 34(3) read with para A of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Subsidiary companies: Purpose Amount outstanding Maximum outstanding balance
(gross)
As at As at Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025| March 31,2024| March 31,2025| March 31, 2024
AOSL Petroleum Pte Limited | Working capital 208.50 208.50 208.50 208.50
AOSL Energy Services Limited | General 8.47 6.45 8.47 6.45
corporate
purpose
216.97 214.95 216.97 214.95

2. Details of loans repayable on demand=

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Type of borrower

Amount of loan outstanding
(net of allowance)

% to the total loans

As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024 | March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
Related party 8.47 6.45 100.00% 100.00%
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Also, interest on loan receivable from one of the subsidiaries has not been accrued in books of account considering the financial
position of such subsidiary.

* Contractually, the loan is repayable on demand. However, the Company has provided an undertaking to the related party that
the loan will not be demanded atleast for a period of up to 12 months from the reporting date.

3. Loan to a related party (considered good) carries an interest rate of 10.00% p.a. (March 31, 2024 : 10.00% p.a.) and it is
repayable on demand.

4. There are no loans due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other person, or
from any firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

TN OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current (Unsecured, Considered Good)
In fixed deposit - with maturity of more than 12 months 612.66 2,652.16
Security deposits* 11.22 545.62
623.88 3,197.78
Current (Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits* 761.73 211.09
Other receivable from related parties (Refer note 44) 1.44 279.85
763.17 490.94

Note: For details of fixed deposits held as security, refer note 17.

* Security deposits are interest free non-derivative financial assets carried at amortized cost. These primarily include deposits
given against rented premises and for tender bidding.

[EEM INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax receivable 74.20 443.34
74.20 443.34

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax receivable 74.20 44334
Current tax liability (refer note 28) 138.89 -
Net balance (64.69) 443.34

11.1: Movement in income tax assets/ (liability) is as follows:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net income tax asset at the beginning of the year 44334 287.08
Income tax paid/ (refund)+ 861.73 224.47
Income tax expense for current year (1,280.36) (68.24)
Adjustment for tax of prior years (89.68) -
Other change 0.28 0.03
Net income tax asset/ (liability) at the end of the year (64.69) 443.34

*Includes ¥ 17.98 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 2.39 Lakhs) representing interest thereon received by the Company.
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax
- Current year 1,280.36 68.24
- Earlier year 89.68 -
1,370.04 68.24
Deferred tax
Origination/ (reversal) of temporary differences 28.61 241.50
Total tax expense/ (credit) 1,398.65 309.74

Note 11.3: Reconciliation of tax expense and the profit before tax multiplied by tax rate

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 5,602.59 3,180.04
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 2517%
Expected income tax expense/ (credit) 1,384.89 800.35
Tax effect of:
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 467.39 383.66
Expenses deductible in determining taxable profit (558.14) (471.37)
Income not-taxable under Income tax Act, 1961 (19.34) (57.58)
Adjustment for tax of prior years 89.68 -
Effect of setting off brought forward losses against current year profit - (586.88)
Recognition /(Derecognition) of taxable temporary differences 28.61 241.50
Other non-deductible expenses 5.56 -
Tax expense/ (credit) for the year 1,398.65 309.74

11.4: During the year, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1967 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). Accordingly, there are

no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account.
[EEX OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Prepaid expenses 64.05 84.82
Balances with government authorities (net) 25217 307.81
316.22 392.63

[EEN INVENTORIES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Finished goods:
- Crude oil 17.78 29.01
17.78 29.01
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™ CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unquoted and valued at fair value through profit and loss
- Units of mutual funds 1,837.92 340.93
1,837.92 340.93
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,837.92 340.93
Aggregate amount of impairment allowance in the value of investments - -
Investments carried at amortized cost - -
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - -
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 1,837.92 340.93
[EEA TRADE RECEIVABLES
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured :
Considered good:
- Receivable from related parties (Refer note 44) 12,645.84 3,468.15
- Others 9,414.62 9,401.06
Credit impaired 358.22 328.61
22,418.68 13,197.82
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (358.22) (328.61)
22,060.46 12,869.21
Sub-classification of trade receivables
Considered good - Secured - -
Considered good - Unsecured 22,060.46 12,869.21
Significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit impaired 358.22 328.61
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (358.22) (328.61)
Total 22,060.46 12,869.21

Note 15.1: Movement in expected credit loss allowance :

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning 328.61 321.76
Add: Allowance made during the year 47.00 48.96
Less: Reversal of allowance/ amounts written off (17.39) (42.11)
Balance at the end 358.22 328.61

Notes:

1. There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other

person.

2. Tradereceivables due from a private company in which director of the Company is a director amounts to ¥ 1,026.12 Lakhs

(March 31,2024:% 1,130.86 Lakhs).

3. Trade receivables includes retention money amounting to ¥ 5,347.20 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 : ¥ 2,303.49 Lakhs).
4. Refer note 41 for disclosures relating to the credit risk exposure and analysis relating to allowances for expected credit

loss.
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
Total
Less than | 6 months | 1-2year | 2-3year | More than
6 months | - 1 year 3 years
()  Undisputed trade receivables 16,142.76| 5,581.62 336.09 - - -1 22,060.47
considered good*
(i) Undisputed trade receivables 16.16 94.21 53.14 1.83 - - 165.34
credit impaired
(i) Disputed trade receivables - - - - - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - - - - - 192.87 192.87
credit impaired
Total 16,158.92| 5,675.83 389.23 1.83 - 192.87| 22,418.68

*Includes unbilled trade receivables amounting to ¥ 2,742.59 Lakhs within the category - not due.

As at March 31, 2024
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
Total
Less than | 6 months | 1-2year | 2-3year | More than
6 months | - 1year 3 years
() Undisputed trade receivables 10,280.19| 2,538.32 31.93 18.77 - -1 12,869.21
considered good*
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - 47.74 8.17 79.83 - - 135.74
credit impaired
(i) Disputed trade receivables - - - - - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - - - - - 192.87 192.87
credit impaired
Total 10,280.19 2,586.06 40.10 98.60 - 192.87| 13,197.82

*Includes unbilled trade receivables amounting to ¥ 1,864.88 Lakhs within the category - not due.

[EBA cASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:
In current accounts 739.24 734.55
In deposits account with original maturity of less than 3 months 930.19 -
In cash credit account (debit balances) [Refer note 21(b)(i)] - 1.79
Cash on hand 23.66 21.64
1,693.09 757.98

Note: There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of respective reporting

periods.
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LE@ BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
In deposit accounts - with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 5776.55 3059.72
12 months=*
5,776.55 3,059.72
* Deposits (Current and non current) held as margin money or collateral against 3821.74 5211.88
the borrowings, guarantees and other commitment.

[EEN CONTRACT ASSETS (UNBILLED WORK-IN-PROGRESS)

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good:-
Contract assets (Unbilled work-in-progress) [Refer note 50(d)] 8,608.54 2,5675.02
Less: loss allowance (8.61) -
8,599.93 2,575.02

Note 18.1 Movement in loss allowance on contract assets

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Allowance made during the year 8.61 -
Less: Reversal of allowance/ amounts written back - -
Balance at the end of the year 8.61 -

BN OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with government authorities (net) 1,939.61 794.99
Prepaid expenses 178.67 132.02
Advance to suppliers:
- Unsecured, considered good 1,067.06 294.27
Employee advances:
- Unsecured, considered good 11.81 0.16
3,197.15 1,221.44
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2 EQuiTY SHARE CAPITAL

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(@) Authorized :
50,000,000 (March 31, 2024 : 50,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00
(b) Issued
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
44,774,444 (March 31, 2024 : 40,924,444) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 4,477.44 4,092.44
4,477.44 4,092.44
(c) Subscribed and fully paid-up
44,774,444 (March 31, 2024 : 40,924,444) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 447744 4,092.44
Less : 70,918 (March 31, 2024 : 271,561) equity shares held in trust for (7.09) (27.15)
employees under ESOP Scheme 2021 [Refer note (g) below] ' '
4,470.35 4,065.29

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Number of shares Amount
Equity shares as at March 31, 2023 3,76,93,700 3,769.37
Add : Issued by ESOP trust on exercise of stock options 1,09,183 10.92
Add : Issued upon conversion of share warrants (Refer note (h) below) 28,50,000 285.00
Equity shares as at March 31, 2024 4,06,52,883 4,065.29
Add : Issued by ESOP trust on exercise of stock options 2,00,643 20.06
Add : Issued upon conversion of share warrants (Refer note (h) below) 38,50,000 385.00
Equity shares as at March 31, 2025 4,47,03,526 4,470.35

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting except for interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholder.

Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of shareholder As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares % of holding* No. of shares % of holding*
(in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Oilmax Energy Private Limited 272.38 60.83% 238.88 58.37%

The above information is furnished as per the shareholders register as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.
Details of equity shares held by the Holding Company

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of shareholder As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares % of holding* No. of shares % of holding*
(in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Oilmax Energy Private Limited 272.38 60.83% 238.88 58.37%
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(e) Details of equity shares held by promoters

()

(9)

(h)

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of shareholder As at As at % change during
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 the year ended
No. of shares| % of holding*|  No. of shares| % of holding+ March 31, 2025"

(in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Oilmax Energy Private Limited 272.38 60.83% 238.88 58.37% 14.02%
Ritu Garg 0.62 0.14% 0.62 0.15% 0.01%

()

(if)

There is anincrease in the percentage holding of Qilmax Energy Private Limited by 14.02% (March 31, 2024: 2.65%) as
additional shares were allotted by way of preferential allottment during the year ended March 31, 2025 and additional
shares were purchased vide open market transaction during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There is a reduction in the percentage holding of Ritu Garg by 0.01% as the share capital of the Company has
increased during the year ended March 31, 2025, however there is no change in the number of equity shares held
by Ritu Garg. There was a reduction in the percetange holding by 50.65% during the year ended March 31, 2024 as
shares were sold vide open market transaction.

*Computed excluding the equity shares held in trust for the employees under the ESOP scheme.

No additional shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares or for consideration other than cash and also
no shares have been bought back during the last five years.

Employee Stock Option Plan

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balance stock options - available with ESOP trust towards AESL ESOP

2021 scheme (Refer notes below) 70918 271,561

Notes:

(i)  The balance unexercised equity shares held by the ESOP Trust at the end of the year had been reduced against the

(i)

(iv)

share capital as if the trust is administered by the Company itself. The securities premium related to the unexercised
equity shares held by the trust at the close of the year amounting to ¥ 82.59 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 228.44 Lakhs)
has been reduced from securities premium account and adjusted against the loan outstanding from the ESOP Trust.

In 2021-22, the Company had approved "Asian Energy Services Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021" ("AESL
ESOP 2021") authorizing grant of maximum 380,744 stock options to the eligible employees. During the current year,
200,643 stock options were exercised (March 31, 2024: 109,183 stock options).

During the current year, the Company has approved "Asian Energy Services Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan —
2024" ("AESL ESOP 2024") authorizing grant of not exceeding 380,744 stock options to the eligible employees. Under
this scheme, equity shares will be directly allotted by the Company as and when exercised.

During the current year, 5,030 stock options had lapsed (March 31, 2024: 65,144 stock options) under AESL ESOP
2021 scheme.

Share warrants

(0)

(if)

The Allotment Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, on November 05, 2024, considered and approved
the allotment of 47,00,000 convertible share warrants on preferential basis to certain identified non-promoter
persons/ entities ("Allottees") each carrying a right upon being fully paid up, to subscribe one equity share of face
value of ¥ 10 each at an issue price of ¥ 335.00 /-.

The Company has complied with the provisions of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules framed thereunder in relation to such preferential allotment on a private placement basis.

The Allotment Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, on August 21, 2023, considered and approved
the allotment of 67,00,000 convertible share warrants on preferential basis to certain persons/ entities each carrying
right upon being fully paid up, to subscribe one equity share of face value of ¥ 10 each at an issue price of ¥ 127.50/-.
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Out of these warrants, the Company has allotted 28,50,000 and 38,50,000 equity shares during the year ended March
31,2024 and March 31, 2025 respectively.

The Company has complied with the provisions of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules framed thereunder in relation to such preferential allotment on a private placement basis.

IEZN soRROWINGS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current - at amortized cost
Secured
Term Loan from Bank [Refer note [a(1)] below] 684.04 -
Vehicle loan [Refer note [a(2)] below] 106.72 323.54
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (157.16) (229.35)
633.60 94.19
Current - at amortized cost
Secured
Working capital facilities from bank (Refer note (b) below) 1,5679.85 1,800.82
Current maturities of long term borrowings 157.16 229.35
1,737.01 2,030.17

(a) Nature of security and terms of repayment of long term borrowings

1 Term loan from Bank

During the current year, the Company has availed term loan from Bank of Maharashtra for the purpose of purchase of
plant and machinery carrying variable interest rate linked to MCLR plus spread (9.30% p.a as at March 31, 2025) with
agreed interest rate reset clause which is repayable in 42 equal monthly installments along with interest, upto 2029-
30. These are primarily secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machinery to be purchased out of the proceeds
of such loan. The moratorium period of 6 months is applicable for principal repayment from the first disbursement
date.

The loan is also secured by way of corporate guarantee by M/s Oilmax Energy Private Limited (Holding Company).

2. Vehicle Loan-

The Company has availed vehicle loans. Interest rate charged ranges from 8.75% p.a. to 10.00% p.a. The vehicles
financed through such borrowing are forming part of the property, plant and equipment and have been hypothecated
for the said borrowings. The borrowings will be repaid by the Company in equal predetermined installments over
a period ranging from 39 to 48 months from the borrowings origination date with the last installment repayable in
2026-27.

(b) Working capital facilities from bank :

(i) Cash credit facility from Bank of Maharashtra is secured by way of first pari-passu charge on stock and book debts
and all the current assets of the Company. Further, the facility is secured by certain fixed deposits and counter
indemnity. The interest rate applicable to the facility is computed using prevailing MCLR plus spread (3.80% p.a. as
on March 317, 2025). These are repayable on demand. The facility is also secured by way of corporate guarantee by
M/s Qilmax Energy Private Limited (Holding Company).

(i) Cash credit facility from Union Bank of India is secured by way of exclusive charge on certain fixed deposits
and counter indemnity, hypothecation of stock and book debts, plant and machineries at various projects of the
Company. The facility is secured by way of personal security of Mr. Kapil Garg (Managing Director), Mrs. Ritu Garg
(Promoter) and Mr. Aman Garg (Non-Executive Director and relative of promoter and managing director). The interest
rate applicable to the facility is computed using prevailing MCLR plus spread (9.80% p.a. as on March 31, 2025).
The above mentioned personnel have also provided certain personal immovable properties as security. These are
repayable on demand. The facility is also secured by way of corporate guarantee by M/s Qilmax Energy Private

Limited (Holding Company).
(i) During the previous year, the Company had availed overdraft facilities which was secured by way of exclusive charge

on certain fixed deposits of the Company. The interest rate applicable to the facility was computed using prevailing
fixed deposits rate + 1%. The same has been fully repaid in current year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 105




< Asian

Energy Services

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (Contd.)

(iv) The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank is in agreement with the books of
account for all the quarters except for following instance:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of the bank

Nature of current
assets offered as
security

Quarter ended

Amount disclosed
as per return

Amount as per
books of account

Difference*

Union Bank of | Refer notes 21(b) June 2024 7,849.96 8,119.13 (269.17)
India & Bank of | (i) and 21(b)(ii)

Maharastra above.
Union Bank of | Refer notes 21(b) September 10,384.05 10,089.05 295.00
India & Bank of | (i) and 21(b)(ii) 2024

Maharastra above.
Union Bank of | Refer notes 21(b) December 15,671.48 15,866.33 (194.85)
India & Bank of | (i) and 21(b)(ii) 2024

Maharastra above.
Union Bank of | Refer notes 21(b) | March 2025 21,253.27 22,418.68 (1,165.41)

India & Bank of

(i) and 21(b)(ii)

Maharastra above.

* The differences are due to submissions being made basis provisional financial information by the Company.

(c) The Company has utilized the borrowings for the specific purpose for which it was obtained.
(d) The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or lender during the year and it has

(e)

complied with the applicable debt covenants, prescribed in the terms of borrowing.

Net debt reconciliation*

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 1,693.09 757.98
Current borrowings (1,5679.85) (1,800.82)
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (790.76) (323.54)
Net debt (677.52) (1,366.38)
Particulars Cash and cash Non-current Current Total

equivalents borrowings borrowings
(including current
maturities)

Excess liquidity/ (Net debt) as at 1,663.82 (355.61) (1,557.14) (248.93)
March 31, 2023
Cash flow (net) (905.84) - - (905.84)
Borrowings taken - (37.00) (40,161.45) (40,198.45)
Borrowings repaid - 69.08 39,918.59 39,987.67
Interest expense # - (34.46) (41.88) (76.34)
Interest paid # - 34.45 41.06 75.51
Other adjustments - - - -
Excess liquidity/ (Net debt) as at 757.98 (323.54) (1,800.82) (1,366.38)
March 31, 2024
Cash flow (net) 935.11 - - 935.11
Borrowings taken - (684.06) (62,367.77) (63,051.83)
Borrowings repaid - 150.82 62,588.74 62,739.56
Interest expense # - (26.63) (24.50) (51.13)
Interest paid # - 26.63 24.50 51.13
Other adjustments” - 66.02 - 66.02
Excess liquidity/ (Net debt) as at 1,693.09 (790.76) (1,579.85) (677.52)
March 31, 2025

AOther adjustments pertains to repayment of borrowings other than by way of consideration in cash.

*Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of lease liabilities has been presented under note 39.

*Excludes other borrowings costs incurred by the Company amounting to ¥ 259.14 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 100.65
Lakhs) and paid by the Company towards certain non-fund based facilities/ borrowings availed amounting to ¥ 204.10

Lakhs (March 31, 2024 : % 81.98 Lakhs).
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current
Lease liabilities (Refer note 39) - 32.50
- 32.50

Current

Lease liabilities (Refer note 39) 51.26 345.15
51.26 345.15

[EEN OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current
Security deposits 19.62 19.62
Liability for capital goods 183.47 113.07
Employee related payables 26.30 16.84
229.39 149.53

Note: There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

Company during the respective reporting periods.
[EZ8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contract liability - revenue received in advance [Refer note 50(d)] 498.72 174.83
Advances from customers - revenue received in advance [Refer note 50(d)] 514.04 306.34
Statutory dues payable 395.06 122.92
1,407.82 604.09

A rrovisions

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current
Provision for decommissioning liabilities (Refer note below) 466.60 61.08
Gratuity (Refer note 43) 104.43 38.48
571.03 99.56

Current

Gratuity (Refer note 43) 1.71 1.21
1.71 1.21

25.1 : Movement in provision for decommissioning liabilities :

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 61.08 -
Recognized during the year (Refer note 25.2 below) 375.48 55.94
Unwinding of discount 30.04 514
Balance at the end of the year 466.60 61.08
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25.2 . Represents provision created for the future decommissioning of oil asset at the end of its economic life. The economic
life of the oil asset is estimated on the basis of long- term production profile of the relevant oil asset. The decommissioning
activity would be in the future for which the exact requirements that may have to be met when the removal event occur is
uncertain.

[EZA DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Deferred tax liabilities 264.27 241.50
264.27 241.50

Movement during the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at | (Credit)/ charge (Credit)/ charge As at
March 31, 2024 in the in other | March 31, 2025
statement of | Comprehensive
profit and loss Income
(i) Deductible temporary difference:
Provision towards employee liabilities and (77.84) (118.78) - (196.62)
others
Allowance towards expected credit loss (82.71) (9.97) - (92.68)
Impact of right of use asset and lease liabilities (54.48) 52.53 - (1.95)
Expenses allowed on payment basis - (42.68) (5.84) (48.52)
Others (1.84) (4.00) - (5.84)
(ii) Taxable temporary difference:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible 44918 147.30 - 596.48
assets
Others 9.19 4.21 - 13.40
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (i)+(ii) 241.50 28.61 (5.84) 264.27
Movement during the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at | (Credit)/ charge | (Credit)/ charge As at
March 31, 2023 in the in other | March 31, 2024
statement of | Comprehensive
profit and loss Income
(i) Deductible temporary difference:
Provision towards employee liabilities and - (77.84) - (77.84)
others
Allowance towards expected credit loss - (82.71) - (82.71)
Impact of right of use asset and lease liabilities - (54.48) (54.48)
Others - (1.84) - (1.84)
(ii) Taxable temporary difference:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible - 44918 - 44918
assets
Others - 9.19 9.19
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (i)+(ii) - 241.50 - 241.50
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yA@ TRADE PAYABLES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below) 717.96 375.54
717.96 375.54
Dues to others 12,614.32 6,074.40
12,614.32 6,074.40
Total 13,332.28 6,449.94

(a) Trade payables are generally non-interest bearing and are settled within normal operating cycle of the Company.

Note: Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have
been determined based on the information as available with the Company and the details of amount due to them are as given

below:
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(@) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

715.96

374.50

Interest due on above

2.00

1.04

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year.

2.00

1.04

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

1.04

1.60

Trade payables ageing:
As at March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Not Due | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year | More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed dues - MSME 663.67 53.87 - 0.42 - 717.96
(i) Undsiputed dues - Others* | 12,089.55 262.17 255.24 7.36 -1 12,614.32
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 12,753.22 316.04 255.24 7.78 -| 13,332.28

* Includes unbilled trade payables of ¥ 8,654.74 Lakhs in the category - not due.

As at March 31, 2024

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Not Due | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year | More than 3 years

()  Undisputed dues - MSME* 24477 130.30 0.47 - - 375.54
(i) Undsiputed dues - Others* 4,681.24 1,334.62 32.74 11.44 14.36| 6,074.40
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 4,926.01 1,464.92 33.21 11.44 14.36 | 6,449.94
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* Includes unbilled trade payables of ¥ 3,227.43 Lakhs in the category - not due.

IEZX CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current tax payable [net of advance income taxes ¥ 1,159.17 Lakhs (March 31, 138.89 )
2024 : Nil)] ‘

138.89 -

[EXN REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of services :
Revenue from energy services 45,928.85 30,076.48
Sale of goods :
Sale of crude oil 515.75 414.48
Less: Government's share in revenue from sale of crude oil (41.85) (34.98)
473.90 379.50
Other operating income :
Liabilities/ provisions written back - 4.81
Scrap sales 5.49 4.88
Rental income [Refer note 39(2)(iv)] - 40.73
46,408.24 30,506.40

Note:
(i) Fordisclosures as per Ind AS 115, refer note 50.
[EfN oTHER INCOME

All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income on:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 397.53 194.25
Income tax refund 17.98 2.39
Overdue trade receivables - 26.15
Gain on mutual fund investments measured at FVTPL (net) 126.48 49.95
Net gain on foreign currency transactions - 183.20
541.99 455.94

[EEll PROJECT RELATED EXPENSE

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sub-contracting charges 6,320.67 6,314.48
Stores and consumables consumed 21,192.00 11,111.49
Camp establishment and maintenance 103.32 163.71
Share of expense in producing crude oil 354.99 313.79
Machinery hire charges (Refer note 39) 3,375.01 74.90
Vehicle hire charges (Refer note 39) 534.09 876.01
Labour charges 794.64 1,812.59
Freight expenses 176.80 140.53
Power and fuel 128.51 14511
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
License expenses 2.04 17.16
Repairs and maintenance:
- plant and machinery 638.96 394.08
Technical consultancy charges 823.20 596.68
Other project expenses 48.59 131.06
34,492.82 22,091.59

74 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Changes in inventories of crude oil
Inventories at the beginning of the year 29.01 -
Inventories at the end of the year (17.78) 29.01
11.23 (29.01)

[EEN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(Al amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus (including managerial remuneration) 3,070.61 2,399.92
Directors sitting fees (Refer note 44) 9.50 8.95
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 43.2.ii) 113.32 122.90
Gratuity expense (Refer note 43.2.i) 40.52 20.68
Share based payment expenses (Refer note 43.2.iii) 85.01 13.85
Staff welfare expenses 102.87 56.93
3,421.83 2,623.23

EZ¥ FINANCE cosTs

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest expense on:
- borrowings carried at amortized cost 52.86 75.52
- delayed payment of statutory dues 3.68 0.36
- lease liahilities (Refer note 39) 7.30 14.34
- Interest on late payment of advance income tax 17.70 -
- delayed payment to micro and small enterprises vendors 2.00 1.04
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning liability 30.04 514
Bank charges* 202.37 81.99
315.95 178.39

*primarily includes guarantee commission and other charges.
m DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation and depletion on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1,399.25 1,302.63
Amortization on intangible assets (Refer note 5A) 0.06 2.90
Depreciation on right of use assets (Refer note 6) 117.64 137.96
1,516.95 1,443.49
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[EE OTHER EXPENSES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advertisement and business promotion expenses 7.06 5.02
Rent (Refer note 39) 92.42 180.79
Rates and taxes 146.04 67.52
Travelling and conveyance 1565.97 177.81
Printing and stationery 7.13 17.69
Membership and subscription charges 7.50 3.27
Telephone and internet expenses 8.12 6.79
Insurance 45.18 65.84
Security expenses 77.00 44.25
Legal and professional charges (Refer note below) 908.49 701.39
Repairs and maintenance
- others 6.29 17.36
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 29.61 6.85
Loss allowance on contract assets 8.61 -
Trade receivables written off (Refer note 15.1) 17.39 4211
Net loss on foreign currency transactions 7.89 -
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 46) 46.26 -
Miscellaneous expenses 117.90 137.92
1,688.86 1,474.61

Note:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Details of payments to statutory auditors (excluding indirect taxes) Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As statutory auditor:
Statutory audit including limited reviews 50.00 45.00
Certification and other matters 8.75 14.65
Re-imbursement of expenses 3.20 2.32
61.95 61.97

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Proﬂﬁ attributable to equity holde_rs of the Company for basic and diluted 4103.94 287030

earnings used as numerator - (A) (in Lakhs)

Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for 4.30,40,465 3.83.56,735

Basic EPS - (B)

Add: Effeqt of potential equity shares which are dilutive (pertaining to employee 68397 9.71.910

stock options and convertible share warrants)

We|ghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for 43108862 393.28,645

Diluted EPS - (C)

Basic earnings per share () - (A)/(B) (face value ¥ 10 each) 9.54 7.48

Diluted earnings per share (%) - (A)/(C) (face value ¥ 10 each) 9.52 7.30
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(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
(@) Labour law matter= 7.78 7.78
7.78 7.78

*In relation to termination of services of an employee in earlier year.

2. Other monies for which the Company is contingently liable:

(b) TheHon'ble Supreme Court of India (“SC") by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited
& others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified
for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Due to numerous
interpretation issues relating to the applicability of SC judgement for the past period, the impact is not ascertainable
at present and consequently no effect has been given in the financial statements.

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, of pending resolution of the
respective proceedings, as it is determined only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various authorities.

[EEN DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO IND AS 116 - LEASES

The Company has lease contracts for its office premises and oilfield equipment. Generally, the Company is restricted from
assigning the leased assets. The Company's obligation under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to leased assets.

1. Recognition and derecognition

Right-of-use assets:

(i)  The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as at March 31, 2025 amounts to ¥ 43.52 Lakhs (March 31, 2024:
¥ 161.17 Lakhs) and has been disclosed separately in note 6 to the standalone financial statements.

Lease liabilities:

(i)  The movement in lease liabilities is as follows :

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 377.65 763.76
Add : Addition during the year - -
Add : Interest on lease liabilities 7.30 14.34
Less : Payment of lease liabilities (339.23) (275.48)
Add/ (less) : Other adjustments 5.54 (124.97)
Closing balance 51.26 377.65
Non current - 32.50
Current 51.26 345.15

(i) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and as

at March 31, 2024:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0-1 year 51.77 350.45
1-5 years - 35.00
5 years and above - -
Total 51.77 385.45
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2. The Company has recognized the following in the statement of profit and loss:
(i) Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets of ¥ 117.64 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: % 137.96 Lakhs) (Refer note 6)
(i) Interest on lease liabilities of ¥ 7.30 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: % 14.34 Lakhs) (Refer note 34).

(i) Expense amounting to 4,001.52 Lakhs (March 31,2024:% 1,131.70 Lakhs) related to leases of low-value assets and
leases with less than twelve months of lease term. These have been included under machine hire charges, vehicle
hire charges and rent expenses (Refer notes 31 and 36).

(iv) Rental income amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: ¥ 40.73 Lakhs) is related to assets given on lease with less than
twelve months of lease term. It has been included in other operating income (Refer note 29).

3. The total net cash outflow for the payment of lease liability and interest is ¥ 339.23 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 275.48
Lakhs).

IE%N FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy :

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Balance sheet are grouped into three levels of a fair value
hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Table showing carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities by category:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2025 Financial instruments by category Eair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost Tota‘I’:ﬁlr;ylng hierarchy

Financial assets:

Investment in subsidiaries - - 674.56 674.56

Investment in mutual funds 1,837.92 - - 1,837.92 Level 1

Investments other than above - 623.42 - 623.42 Level 3

Trade receivables - - 22,060.46 22,060.46

Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,693.09 1,693.09

Other bank balances - - 5,776.55 5,776.55

Loans - - 8.47 8.47

Other financial assets - - 1,387.05 1,387.05

Total 1,837.92 623.42 31,600.18 34,061.52

Financial liabilities:

Borrowings - - 2,370.61 2,370.61

Lease liabilities - - 51.26 51.26

Trade payables - - 13,332.28 13,332.28

Other financial liabilities - - 229.39 229.39

Total - - 15,983.54 15,983.54
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at March 31, 2024 Financial instruments by category Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost | Total carrying hierarchy
value

Financial assets:

Investment in subsidiaries - - 673.95 673.95

Investment in mutual funds 340.93 - - 340.93 Level 1
Investments other than above - 623.42 - 623.42 Level 3
Trade receivables - - 12,869.21 12,869.21

Cash and cash equivalents - - 757.98 757.98

Other bank balances - - 3,059.72 3,059.72

Loans - - 6.45 6.45

Other financial assets - - 3,688.72 3,688.72

Total 340.93 623.42 21,056.03 22,020.38

Financial liabilities:

Borrowings - - 2,124.36 2,124.36

Lease liabilities - - 377.65 377.65

Trade payables - - 6,449.94 6,449.94

Other financial liabilities - - 149.53 149.53

Total - - 9,101.48 9,101.48

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, current security deposit, trade
payables and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

Fair value of other non-current financial assets approximate their carrying amounts due to the fact that it is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using market rates of interest applicable as at reporting dates.

Fair value of long term borrowings approximate their carrying amounts due to the fact that long term borrowings are measured
at amortized cost using the floating rates/fixed rates of interest, which in turn are based on interest rates prevailing in the
market for similar transaction.

Fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV') as stated by the issuers of these
mutual fund units in the published statements as at reporting date.

Fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI

The fair value of investments carried at FVTOCI is determined, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available
market data. The fair value of these investments is categorized as Level 3 because the shares are neither listed on an exchange
and there were no recent observable arm'’s length transactions in the shares.

There are no transfers in either level during the reporting periods.
IZH FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the
entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements. The Company's risk
management is done in close co-ordination with the board of directors and focuses on actively securing the Company's short,
medium and long-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to volatile financial markets. Long-term financial investments
are managed to generate lasting returns. The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below:

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from loans and advances to related parties, trade receivables, bank deposits and other financial assets.
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Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions. Hence, there is no significant credit risk on such fixed
deposits.

The Company does not have significant credit risk from loans given considering these are provided to related parties or to
financial institution for shorter duration. Mutual fund investments are made in liquid and overnight plans of renowned asset
management companies only. The credit risk associated with bank, security deposits and mutual fund investments is relatively
low.

The Company trades with recognized and credit worthy third parties. The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability
of the counter party, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts
and ageing of accounts receivable.

Credit risk on trade receivables is limited as the Company's customer base majorly includes reputed and large corporate groups
and public sector enterprises. It is the Company's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. Also, generally the Company does not enter into sales transaction with customers having credit
loss history. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the Company's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. In case of trade receivables due from related parties and in case of disputed trade
receivables, the Company performs individual credit risk assessment and creates expected credit loss allowance (ECL) based
on internal assessment. Further, the Company computes ECL on undisputed trade receivables (including those where ultimate
customer is a non-related party) at each reporting date, based on provision matrix which is prepared considering historically
observed overdue rate over expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss rate for trade receivables:
(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ageing bucket Expected credit loss rate Gross carrying amount
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
Less than 180 days 0.10% to 5.00% 0.83% t0 2.04% 21,834.74 12,866.25
181 to 365 days 10.00% to 33.50% | 10.53% to 33.50% 389.23 40.10
366 to 545 days 67.00% 67.00% - 56.90
More than 545 days 100.00% 100.00% 194.70 234.57

*Includes disputed trade receivables amounting to ¥ 192.87 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 : ¥ 192.87 Lakhs).
a) Movement in the loss allowances on financial and other assets (excluding trade receivables) is as under:

Reconciliation of loss allowance on loans, other financial assets and other assets:
(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Amount
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2023 208.50
Add: Additional provision during the year -
Less: Write - off -
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2024 208.50
Add: Additional provision during the year -
Less: Write - off -
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2025 208.50

b) For reconciliation of loss allowance on trade receivables, refer note 15.1.

¢) Forreconciliation of loss allowance on contract assets, refer note 18.1.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities — borrowings,
trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, current investments and the cash flow that is
generated from operations. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.
Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate
source of funding.
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The Company considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing the liquidity risk, in
particular, its cash resource, investment in mutual funds and trade receivables.

Maturities of financial liabilities :

The tables below analyze the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the maturities
for all non-derivative financial liabilities. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant. For contractual maturities of lease liabilities, refer note 39.

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2025 On demand Less than 12 1-2 years 2-4 years Total
months
Borrowings 1,5679.85 157.16 242.70 390.90 2,370.61
Trade payables - 13,332.28 - - 13,332.28
Other financial liabilities - 229.39 - - 229.39
1,579.85 13,718.83 242.70 390.90 15,932.28
As at March 31, 2024 On demand Less than 12 1-2 years 2-4 years Total
months
Borrowings - 2,030.17 62.54 31.65 2,124.36
Trade payables - 6,449.94 - - 6,449.94
Other financial liabilities - 149.53 - - 149.53
- 8,629.64 62.54 31.65 8,723.83

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and net asset value
(NAV) of mutual fund units will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return. The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value
of post-employment benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the
relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

Mutual fund price risk

The value of unquoted mutual fund investments measured at fair value through profit and loss as at March 31, 2025 is
%1,837.92 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: % 340.93 Lakhs). A 10% change in value for year ended March 31, 2025 would result in
an impact of ¥ 183.79 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: % 34.09 Lakhs) on profit/ (loss) before tax and other equity (holding all other
variables constant).

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Company's transactions are carried out in INR (). The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from certain foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency. The Company's
operations in foreign currency creates natural foreign currency hedge. This results in insignificant net open foreign
currency exposures considering the volumes and operations of the Company.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in functional currency,
are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Currency unit Foreign INR (}) Foreign INR (3)
Currency Currency
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities usD 0.20 16.77 3.20 266.45
16.77 266.45
Exposure 16.77 266.45

Note: The Company has not entered into any hedging contract for the above exposure.
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Sensitivity:
The sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from financial instruments
denominated in USD:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Movement Impact Impact| Movement Impact on Impact
in rate on profit on other in rate | profit before on other
before tax* equity* tax+ equity*
usb 2.65% 0.44 0.44 1.41% 3.75 3.75

*Holding all other variables constant

An equal and opposite impact would be experienced in the event of decrease by a similar percentage.
Interest rate risk

This refers to risk to Company's cash flow and profits on account of movement in market interest rates.

For the Company the interest risk arises mainly from interest bearing borrowings which are at floating interest rates.
To mitigate interest rate risk, the Company closely monitors market interest and as appropriate makes use of hedged
products and optimizes borrowing mix / composition.

Interest rate risk exposure

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowings 2,263.89 1,800.82
Fixed rate borrowings 106.72 323.54
Total 2,370.61 2,124.36

Note: The above amounts are based on contractual liabilities as at balance sheet date.

Below is the sensitivity of profit/ (loss) before tax and other equity to change in interest rates:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Movement in rate Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impact in statement of profit and loss before tax and (0.35%) (7.92) (6.30)
other equity (holding all other variables constant)

An equal and opposite impact would be experienced in the event of an opposite change in interest rate by a similar
percentage.

The above calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on
risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt
outstanding during the period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safequard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can

conti

nue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal structure to reduce

the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the Capital structure, the Company may adjust the amounts of dividends paid

to sh
have

areholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell new assets to reduce debt. The Company does not
externally imposed capital requirements.
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(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total borrowings 2,370.61 2,124.36
Total equity 39,668.32 27,650.20
Debt to equity ratio (in times) 0.06 0.08

Note: In the long run, the Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within acceptable range as deemed appropriate by

board of directors, which at present is to have less than 0.50.

IZEN EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1. Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, incentives and allowances, short term compensated absences, etc., and the expected

cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the year in which the employee renders the related service.

2. Long term employee benefits
(i) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity (funded) :

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are
in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/
termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary

multiplied for the number of years of service.

A. Obligations and assets

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Movement in the present value of projected benefit obligation for gratuity :

At the beginning of the year 4917 46.79
Interest cost 3.50 3.44
Current service cost 37.38 17.90
Benefit paid (1.75) (5.68)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in demographic (1.98) -
assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in financial 1.29 1.18
assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to experience adjustment 23.89 (14.46)
At the end of the year 111.50 49.17
Movement in the fair value of plan assets :

Opening fair value of plan assets 5.02 9.00
Expected return on plan assets 0.36 0.66
Benefits paid - (4.46)
Actuarial gains /(losses) (0.02) (0.18)
Closing fair value of plan assets 5.36 5.02
Actual return on plan assets:

Expected return on plan assets 0.36 0.66
Actuarial (losses)/ gains on plan assets (0.02) (0.18)
Actual return on plan assets 0.34 0.48
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B. Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest cost (net of return on plan assets) 3.14 2.78
Current service cost 37.38 17.90
Net impact as employee benefit expenses in profit and loss 40.52 20.68
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in financial 1.29 1.18
assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to experience 23.89 (14.46)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to demographic assumption (1.98) -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses on plan assets 0.02 0.18
Net impact as other comprehensive (income)/ loss 23.22 (13.10)

C. Amount recognized in the balance sheet

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obligations as at year end 111.50 4917
Fair value of plan assets as at year end (5.36) (5.02)
Variation on account of opening balances of plan assets - (4.46)
Net liability recognized 106.14 39.69
Current asset/(liability) (1.71) (1.21)
Non-current asset/(liability) (104.43) (38.48)
Asset information

Group scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%
Expected employer's Contribution for the next year 57.63 26.99
Other information

Number of active members 372 316
Weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation for gratuity 12.87 years 13.16 years

D. The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

1st following year 2.14 1.21
2nd following year 4.67 1.54
3rd following year 4.75 2.42
4th following year 5.22 2.25
5th following year 6.62 2.11
6 years and onwards 85.85 38.43

E. Assumptions

The actuarial calculations used to estimate commitments and expenses in respect of gratuity is based on the following
assumptions which if changed, would affect the commitment's size, funding requirements and expense:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Rate of discounting - Indicative Government security referenced rate of

. 6.99% T11%
interest

Rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of employee turnover 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality rate during employment

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate table

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
[timate table
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F.  Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate (0.5% Movement Increase) (5.74) (2.57)
Discount rate (0.5% Movement Decrease) 6.22 2.71
Future salary growth (0.5% Movement Increase) 6.01 2.76
Future salary growth (0.5% Movement Decrease) (5.87) (2.57)

The sensitivity analyzes above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change
in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption,
the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized in the balance sheet has been applied.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the
previous period. Sensitivities due to mortality and turnover are not material and hence impact of change due to these are
not calculated.

Risk exposure
The Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are actual salary growth rate and reduction
in discount rate in future, which can increase the obligation.

(ii) Defined contribution plan

Provident fund and employee's state insurance corporation dues

The Company pays fixed contribution to the provident fund, employee's state insurance corporation entities
and labour welfare fund in relation to several state plans and insurances for individual employees. This fund is
administered by the respective Government authorities, and the Company has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay contributions in addition to its fixed contributions, which are recognized as an expense in the year the related
employee services are received.

Company's contribution to defined contribution plan recognized as employee benefit expenses is as below:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer's contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) 110.64 99.88
Additional contribution towards PF 0.27 11.42
Employer's contribution towards Employee's State Insurance
. 2.30 11.52
Corporation (ESIC)
Employers contribution towards Labour welfare fund (LWF) 0.11 0.08
113.32 122.90

(iii) Share-based payment transactions

In FY 2021 - 22, the Company had approved “Asian Energy Services Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021"
("AESL ESOP 2021") authorizing grant of not exceeding 380,744 stock options to the eligible employees. The scheme
is designed to provide long term incentives for certain employees to deliver long term shareholders return. During
the current year, the Company has granted Nil (March 31, 2023: 380,000) employee stock options convertible into
equivalent equity shares to the eligible employees including that of group company pursuant to such scheme. The
details of activity under the ESOP schemes are summarized below:
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During the current year, the Company has approved “Asian Energy Services Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan —
2024" ("AESL ESOP 2024") authorizing grant of not exceeding 380,744 stock options to the eligible employees. The
scheme is designed to provide long term incentives for certain employees to deliver long term shareholders return.
During the current year, the Company has granted 380,744 (March 31, 2024 Nil) employee stock options convertible
into equivalent equity shares to the eligible employees including that of group company pursuant to such scheme.
The details of activity under the ESOP schemes are summarized below:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars AESL ESOP 2021 AESL ESOP 2024
Date of approval of scheme by the 380,744 380,744
shareholders

Exercise price per share 114.00 100.00

Conditions attached:

- Vesting period 1 year from the grant date 1 year from the grant date

- Other conditions Exercise of vested options would be | Exercise of vested options would be

done any time before the termination
of the services of the employee
through resignation, retirement or

done any time before the termination
of the services of the employee
through resignation, retirement or

otherwise.

otherwise.

The expense recognized for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total e><lpense arising from equity-settled share-based payment 15991 3793
transactions

159.91 37.93

- Out of the above
Recognized in statement of profit and loss (Refer note 33) 85.01 13.85
Recognized in other equity in relation to stock options given to 24.90 2408
employees of group company
Total 159.91 37.93

Movements during the year in stock options:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars AESL ESOP 2021 AESL ESOP 2024

(Numbers in Lakhs) (Numbers in Lakhs)
Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 3.80 -
Less: Options lapsed during the year* (0.65) -
Less: Options exercised during the year (1.09) -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 2.06 -
Add: Options granted during the yearx* 0.70 3.81
Less: Options lapsed during the year* (0.05) -
Less: Options exercised during the year (2.01) -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2025 0.70 3.81

* Lapsed on account of employees resigned without exercising. This includes the options further granted

*+ Pertains to lapsed options which have been regranted to the other employees during the current year under the

scheme AESL ESOP 2021.
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Aggregate number of share options available with Key Management Personnel: 151,000 (March 31, 2024 : 29,314).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the employees' stock option plan

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars AESL ESOP 2021 AESL ESOP 2024
Exercise price (%) 114.00 100.00
Fair value per option 12.46 228.74

Grant date February 08, 2023 January 25, 2025
Vesting date February 08, 2024 January 25, 2026
Expiry date February 08, 2025 January 25, 2027

Dividend yield (%)

48.65%

52.01%

Expected price volatility (%)

Risk—free interest rate (%) 7.12% 6.62%
Expected life of share options (years) 2.00 2.00
Share price at grant date (%) 73.35 314.40

Model used

Black Scholes

Black Scholes

Expected volatility has been based on an evaluation of the historical volatility of the Company's share price, particularly
over the historical period commensurate with the expected term. The expected term of the instruments has been
based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour.

Under AESL ESOP 2021, the Company has approved regrant of certain unvested/ lapsed stock options to the as per

the details below:

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars AESL ESOP 2021
Number of options re-granted 70,231
Exercise price (in ) 114.00
Grant date May 03, 2024
Vesting date May 03, 2025
Expiry date May 03, 2026

Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options vested and exercisable at the end of the year:

AESL ESOP 2021

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Grant date Expiry date

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

No of options

Exercise price No of options

Exercise price

February 08, 2023 | February 08, 2025 -

- 2,05,673

114.00

Weighted average share price at the date of exercise of stock options exercised during the year was ¥ 330.78 per

share (March 31, 2024: % 313.83 per share).

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options is 1.09 years as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 0.72

year) under AESL ESOP 2021.

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options is 1.82 years as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Not

applicable) under AESL ESOP 2024.
2N RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
A. Name of related parties
a) Holding Company

Oilmax Energy Private Limited
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b) Subsidiary Company
AOSL Petroleum Pte Limited
Asian Qilfield & Energy Services DMCC ('ADMCC')
AOSL Energy Service Limited
Optimum QOil & Gas Private Limited
Cure Multitrade Private Limited
Ivorene Qil Services Nigeria Limited (Step-down subsidiary)

¢) Joint Ventures
Zuberi Asian Joint Venture
AESL FFIL Joint Venture
Asian Indwell Joint Venture (from March 13, 2024)
Asian Oilmax Joint Venture (from August 21, 2024)

d) Individuals having significant influence over the Company by virtue of owning indirect interest in the voting power
Ms. Ritu Garg - Promoter of the Company

e) Key Management Personnel (KMP)/ Directors
Mr. Ashutosh Kumar - Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director (upto May 31, 2023)
Mr. Nayan Mani Borah - Independent Director (Chairman)
Mr. Anil Kumar Jha - Independent Director (w.e.f. May 14, 2024)
Mr. Aman Garg - Non Executive Director (w.e.f. May 03, 2024)
Mr. Rabi Narayan Bastia - Non Executive Director
Ms. Anusha Mehta - Independent Director
Mr. Mukesh Jain - Non Executive Director
Mr. Nirav Talati - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Kapil Garg - Managing Director (w.e.f. June 01, 2023)
Mr. Kapil Garg - Non-executive Director (upto May 31, 2023)
Mr. Brij Mohan Bansal - Independent Director

Ms. Shweta Jain - Company Secretary

f)  Entities on which KMP & its relative have significant influence
Anirit Agro Hub LLP
Anirit Agritech Private Limited
B. Transactions with related parties :

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

S. | Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31,2025| March 31, 2024
1 Holding Company - Oilmax Energy Private Limited
Sale of services 1,872.01 1,974.95
Interest income on overdue trade receivables - 26.15
Acquisition of participatory interest in an oil field - 1,770.00
Reimbursement towards:
Sharing of expense in producing crude oil (Refer note (i) below) 354.99 313.79
Government's share in revenue from sale of crude oil (Refer note (i) below) 41.85 34.98
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress 258.97 566.44
(Refer note (i) below)
Issue of equity shares on conversion of preferential warrants (including 4,271.25 -
securities premium)
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(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

S. | Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

2 Subsidiaries

i.  Asian Oilfield & Energy Services DMCC

Investments made during the year? 0.61 -
Other operating income - 1.27
ii. AOSL Energy Service Limited
Loan advanced 1.46 1.36
Interest on loan advanced 0.56 0.43
3 Joint Ventures
i.  Zuberi Asian Joint Venture
Sale of services (including revenue received in advance) 2,618.42 347791
Amount paid on behalf of related party 7.07 0.28
ii. AESL FFIL Joint Venture
Sale of services (including revenue received in advance) 3,948.77 2,455.79
Amount paid on behalf of related party 212.47 108.77
Amount paid by related party on behalf of the Company 137.99 -
iii. Asian Indwell Joint Venture
Sale of services (including revenue received in advance) 10,812.34 -
Amount paid on behalf of related party 505.25 28.35
iv. Asian Oilmax Joint Venture
Sale of services (including revenue received in advance) 52.39 -
Amount paid on behalf of related party 0.89 -
4 Entities on which KMP & its relative have significant influence
i.  Anirit Agritech Private Limited
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 5.00
5 i.  Remuneration to KMP* (Short-term employee benefits)
Ashutosh Kumar - 33.74
Kapil Garg 157.00 0.00
Shweta Vaibhav Jain 21.16 16.65
Nirav Talati 7771 65.81
255.87 116.20
ii. Directors sitting fees :
Nayan Borah 2.25 2.50
Anusha Mehta 2.00 2.30
Rabi Bastia 1.10 1.00
Mukesh Jain 1.45 1.35
Brij Mohan Bansal 2.05 1.80
Anil Kumar Jha 0.65 -
9.50 8.95
ili. Reimbursement of expenses :
Ashutosh Kumar 7.93 4.42
Nirav Talati 2.46 0.97
Shweta Jain 0.28 1.36
10.67 6.75
iv. Professional fees:
Mukesh Jain 72.00 72.00
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(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

S. |Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31,2025| March 31, 2024

v. Rent expensex

Kapil Garg 42.00 42.00
Ritu Garg 42.00 42.00
C. Balances with related parties:

S. | Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31,2025| March 31, 2024
1 Holding Company - Oilmax Energy Private Limited

Trade receivables 1,026.12 1,130.86

Trade payables 344.14 _

Other financial liabilities 124.95 70.83
2 Subsidiary - AOSL Petroleum Pte Ltd

Investment 0.31 0.31

Unsecured loans given and interest thereon* 208.50 208.50
3 Subsidiary - Asian Oilfield & Energy Services DMCC

Investment 652.11 651.50

Payable towards lease liability* 16.77 266.46
4 Subsidiary - AOSL Energy Services Limited

Investment 1.00 1.00

Unsecured loan given and interest thereon 8.47 6.45
5 Subsidiary - Optimum Oil & Gas Private Limited

Investment 0.74 0.74
6 Subsidiary - Cure Multitrade Private Limited

Investment 20.40 20.40
7 Joint venture - Zuberi Asian Joint Venture

Trade receivables 2,095.83 1,748.27

Other current financial assets 0.31 140.68
8 Joint venture - AESL FFIL Joint Venture

Trade receivables 3,435.61 589.02

Other current financial assets - 110.82
9 Joint venture - Asian Indwell Joint Venture

Trade receivables 6,026.47 -

Other current financial assets 0.24 28.35
10 | Joint venture - Asian Oilmax Joint Venture

Trade receivables 61.82 -

Other current financial assets 0.89 -
11 | Entities on which KMP & its relative have significant influence - Anirit

Agritech Private Limited

Other financial liabilities - 0.90
12 | Payable to KMP

Ashutosh Kumar 0.31 0.31

Nirav Talati 0.12 0.82
13 | Security deposits given by the Company towards premises taken on leasex*

Kapil Garg 300.00 300.00

Ritu Garg 300.00 300.00
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D. Other outstanding arrangements:

Kapil Garg, Ritu Garg and Aman Garg have provided personal security towards cash credit facility availed by the Company
from Union Bank of India. These individuals have also provided certain personal immovable properties as security.

The Holding Company has also provided a Corporate Guarantee to the bankers towards cash credit facilities availed by the
Company. Such facility has a credit balance amounting to ¥ 1,579.85 Lakhs as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 - debit
balance of ¥ 1.79 Lakhs).

The Company has implemented one of its employee stock option plan through creation of a Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV).The Company treats such SPV as its extension as in substance the Company assumes all the risks and
rewards related to such arrangement including managing such SPV. Hence such SPV is not considered as related party
for disclosure purpose in this note.

A The figures does not include provision for gratuity since it is actuarially determined for the Company as a whole. Further,
1,517,000 stock options were granted to KMP during the current year (March 31, 2024 Nil). Further 1,571,000 stock options
are available with KMP's as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 : 29,314).

* The figures are based on contractual arrangement executed and does not include the impact of Ind AS.

=+ Provision towards outstanding loan and interest accrued thereon aggregating ¥ 208.50 Lakhs was made during the
year ended March 31, 2023. Also, interest on loan receivable from such subsidiary has not been accrued in the books of
account considering the financial position of such subsdiary.

# This pertains to value of stock options to the employees of subsidiary - Asian Qilfield & Energy Services DMCC (Refer
note 7).

Notes:

(i) Represents Company's share of expenses in joint operation at Indrora oilfield.

(i) Material transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, as applicable. The
closing balance with related parties are unsecured in nature. The settlement of receivable/ payable balances would
be done through cash or other financial asset.

IZEA UN-HEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURES:

For un-hedged foreign currency exposure, refer section ‘Foreign currency risk’ under note 41 - Financial Risk Management.
IZTA CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of
its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The
Board of Directors of the Company had constituted CSR Committee.

During the previous year, since the Company has not met the applicability criteria and hence, the Company has not carried out
any CSR activities. However, Company has met the criteria for applicability of CSR expenditure in current year and hence CSR
provisions are applicable.

The details for CSR activities carried out in current year are as follows:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025
i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 46.26

i) Amount spent during the year on:
a) Construction/acquisition of any asset .
b)  On purposes other than (a) above 46.26

i) Nature of CSR activities includes promoting education, healthcare, eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition,
empowering women and rural development projects.
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iv)  The Company did not wish to carry forward the excess amount spent during the current year.

v)  The Company does not have any ongoing projects as at March 31, 2025.
vi) There is no unspent amount of CSR activities as at March 31, 2025.

vii) There is no related party transaction in relation to CSR expenditure.

There are no capital commitments as on respective reporting periods.

TN SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@) The Company publishes standalone financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, as
per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments', no disclosures related to the business segments are presented in these standalone

financial statements.

(b) Revenue from external customers i.e., outside Group entities:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 22,855.64 19,308.89
Outside India - -
Total 22,855.64 19,308.89

(c) Revenue from sale of services and goods derived from the major external customers is as follows:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from top customer 11,270.06 9,568.33
Revenue from top three customers 24,660.10 17,085.96

(d) For the year ended March 31, 2025 - four (March 31, 2024: four) customers, individually accounted for more than 10% of

the revenue.

(e) Non-current assets*

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 12,085.00 11,408.85
Outside India - -

* Excluding financial assets and tax assets.

IZN piviDEND

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 16, 2025 has recommended a final dividend of ¥ 1.00 per equity share of
%10.00 each fully paid up, subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing shareholders meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

No income tax consequences are expected to arise as a result of this transaction at the Company level.

m DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS 115 - REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
a) Reconciliation of revenue from sale of goods and services with the contracted price

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contracted price 46,768.50 30,563.80
Less: Government's share in revenue from sale of crude oil (41.85) (34.98)
Less: Warranty obligation included in the supply (323.90) (72.84)
Sale of goods and services 46,402.75 30,455.98
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b) Revenue based on performance obligations

For the year ended March 31, 2025
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Sale of goods | Sale of services Total
Revenue recognized over the period of time . 45,928.85 45,928.85
Revenue recognized at a point in time 473.90 - 473.90

473.90 45,928.85 46,402.75

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Sale of goods | Sale of services Total
Revenue recognized over the period of time - 30,076.48 30,076.48
Revenue recognized at a point in time 379.50 - 379.50

379.50 30,076.48 30,455.98

¢) Recognized revenue earned from:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Sale of goods Sale of services
Related parties* 23,5652.60 11,197.51
Others 22,850.15 19,258.47

46,402.75 30,455.98

* As per contractual arrangement, billing is done amounting to ¥ 19,303.93 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025
(March 31, 2024: % 7,908.65 Lakhs) which has been disclosed as transactions with related parties under note 44.

d) Contract balances

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (net carrying value) 22,060.46 12,869.21
Contract assets (unbilled work in progress) 8,599.93 2,575.02
Advance from customer 514.04 306.34
Contract liability* 498.72 174.83

*Revenue recognized during the year from contract liability and advance from customer is ¥ 78.85 Lakhs (March 31, 2024:

%117.09 Lakhs).

e) Movement in contract assets and contract liability

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Contract Contract
assets liability and

customer

advances

Balance as on March 31, 2023 - 1,450.87
Net increase/ (decrease) 2,675.02 (969.70)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 2,575.02 481.17
Net increase/ (decrease) 6,024.91 531.59
Balance as on March 31, 2025 8,599.93 1,012.76

Note: During the current year, increase in contract assets is primarily due to lower progress billing as compared to
revenue recognition during the year in certain projects. Also Increase in contract liability is due to higher progress billing
as compared to revenue recognition in certain other projects.

f)  Cost to obtain or fulfill the contract:

(i) Amount of amortization recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year : Nil (March 31, 2024: Nil)

(i)  Amount recognized as contract assets in relation to cost incurred for obtaining contract as at March 31, 2025 : Nil

(March 31, 2024: Nil)
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g) Inthe normal course of business, the payment terms contractually agreed with the majority of the customers ranges from
30 to 60 days except retention monies which are due after the completion of the project as per the terms of contract.

IEEN cODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on
which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related impact in the period in which the Code becomes effective.

23 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of the joint venture Location| Ownership interest| Activity commenced

from
Zuberi Asian Joint Venture ('ZA JV') India 49.00% May 04, 2022
AESL FFIL Joint Venture ('AF JV') India 49.00% October 20, 2022
Asian Indwell Joint Venture (‘Al JV') India 80.00% March 13, 2024
Asian Oilmax Joint Venture (Al JV') India 70.00% August 21, 2024

Above joint ventures are engaged in the business of providing engineering, procurement and construction services, seismic and
related services. It has been established as a separate entity (Association of Persons) and the Company has a proportionate
residual interest in the net assets of the joint ventures. The Company is not required to have any investment in these entities as
per the joint venture agreement. The summarized financial information of the joint ventures is given below:

i)  Zuberi Asian Joint Venture (‘ZA JV') :-

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total assets 2,383.80 2,129.44
Total equity 290.20 149.87
Total liabilities 2,093.60 1,979.57
Total revenue 2,901.84 3,811.34
Profit before tax for the period 217.01 280.97
Profit after tax for the period 139.02 177.65
Dividends received by the Company - -

ii) AESL FFIL Joint Venture (‘AF JV') :-

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total assets 4,161.72 1,043.52
Total equity 331.43 256.38
Total liabilities 3,830.29 787.14
Total revenue 4,408.79 2,801.51
Profit before tax for the period 289.89 251.56
Profit after tax for the period 185.87 143.97
Dividends received by the Company - -

iii) Asian Indwell Joint Venture (‘Al JV') :-

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total assets 6,829.84 28.93
Total equity 673.81 (0.58)
Total liabilities 6,156.03 29.52
Total revenue 11,967.13 -
Profit/ (loss) before tax for the period 1,050.85 (0.58)
Profit/ (loss) after tax for the period 673.80 (0.58)

Dividends received by the Company -
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iv) Asian Oilmax Joint Venture (‘Al JV') :-

()

(vii)
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total assets 194.53 -
Total equity 11.53 -
Total liabilities 183.00 -
Total revenue 184.05 -
Profit/ (loss) before tax for the period 17.98 -
Profit/ (loss) after tax for the period 11.53 -

Dividends received by the Company

Note: As the activities of Asian Oilmax Joint Venture commenced during the current year, figures for previous year are Nil.
m OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION AS PER SCHEDULE Ill TO THE ACT

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with Companies whose name has been struck off from the register of

Companies.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar of companies (ROC)
beyond the statutory period as at March 31, 2025 except the below cases :

Brief description of the charges Date of creation of | Period by which Location of the Reason for delay in
charge charge had to be | registrar registration
registered
Not applicable Not applicable
Vehicle loans availed by the|asthechargeis Within 30 days as the charge is
Company towards security of | not created and from creation of ROC - Mumbai not created and

certain assets

registered by the
Company.

charge

registered by the
Company.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(@)

the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(b)

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(@)

the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(®)

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

IEZN ANALYTICAL RATIOS

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. Ratio Numerator Denominator |March 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024 | % Variance Explanation for variance
No in ratio by more than 25%
1 Currentratio |Current assets |Current 2.60 2.23 16.72%|Not applicable.

(in times) liabilities
2  |Debt - equity |Borrowings Total equity 0.06 0.08| (22.22%) Not applicable.

ratio (in

times)
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(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. Ratio Numerator Denominator |March 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024 | % Variance Explanation for variance
No in ratio by more than 25%
3 |Debtservice |Net profit Principal 39.86 45.39| (12.19%)|Not applicable.
coverage ratio|before tax + and interest
(in times) depreciation, repayment/
depletionand  |payment on
amortization + |long-term
interest expense borrowings
on borrowings
carried at
amortized cost
4 |Returnon Net profit after |Average total 12.19% 11.62% 5.87%|Not applicable.
equity ratio  |taxes equity
(%)
5 |Inventory Revenue from |Average 22.04 28.57| (22.85%)|Not applicable.
turnover ratio |operations - inventory of
(in times) Sale of crude |crude ol
oil
6 |Trade Revenue from |Average trade 2.66 3.14|  (15.39%) Not applicable.
receivable operations receivable
turnover ratio
(in times)
7 |Trade payable |Project related |Average trade 3.49 561 (37.80%) Decrease is because of
turnover ratio |expenses payables increase in average trade
(in times) payables as compared to
project related expenses
during the current year.
8  |Net capital Revenue from |Current assets 2.39 3.13]  (23.52%) Not applicable.
turnover ratio |operations — Current
(in times) liabilities
9  |Net profit/ Net profit/ Revenue from 8.84% 9.41% (6.01%) Not applicable.
(loss) ratio (%) |(loss) after operations
taxes
10 |Return Earnings/ Tangible net 13.76% 11.20% 22.90% Not applicable.
on capital (losses) before |worth + total
employed (%) |finance cost borrowings +
and taxes deferred tax
liability
11 |Returnon Net profit/(loss) Total assets 7.07% 7.61% (7.13%) Not applicable.
investment  |after taxes
(%)

m ACQUISITION OF A PARTICIPATORY INTEREST IN AN OILFIELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(i) Background

Government of India (GOI) had awarded an oil field in the Cambay basin having surface coverage of 150.77 sg.km to Oilmax
Energy Private Limited (Holding Company) for a period of 20 years. Pursuant to such award, a revenue sharing contract
(RSC) was entered into between GOl and the Holding Company in September 2022. Such RSC allows for assignment of
Participatory Interest (‘PI') to other parties with the prior consent of GOI.

Subsequently, a Farmout agreement and a joint operating agreement (JOA) were entered between the Company and
Oilmax on April 08, 2023. Under this agreement, the Holding Company sold 50% of Pl to the Company in this oilfield
for a consideration of ¥ 1,770 Lakhs (including indirect taxes). This agreement also provides for rights and obligations
concerning operations and activities under the contract.
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(i)

Post that, an application was filed with GOI for approval of such sale of Pl to the Company. The GOl approved the sale of PI
which was effective from June 30, 2023. As a result, an amendment was made to RSC which also included the Company
init.

As per joint operating agreement, the parties have rights to assets and obligation for the liabilities pertaining to the assets
of a joint arrangment in their respective PI.

The above acquisition of Pl was in a producing oil field which already had proved reserves (inputs) on which the operational
process will be applied to achieve the sale of crude oil (output) and hence such acquisition constitutes a business as per
Ind AS 103 - "Business Combinations”.

As a result of above acquisition, the Company will further strengthen its position in the oil and gas segment.

Fair value of assets acquired as at June 30, 2023:

(All amounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Amount
Oil asset - property, plant and equipment 2,181.00
Total value of assets (A) 2,181.00

Total value of liabilities (B) -

Net identifiable asset acquired (C) = [A-B] 2,181.00
Purchase consideration (D) 1,770.00
Capital reserve (E) = [C-D] 411.00

For the purpose of the valuation, the basis of value was fair value. Fair value is the amount at which an asset (or liability)
could be bought (or incurred) or sold (or settled) in a current transaction between willing parties, that is, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

In the present scenario, the Company had acquired the rights towards reserves of crude oil and hydrocarbons (natural
resource) after purchasing 50% P! in a producing oil field. The underlying value of Pl is derived from the reserves of such
natural resources. The transaction was done by the Company for having access to such natural resource and the related
well facility. The operations in such Pl as purchased are located in a specified region of Indrora, Gujarat. As on acquisition
date, no brand was acquired by the Company. No material customer contracts/ relationships exists as on the acquistion
date. The business utilizes its own resource for supplying goods to customers and deploys its own sales force to interface
with them. Further, there is no material assembled workforce acquired.

Basis the facts mentioned above, fair value of entire purchase consideration has been attributable towards a single class
of asset which is an oil asset under property, plant and equipment.
Notes :

(i) Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable assets and liabilities to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. These valuations are conducted by external valuation experts.
These measurements are based on information available at the acquisition date and are based on expectations and
assumptions that have been deemed reasonable by the management.

(i) Discount rate of 20.62% has been used to determine free cash flows to the equity.
(i) Tax rate of 25.17%, based on prevailing corporate tax rate in India, has been considered by the Company.

(iv) The acquisition contributed revenue from operations of ¥ 379.50 Lakhs and profit before tax of ¥ 71.31 Lakhs during
the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

(v)  The consideration of ¥ 1,770.00 Lakhs (including indirect taxes) was paid in cash by the Company.

(vi) Capital reserve arising on acquisition has been recognized directly in equity.
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m DISCLOSURE UNDER GUIDANCE NOTE ON ACCOUNTING FOR “OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES" (REVISED)

During the previous year, the Company acquired 50% Participatory Interest in Indrora oilfield situated in Gujarat, India. The
Company's share of reserves under this oilfield is as under:

(Allamounts in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Details Crude oil (in Million barrels)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening 0.821 -
. Addition - 0.838
Proved reserves of crude oil - onshore Production 0.010 0.017
Closing 0.811 0.821

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum that, by analysis of geological and engineering data, can be estimated with
reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverable, from a given date forward, from known reservoirs and under current
economic conditions, operating methods, and government regulations.

AUDIT TRAIL (EDIT LOG) FEATURE IN THE ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted
by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021 requires companies, which use accounting software for maintaining
their books of account, to use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were
made and ensure that the audit trail cannot be disabled and whether audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. The audit
trail feature is not tampered with during the year. Further, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention from the date the audit trail was enabled for the accounting software, i.e. w.e.f. July 30, 2023.

These are the notes to the standalone financial statements referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Bharat Shetty Kapil Garg Nayan Mani Borah

Partner Managing Director Chairman

Membership No.: 106815 (DIN-01360843) (DIN-00483006)
Shweta Jain Nirav Talati
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
(ACS-23368)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2025 Date: May 16, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Asian Energy Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

OPINION

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Asian Energy Services Limited
('the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as 'the Group') and its joint ventures, as listed in
Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and joint ventures, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group and its joint ventures, as at 31 March
2025, and their consolidated profit (including other

comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and
the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
and its joint ventures in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
together with the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors interms of their reports referred to in paragraph
15 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(i) Revenue recognition by the Holding Company

of oilfield and related services provided in the energy

sector and sale of crude oil.

Refer Note 28 and Note 50 to the accompanying
details of
revenue recorded during the current year and Note 1(c)

consolidated financial statements for

for the related accounting policies.
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Our audit procedures around revenue recognition included,
Revenue for the Holding Company consists primarily | DUt were not restricted to, the following:

a)

Obtained the understanding of the revenue and
receivable business process and assessed the
appropriateness of the accounting policy adopted
by the Holding Company for revenue recognition in
accordance with Ind AS 115;

Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key internal financial controls
around revenue recognition including controls around
contract approvals, invoice approval, determining
the amount of variable consideration, estimation of
budgeted contract costs and recording of receipt;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
('Ind AS 115') requires management to make certain
key judgments relating to identifying contracts
with customers, performance obligations involved
in contracts and revisions thereto, determining
transaction price which involves variable consideration
elements including estimation of levy of liquidated
damages or penalty or warranty claims by its
customers, allocation of the transaction price to
such performance obligations and satisfaction of
performance obligations.

We have identified recognition of revenue as key audit
matter for the current year audit considering:

- Significance of management judgement and
estimate involved as mentioned above, and the
materiality of amounts involved; and

- Significant auditor attention required to audit
revenue recognised during the year, which has
been identified as a significant risk as per the

requirements of Standards on Auditing.

c)

Performed substantive testing by selecting a sample of
continuing and new contracts entered with customers
during the year and performed following procedures:

i.  Analyzed the contracts and identified distinct
performance obligations in such contracts.

i. Compared these performance obligations with
those identified and recorded by the Holding
Company.

iii. Considered the terms of the contracts to
determine the transaction price and any
variable consideration elements including levy
of liquidated damages, penalty and warranty
claims;

Reviewed the allowance/ provision for expected
liqguidated damages, penalty and warranty obligation
created by the management on the invoicing done
for the various projects from time-to-time, where
contract milestones were not met;

Performed test of details on a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the vyear, including
specific periods before and after the year-end. For the
samples selected, inspected supporting documents,
including contracts and related amendments
for revisions to performance obligations or price
terms, daily progress reports, invoices and delivery
documents to ensure that the correct amount of
revenue is recorded in the correct period; and

Evaluated the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made in the financial statements for
revenue recognized during the year in accordance
with applicable accounting standards.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT
THEREON

6.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report and
Director's Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report and
Director's Report are expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been approved by the Holding Company's Board
of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors
are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
including its joint ventures in accordance with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. The Holding Company's Board of Directors

ASIAN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
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are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records
including financial information considered necessary
for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. Further, interms of the provisions of the Act,
the respective Board of Directors/ management of the
companies included in the Group and its joint ventures,
covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets
of their respective entities and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. These financial statements have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the respective Board of Directors/ management of
the companies included in the Group and of its joint
ventures are responsible for assessing the ability
of their respective entities, to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors/
management of such companies either intends to
liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors/ management
of the companies included in the Group and of its
joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective entities.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

. Obtainanunderstanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Holding
Company's Board of Directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group and its joint ventures, to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to
continue as a going concern;

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information/ financial
statements of the entities or business activities
within the Group and its joint ventures, to

137
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12.

13.

14.

express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included
in the financial statements, of which we are
the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the financial statements, which have
been audited by the other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

OTHER MATTERS

15.

We did not audit the annual financial statements /
financial information of six (6) subsidiaries included in
the consolidated financial statements, whose annual
financial statements / financial information (before
consolidation adjustments) reflects total assets of INR
2,156.64 lakhs as at 31 March 2025, total revenues of
INR 99.04 lakhs, total net loss after tax of INR 627.27
lakhs, total comprehensive loss of INR 627.27 lakhs,
and net cash inflows of INR 196.94 lakhs, for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group's share of net
profit (including other comprehensive income) of INR
618.66 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025, as

considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect of four (4) joint ventures, whose annual
financial statements / financial information have not
been audited by us. These annual financial statements/
financial information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and joint ventures, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and joint ventures,
are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, three (3) subsidiaries
are located outside India whose annual financial
statements/ financial information and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited
by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The
Holding Company's management has converted the
financial statements/ financial information of such
subsidiaries located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective
countries to accounting principles generally accepted
in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments
made by the Holding Company’'s management. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of such subsidiaries located outside
India, is based on the report of other auditors and the
conversion adjustments prepared by the management
of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the reports of the other auditors.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

16. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on

our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors, referred to in paragraph 15 above, on
separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we
report that the Holding Company, incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, has paid remuneration to its directors during
the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act. Further, we report that one (1) subsidiary company
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17.

18.

incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, has not paid or provided
for any managerial remuneration during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the
Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiary
company. Further, we report that the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to five (5) subsidiary companies and four
(4) joint ventures since none of such entities is a public
company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Act, based on the consideration of
the Order reports issued by us and by the respective
other auditors as mentioned in paragraph 15 above,
of companies included in the consolidated financial
statements and covered under the Act, we report that
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported
in the respective Order reports of such companies.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and other
financial information of the subsidiaries incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b) Except for the matter stated in paragraph 18(h)
(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the
other auditors;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
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of its subsidiaries covered under the Act, none
of the directors of the Group companies covered
under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith
with respect to the consolidated financial
statements are as stated in paragraph 18(b) above
on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act
and paragraph 18(h)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(qg) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries covered under the Act, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in 'Annexure 2' wherein we
have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and other financial information of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act:

i. The consolidated financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of
the Group as detailed in Note 38 to the
accompanying  consolidated  financial
statements;

i. The Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies covered under the Act, did not
have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2025;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies covered under
the Act, during the year ended 31 March
2025;

iv. ~a. The respective managements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India

whose financial statements have been
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audited under the Act, have represented
to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiary companies  respectively
that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note 52(iv) to the
accompanying consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Holding Company
or its subsidiary companies to or in
any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries'),
with  the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiary companies (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented
to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiary companies  respectively
that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 52(v)
to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company
or its subsidiary companies, from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’),
with  the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiary companies shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures
performed by us and that performed by
the respective auditors of the subsidiary

Vi.

companies, as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our or other
auditors' notice that has caused us or
the other auditors to believe that the
management representations under
sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain
any material misstatement.

As stated in Note 48A to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the Board
of Directors of the Holding Company have
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2025 which is subject to the approval
of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the
extent it applies to declaration of dividend;

As stated in Note 57 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and
based on our examination which included
test checks performed by us on the Holding
Company and by the respective auditors on
subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India and audited under
the Act, the Holding Company and such
subsidiaries, in respect of financial year
commencing on 01 April 2024, have used
an accounting software for maintaining their
books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same have been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of
audit trail being tampered with. Furthermore,
the audit trail has been preserved by the
Holding Company and such subsidiaries as
per the statutory requirements for record
retention from the date the audit trail was
enabled for the accounting software.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Bharat Shetty

Partner

Membership No.: 106815
UDIN: 25106815BMJIGC2403

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 May 2025
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ANNEXURE 1

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:
1. Asian Qilfield & Energy Services DMCC

AOSL Petroleum Pte Limited

AOSL Energy Services Limited

Optimum Qil & Gas Private Limited

Cure Multitrade Private Limited

o o K W

Ivorene Qil Services Nigeria Limited

List of joint ventures included in the consolidated financial statements:
1. Zuberi - Asian Joint Venture

2. AESL FFIL Joint Venture

3. Asian Indwell Joint Venture
4

Asian Oilmax Joint Venture
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ANNEXURE 2

Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of Asian Energy Services Limited
(‘the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as 'the Group') and its joint ventures, as at and for
the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies covered
under the Act, as at that date.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED

FINA
2.

AUDI

NCIAL STATEMENTS

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note')
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company's business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

TOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements, and the

Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements includes obtaining
an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, as aforesaid.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.

A company's internal financial controls wit